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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable Jacques Roy, Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Alexandria, Louisiana, as 
of and for the year ended April 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the City of Alexandria, Louisiana's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, based on our report and the report of the other auditor, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund inforrnation of the City of Alexandria, 
Louisiana, as of April 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows 
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

We did not audit the financial statements of the City of Alexandria Employee's Retirement System pension 
trust fund, which represent 74.18%, 85.15% and 27.80%, respectively, of the assets, net position, and revenues of 
the aggregate remaining fund inforrnation as of December 31, 2023. Those statements were audited by other 
auditors whose reports has been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for 
the City of Alexandria Employee's Retirement System pension trust fund, are based solely on the report of the other 
auditor. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the City of Alexandria, Louisiana and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with 
the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 



Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal cmtrol relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements. management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Alexandria, Louisiana's ability to 
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are tree 
from material niisstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Goverment Auditing Standards 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material niisstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial 
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based 
on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error. and design and perform audit procedures responsn e to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the tinancial statements 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the City of Alexandria, Louisiana's internal control. Accordingly. no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment. there are conditions or events. considered in the aggregate, that raise 
suhstantial doubt about the C'ity of Alexandria, Louisiana's ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amone other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit. significant audit findings. and certain internal control-related matters that we 
identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting pnnciples generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required 
supplementary information on pages 5-16 and 88-97, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. which consisted of inquiries of management about 



the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries. the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained durinL,  our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectnely 
comprise the City of Alexandria, Louisiana's basic tinancial statements. The accompanying Justice Svstem Funding 
Schedule — Receiving Entity and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U S. Code 
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, und Audit Requirements 
Pr Federal Awards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures apphed in the audit of the basic financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparim and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the Justice System Funding Schedule — Receiving Entitv and the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated. in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements 
as a whole. 

Ot her I n formation 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information 
comprises the unaudited summary of utility service customers and the unaudited listinn of insurance in force but 
does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial 
statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon 

In connection with our audit of the basic tinancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other infonnation and the hasic 
tinancial statements. or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If. based on the work 
performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required 
to describe it in our report. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Amdards, we have also issued our report dated October 31.2024, 
on our consideration of the City of Alexandria. Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Citv of 
Alexandria, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Alexandria, 
Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Kolder, Maven & Company, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

Alexandria. Louisiana 
C)ctober 31,2024 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
year ended April 30, 2024 

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Alexandna's financial performance provides an oven iew of the City's 
financial activities for the fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2024. Please read it in conjunction with the City's financial 
statements, which hegin on page 17. For ease of understanding, figures are rounded to the nearest tenth of $1 
million or the nearest $1 thousand, as appropriate. 

Financial Highlights 

• The City's assets exceeded liabilities by $353.3 nullion. 

• The City's net position increased around $34 3 nullion during FY 2023-2024. This is the combined result of 
an increase of around S20.2 million in net position from governmental activities and by an increase in net 
position from husiness activities of $14.0 million. 

• Unrestricted net position decreased by $.8 million. This is the result of an increase of $7.9 milhon from 
governmental activities offset by a decrease of 58.7 from business type activities. 

• Fund balance in the General Fund is $47.2 million. which amounts to approximately 70°.is of the expenditures 
of the General Fund in FY 2023-2(124. 

• The City's long-term debt decreased $20.7 million, due to pension and other post employee benefits liability, 
as well as scheduled payments on bonds. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities (on pages 19 and 20) provide mfonnation about the activities of the City as a whole and present a longer-
term view of the City's finances. Fund financial statements start on page 22. For govenunental activities. these 
statements tell how these services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund 
financial statements also report the Citys operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by 
providing information about the CitYs most sigiificant funds. The remaining statements provide financial 
information about activities for which the City acts solely as a trustee or agent fbr the benefit of those outside of the 
government. 

Reporting On The City As A Whole 

One of the most important questions asked about the Citys finances is. "Is the City as a whole hetter off or worse 
off as a result of the year's activities?" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report 
information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question These 
statements include assets and liahilities using the accrual basis of accounting. which is similar to the accounting 
used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account 
reeardless of when cash is received or paid 

These two statements report the Citys net position and changes in them You can think of the Citys net position-
the difference between assets and liabilities as one way to measure the City's financial health, orfinancial position. 
Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is 
improvine or deteriorating. You will need to consider other non-financial factors, however, such as changes in the 
City's property tax base and the condition of the City's roads. to assess the overall health of the City. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year ended April 30. 2024 

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities we divide the City into three kinds of activities: 

• Governmental activities - Most of the Citys basic services are reported here, including the police, tire, public 
works and parks departments, and general administration. Property taxes, sales taxes, tianchise fees, and state 
and federal grants finance most of these activities. 

• Business-type activities - The City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the cost of certain 
services it provides. The Citys utilities, sanitation, zoo, golf course, and transit are reported here. 

• Component units - The City has no component units at the present time. 

Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements begin on page 22 and provide detailed intbrmation about the most significant funds - 
not the City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond co‘enants. However, 
the City Council establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money tbr particular purposes or to 
show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes. grants, and other money (like grants received 
from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development). The City's two kinds of funds - governmental and 
proprietary - use different accounting approaches. 

• Governmental/rinds - Most of the Citys basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how 
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These 
funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and 
all other financial assets that can readily he com, cried to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a 
detailed short-term view of the Citys general government operations and the hasic services it provides. 
Governmental fund inforrnation helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that 
can be spent in the near future to finance the City's programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) 
between govermnental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and 
governmental funds in a reconciliation following these fund financial statements. 

• Proprietary fluids - When the City charges customers for the services it provides - whether to outside customers 
or to other units of the City - these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are 
reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities. In fact, the City's enterprise funds (a component of proprietary funds) are the same as the business-
type activities we report in the government-wide statements but provide more detail. We use internal service 
funds (the other component of proprietary funds) to report activities that proi, ide supplies and services for the 
Citys other programs and activities. such as the Citys Risk Management. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year ended Apra 30. 2014 

The City as Trustee 

Reporting the City's Fiduciary Responsibilities 

The City is the trustee. or fichwiwy. for its employees' pension plans. It is also responsible for other assets that, 
because of a trust arrangement, can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. All of the Citys fiduciary activities are 
reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Position and Changes in Fiduciary Net Position on pages 31 and 
32. We exclude these activities from the City's other financial statements because the City cannot use these assets 
to finance its operations. The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used tiir 
their intended purposes. 

Government Wide Financial Analysis 

folkiwing table reflects; a condensed version of the Statement of Net Position displavinv .2024 and 2023: 

City of Alexandria, LA 
Condensed Statement of Net Position (in millions) 

April 30, 2024 and April 30, 2023 

Assets 

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 
Governmental Business Total 

       

Current & Other Assets $ 124.4 $ 108.7 $ 60.3 $ 51.7 $ 184.7 $ 160 4 
Restricted Assets - 

 

38.8 38.8 38.8 38.S 
C'apital Assets 171.5 173.0 209.6 "15.6 381.1 388 6 
Total Assets 295.9 281.7 308.7 306.1 604.6 587.8 

Deferred Outflow of Resources 31.3 39.1 34.2 44.3 65.5 83.4 
Liabilities 

      

Current Liabilities 11.2 4.9 12.4 13.5 ""3.6 18.4 
Long-Tenn Liabilities 82.1 95.1 169.7 193.5 '51.8 288.7 
Total Liabilities 93.3 10(l.1 182.1 207.0 275.4 307.1 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 16.5 23.6 15.8 21.6 32.3 45.2 

Net Position 

      

Invested in Capital Assets (Net) 165.0 163.1 109.6 86.9 274 6 250.0 
Restricted 54.0 43.6 28.3 28.3 8'.3 71.9 
Unrestricted il 6) (9.5) (2.0) 6.7 (3.6) (2.8) 
Total Net Position $ 217.4 S 197.2 S 135.9 S 121.9 5353.3 $ 319.1 

As of April 30, 2024 the City's Net Position totals $353.3 nnlhon, 'showing an increase of about 11°.;. compared to 
the 2023 total of $319.1 million. Roughly $274.6 million, or 78%. of the City's total Net Position resides in the 
In‘ested in Capital Assets category. These are land. buildings. infrastructure. equipment and other items required 
for the City to furnish its goods and services to citizens on the governmental side of operations and customers on 
the business side of operations. These assets are not available tbr appropriation (spendin2), as they are not intended 
to he sold. Restricted Assets account for $82.3 million, or 23%, of the total. Restrictions are placed hy entities 
outside the City government, such as hondholders These assets are also not available for appropriation. The City 
shows a negative $3.6 million in Unrestricted Net Assets for FY 2023-2024. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
year ended April 30. 2024 

The following table is a condensed version of the Statement of Aetnities thsplaying 2024 and 2023: 

City of Alexandria, LA 
Condensed Statement of Activities (in millions) 

April 30, 2024 and April 30, 2023 

 

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 
Governmental Busine.. Total 

 

Revenues 

      

Prop-am Revenues: 

      

Charges for Services, Fines, Fees $ 4.6 S 4.6 S 130.0 115.4 $ 134 6 $ 120.0 
Grants Contributions 14 9 7.0 3.0 4 1 17.9 11.1 
General Revenues: 

      

Sales Taxes 59.3 57.3 

  

59 3 57.3 
Other Taxes 10.9 10.2 1.3 1.3 12. 11.5 
Other 5.2 3.8 2.6 1.7 7.8 5,5 
Total Revenues 94.9 82 .9 130.9 

 

231.8 205.4 

Expenses 

      

General government 23.4 13.9 

  

23 4 23.9 
Pubhe safety 37.9 35.0 

  

37.9 35.0 
Public works 18 6 13.7 

  

18.6 23.7 
Community and economic 

development 1.0 .2 

  

1.0 -) . - 
Interest on long-term debt .4 .5 4.5 4.7 .4 5.1 
Electricity 

  

68.8 79.4 68.8 79.4 
Gas 

  

10.6 15.9 10.6 15.9 
Water 

  

8.7 8.7 8.7 8.7 
Wastewater 

  

9.0 9.1 9.0 9.1 
Transit 

  

3.9 3.3 3.9 3.3 
Sanitation 

  

6.1 6.1 6.2 6.1 
Zoological Park 

  

3.4 3.6 3.4 3.6 
Golf Course 

  

1.2 1.1 1./ 1.1 
Total Expenses 81.3 s3.3 116.3 131 9 197.6 215 2 

Change in Net Position before 
Transfers 13.6 -.4 20.6 -9.4 34.2 -9.8 

Transfers 6.6 -.4 -0.6 .4 

  

Increase (Decrease) In Net 

      

Position $ 20./ S -.8 $ 14.0 $ -9.0 S 34.2 S 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 197:7 198.0 121.9 130.9 319.1 328.9 

Net Position, End of Year $ 217.4 197.2 S 135.9 $ 121.9 S 353.2 $ 319.1 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
year ended April 30, 2024 

The City's total revenues were $231.8 milhon and total expenses were $197.6 nullion for FY 2023-2024. This 
results in an increase of net position before transfers of 34.2 million. This can be broken down first by aovernmental 
and business activities, then hroken down further by function. 

Net Position in Governmental Activities increased by 520.2 million in FY 2023-2024 compared to a decrease of 
5.8 in FY 2022-2023. Examining the expenses for the 2 years, we see that they are down somewhat from 583.3 
million in FY 2022-2023 to $81.3 million in FY 2023-2(124. roughly a 2% difference. We see decreases of $5.1 
milhon in Public Works, $ .5 million in General Government: and $.1 million in Interest on Long Term Debt. These 
are partially offset by increases of .8 million in Community & Economic Development and $2.9 million in Public 
Safety. Revenues reflect significant increase of $12.0 million. The majority of the increase is found in Capital 
Grants & Contributions totaling roughly 57.9 million, along with an increase in Sales Taxes of $2.0 million: Other 
Revenue of $1.4 million and Other Taxes of $.7 million 

Business-type Activities Net Position increased $14.0 million for FY 2023-2024, compared to a decrease in the 
prior year of $9.0 million. Expenses are down $15.6 million with decreases of $10.6 million in Electricity and $5.3 
million in Gas accounting for the majority of the change. Revenues are up $14.4 million, the majority of which can 
be found in Charges thr Services amounting to $14.6 milhon, while Grants are down $1.1 million. Relatively minor 
net decreases in Other make up the remainder. 

In the long run, the City's costs for Electric and Gas fuel are passed on to the customers and have no effect on the 
City's finances. In the short run, however, the City can be either recovering costs or rebating costs depending on 
which way fuel prices are going. These fluctuations in revenue can cause siamficant differences in the short term. 

Individual Fund Analysis 

We will hrietly analyze the activity and fund balances of the major funds of the Governmental Funds category and 
the Business (Proprietary) Funds category. beginning with the General Fund. Differences are rounded to the nearest 
tenth of S I million for ease of discussion. 

Governmental Funds 

General Fund 

The General Fund ended FY 2023-2024 with an increase in Fund Balance of over 512.0 million. In short, the 
General Fund spent less than it took by this amount. In order to see the change, a comparison of revenues and 
expenditures of FY 2(123-2024 and FY 2022-2023 is needed. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
year ended April 30, 2024 

Revenues and Transfers In increased nearly $18.0 million. The greatest changes can be found in the Transfers In 
with an increase of $6.2 million: due mostly to the return of the Transfer ftom the Utilities System Fund; 
Intergovernmental Revenue with an increase of $9.5 million, due mostly to the recognition of American Rescue 
Plan (ARPA) funds for Public Safety salaries and vehicles and Taxes with an increase of $2.3 million. 

Expenditures and Transfers Out increased $2.2 million when compared to the previous year. The greatest factor 
here was; Public Safety increasing $1.8 million and Capital Outlay increased $2 1 million. These increases are 
partially offset by decreases in Puhlic Works of $.6 million and General Government of $.2 million. 

Overall, Revenues and Transfers In in the General Fund exceeded Expenditures and Transfers Out, leading to the 
previously mentioned increase in Fund Balance of $12.0 million. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The original budget of the General Fund reflects the City's plan and financial intent at the beginning of the fiscal 
year. This is routinely adjusted during the year to hetter retlect actual revenues available and actual expenditures 
incurred. The City does its most comprehensive adjustment at Major Budget Amendment (MBA). Revenues and 
Use of Fund Balance were adjusted fiir a net increase of $5.1 million, or 6.93%. The major changes here are 
increases in Taxes of $5.3 million; Intergovernmental Revenue of $1.9 million. These are partially offset by net 
decreases in Use of Fund Balance of $2.9 million. ()ther relatively minor adjustments make up the remainder. 

Budgeted Expenditures and Transfers Out were adjusted up dunng the year by $5.1 million due to a variety of 
factors. Transfers Out was increased by $.5 million; Overtime in various departments was increased 52.1 million; 
Utilities were increased $.4 million; Capital Outlay was increased $1.9 million; and Vehicle Repairs was increased 
$1.8 million 

Fortunately. the City did not use the 56.7 million in firnd balance budgeted for FY 2023-2024, but, as previously 
noted, increased Fund Balance in the amount of $12 0 million. Actual Revenues and Transfers In were around $9.9 
million greater than budgeted, while actual Expenditures and Transfers C)ut were about $8.8 million less than 
budgeted. There were various ofYsets in the re‘enues, hut the greatest factors were variances in combined Sales 
Taxes of $3.2 million; Intergovenunental Revenue (ARPA) of $4.4 million; Licenses & Permits of $.5 million; and 
Interest Rel, enue of $.2 million. The greatest factor in the expenditures conung in so much lower than budgeted is 
the previously mentioned attrition: i e., vacant employee positions during the year that were budgeted but had no 
employees to be paid from them. The combined salary and fringes for these vacancies translated to roughly $3.1 
million in reduced expenditures, even after adjusting budgets down at Major Budget Amendment. Along with this 
factor. a timing issue existed with Capital Outlay as $4.5 million in purchases were not made in FY 2023-2024 and 
will be made in subsequent years. Favorable variances in discretionary spending such as 5.3 million in Services-
Demolition; $ 2 million in Professional Fees; and $ 2 million in Vehicles Fuel account for the remainder of the 
difference in General Fund Expenditures. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year ended April 30, 2024 

The following charts represent the actual sources and uses of General Fund monies for Fiscal 2023-24. 

General Fund Sources 

 

0 Taxes 

• Licenses and permits 

0 I ntergovernmental 

OCharges for services 

• Fines and fees 

o I nvestment revenue 

NOther 

OTransfers in 

General Fund Uses 

    

0 General government 

• Public safety 

0 Public works 

0 Principal 

• Interest and other charges 

0 Capital outlay 

OTransfers (out) 

  ------___..,........  
--------

 

  
   

    

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
year ended April 30. 2024 

General Capital Projects Fund 

Revenues and Other Financing Sources are down in this fund by roughly 5.2 nullion, where mcreases in lin estment 
Revenue of roughly $.6 million and Taxes of roughly $.8 million are more than offset by decreases of roughly $1.6 
million in Intergovernmental Revenue. 

Expenditures and Transfers Out for FY 2023-2024 are down $4.0 million compared to the previous year. 
Expenditures can vary greatly over two consecutive vears in a capital projects fund depending on how far along 
indnidual large projects are. Once a project is designed and construction begins, funds can be expended in a 
relatively short time. Significant progress was achieved in multiple projects in FY 2023-2024 such as Amphitheatre 
Improvements, Horseshoe Canal Hardening, Masonic Corridor Phase 2. North 16th  Street Bridge Replacement, and 
Bryn Malvr Bridge Replacement. 

Overall Fund Balance increased $6.0 million for FY 2023-'014. 

Utilities System Fund 

The Utilities System Fund is the largest of the City's proprietary funds. dwarfing thc Sanitation Fund, Municipal 
Transit Fund. Zoo Fund and Golf Course Fund. Revenues in the Utilities System are based primarily on the sales 
of electricity, water, natural gas. and wastewater service to customers. These revenues. Charges for Services, are 
up $14.1 million compared to the pnor year. A portion of Charges for Services is electrical & gas fuel cost recovery. 
The City does not benefit from fuel cost because that is simply the passing on of costs incurred by the City to its 
customers, hut the incurring and subsequent recovery of these costs can cause considerable fluctuations in the 
revenue and expense of the System. Fuel Cost Recovery actually decreased by $1.1 million in FY 2023-2024 

Expenses and Transfers Out are down $9.3 million in FY 2023-2024 compared to the previous year. The biggest 
factor here is the expense side of Fuel Cost decreasing $20.0 million. This is partially offset by employee costs 
increasing $.5 million: Supplies increased $ 9 million: Transfers Out increased $5 0 million and Repairs & 
Maintenance increased $4.6 million compared to the prior year. Other minor changes account for the remainder. 

See independent auditor's report. 



CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year ended April 30, 2024 

The result of the above was an increase in Net Position to the Utilities System Fund of roughly $15.2 million for 
FY 2023-2024. The following charts show the breakdown of Revenues and Expenses of the Utilities System Fund 
for FY 2023-2024: 

Utilities System Revenues 

  
o Charges for sales and services 
• Other 
o Investment revenue 
o Federal & State Grants 
■ Gain (Loss) on sale of assets 
o Capital Contributions 
■ Transfers in 

 

Utilities System Expenses 

 

▪ Electricity and natural gas purchased for resale 

• Employee Costs 

0 Contracted services 

CI Supplies 

• Vehicle expenses 

Utility Rebates 

• Pension Provision 

o Insurance 

• Utilities 

• Transfers (out) 

oRepairs and maintenance 

▪ Depreciation 

o Interest on Debt 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year ended April 30. 2014 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) 

 

Governmental Business 
20/4 2023 20/4 /023 

Land $ 14.6 $ 14.6 $ 3.5 $ 3.5 
Construction in Proaress 10.4 13.4 16.1 14.-1 

y Buiklings 44.5 47.2 2.6 1.1 
Furniture & Fixtures 1.4 1.2 .9 .6 
Vehicles 5 7 5.1 5.4 4.7 
Infrastructure 94.9 91.6 11.0 1 /;9.2 

Net Capital Assets $ 171.5 $ 173.1 $ 209.5 $ 215.6 

In Governmental Activities, the major change is a decrease rn Construction in Progress of $3.0 million; as major 
projects such as North 16st Street Bridge Replacement, 3rd  Street: Rapides Avenue Irnprovements, and Industrial 
Park Road Improvement were completed. Infrastructure shows a corresponding increase of $3.3 million with the 
completion of these and other projects. Other relatively minor changes account for the remainder of the difference. 

In Business Activities, Infrastructure is down by $8.2 million accounting for majority of the changes. This is 
partially offset by increases such as Construction in Progress of $1.7 million. 

Governmental Funds 

The City had a net decrease of $1.6 million in capital assets this year in Governmental Activities. These capital 
assets would include buildings, vehicles, equipment, as well as infrastructure, net of depreciation. 

Business-Dpe Funds 

The City had a net decrease of $6.1 million in capital assets this year in Business Activities. These capital assets 
would include buildings, vehicles, equipment, as well as infrastnicture, net of depreciation. 

For greater detail on capital assets, please see Note 10 to the financial statements. 

Debt Administration  

Governmental Funds 

In the Governmental Funds, Bonded Lonv-Term debt decreased S2.5 million: thc result of scheduled payments of 
principal. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LOUISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year ended April 30. 2014 

Enterprise Funds 

In the Enterpnse Funds, Bonded Long-Term Debt decreased $4.7 million: the result of scheduled payments of 
principal. For further information on deht, please see Note 10 to the financial statements. 

Bonded Long-Term Debt 

 

Governmental Business 
1 0/4 /023 2024 2023 

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds S 8.6 S 11.1 - $ - 
Utility Revenue Bonds 

  

161 1 165.8 

Total Outstanding Debt $ 8.6 $ 11 1 $ 161.1 $ 165.8 

Future Outlook 

    

In local government finances, and in particular as seen in this report, we inust be mindful that positi‘e-lookmg 
values do not make trends: appearances in our financial statements must be balanced against the longer view and 
se% eral material one-time positive effects that are not necessarily repeated in future years. Although many aspects 
of the City's finances Unproved during Fiscal Year 2023-2024, many of them are temporary in nature as will be 
discussed. Simply, we cannot match new recurring expenses to one-tnne revenue or other expense offsetting. 

In Governmental Funds, an increase in Fund Balance of $22.1) million was previously noted. The General Fund 
accounted for $12.0 million of this increase, but was lar.c:ely attributable to the noted $10.0 million single infusion 
of ARPA funds that were used for Public Safety salaries and equipment. Another $6.0 million of the Governmental 
Funds increase was due to the General Capital Projects Fund. This condition is often seen in capital projects funds 
as large projects that make up the majority of the expenditures do not always correspond to the tiscal year in which 
they are initially budgeted. The absence of continuous operating expenditures, such as those in the General Fund, 
can give a false appearance of either good or bad financial health in general capital projects funds. 

In Proprietary Funds, an increase of $14.0 million in Net Position is found in the Enterprise funds, the positive 
effects of which is attrihutable to the $15.2 million increase in Net Position in the Utilities System Fund As 
mentioned pro, iously, the expense and subsequent recovery hal, e no ultimate effect to the Utilities System, but can 
have large, material short-term effects on the System in given fiscal year. Fiscal 2022-2023 showed expense 
exceeding revenue for combined electric and gas fuel cost of $.3 rnillion, whereas Fiscal 2023-2024 showed revenue 
exceeding expense for combined electric and gas fuel cost of $18.6 million. The Statement of Cash Flows for Fiscal 
2023-2024 shows a $10.9 million increase in receipts from customers, while also showing a decrease of $8.7 million 
in payments to suppliers, further reflecting the tnel cost trend. Similar to the case in Governmental Funds ahol, e, 
we see here what all data suggest is an anomalous, at least in part over-stated positive picture for the fiscal year. 
Great diligence is still needed in both cases to maintain a healthy financial condition for the City as circumstances 
within, and not within, the City's control emerge. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LC)UISIANA 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year ended April 30. 2024 

Contacting the Finance Division of the City 

This report is intended as a brief overview of the City's financial condition. Any 4.-pestions should be directed to 
the Director of Finance, PC/ Box 71, Alexandria, LA 71309. 

David L. Johnson, CPA 
Director of Finance 
City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LOUISIANA 

Statement of Net Position 
April 39 2024 

 

Govemniental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Total 

ASSETS 

   

Cash and inteirst-bearing deposits $ 103.449.648 $ 41,959,507 $ 145,409,455 
Certificates of deposit l .306.465 1,517,202 1.8/1.667 

Receivables, net 11.597.556 13,75',215 25,260,071 
Due trona other govenuuental agencies 638,306 

 

638.306 
Internal balances 6.876.721 (6,876.721) 

 

Prepaid expense 269.180 

 

269.150 

Inventories 373.509 9,943.278 10,316,787 

Restricted assets: 

   

Cash aud interest-beartng deposits 

 

35,836.531 38,836.532 
Capital assets 

   

Non-depreciable 

   

Laud and laud improvements 14.636.292 3,459,049 18,125.341 
Construction and inhastoictuir in plogiess 10.449.797 16,103,429 26,553.276 

Depreciable. net 146.419.291 189,976,516 336,395.807 

Total assets 195,9'7,065 308,701,307 60-1,628.372 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

   

Unammtized bond iefunding charges 

 

13,915,160 13,915.160 

Deferred outflows of resources - pensions 26,397,580 20,258,104 46,685.684 

Defrock' outtlows of tesources - OPEB related 4.901.236 

 

4,901.236 

Total deferred outflows of resources 31.298.516 3-1,203,26-1 65,502,080 

LLABILITIES 

   

.Accounts payable 2,919,559 3,590,O7 5.610.556 
Salaries payable 2.126.1)22 1,109,824 3.7:36.746 
Accrued inteirst payable 87.313 1,799,219 1.886.532 
Customer guaranteed deposits - 5,856.022 5,856.071 
Long-term lialnlites 

   

Due within oue yea' 7,113,319 30,152,O5 37.296.014 
Due in more than nue yeal 17.905.914 139,542,190 157,448.104 
Net pension liability 44.573.852 9,0)5,603 53,069.455 

Other post employee benefits payable 19.475.642 

 

19,475.6-12 

Total liabilities 93.302.821 191,176,250 284.479.071 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

   

Defeo ed inflows of resouices - pensions 12.090.577 15.518.367 28.508,944 

Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB related 3.846.498 - 3,546.498 

Total deferred inflows 16.537.075 15,818,367 31,355.44' 

NET POSITION 

   

Net investment iu capital assets 164,957,270 199.627.440 27-1,61-1.710 
Restricted fin: 

   

Debt service 1.552.147 24,736,646 26.288.793 
Pioject ResIor - 2,500.i5I0 2.500,000 
Capital projects 52.467.082 - 52,467.052 
Capital additions and contingencies 

 

1,024.458 1,024.458 
Utueshicted (1.620.5141 11,978,590) (3,599.1041 

Total net position $ 217.385.985 $ 135,909,954 $ 353,'95.939 

The acconipanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF .ALEXANDRIA. LOUISIANA 

Statement of ALtivaties 
For the Year Ended April 30. 2024 

Net (Expense) Revenues and Chanues 
Progiarn Revenues nr Nei Posmon 

Operanng Capv,i1 Prirnary Goveininew 
Fres, Fines and Grains and 

Activities Expriises Charges far SrryKes Connibutit 
(Ji anh 
ontributions 

Govenunental 
Activities 

&MRCSS- Type 
Activines Total 

1.towinilLenta I activities 

    

General goverimient S 23.357 682 S 4.289.119 $ - S S (19 06it 563) S S t 19 066.563) 
Pnbli. satety 37.911.499 221.934 12.191.475 

 

(25.498.(r0) 

 

t25.498.90) 
Pnblit. works IX.644.121 60,190 1.493.309 (17.090.622) 

 

t 17.090.622 i 
Econtainc development 1.018 073 26.299 1.211.536 

 

219 762 

 

219.- 62 
Interest on long-tenn debt 389.979 

 

(3)4.979) 

 

(3X9.979) 

Total govenunemal :marines 81.321.354 4.597.5-12 13.403.011 1.493.309 (61,82- .492) 

 

(61.82-.492) 

Busniess-iype activities 

    

Electricity 68.769 456 96.0'2.640 1.290.060 

  

28.593.190 28.593.190 
Nallifal ais 10.546.490 10.234,933 

  

t311.557) (311.557 ) 
Water :4,711.366 9.00-.354 i11,550 

 

346,538 346.538 
Waste Water 9.027.11' 7.303.577 

  

( l.723.54o) 11.723.5401 
Munirapal Transit 3.X63.765 275.437 1.487.123 l S3.-97 

 

(L9I 7,40X1 (1.917.40X) 

Salutation 6,233.338 5.657.289 

  

t 576.(-0) (576.049) 

Zoological Park 3.432.'05 627.407 

  

4.2.804.7919 12.604.798) 

Golf Course 1.201 535 SI1.468 

  

1390.067) 1390.067) 

Interest and fiscal charges on long, tenn debt 4.568.367 

  

4,4. 508.367) (4 50s 367) 

It4al husiness-t}pe activities 11(..2c+3.633 129.990.105 2.7-7,123 234.347 

 

16. 707,942 16.-07.942 

Total arias-flies s 19-  (.14.91i7 $ 134.c87.647 S 16.180.134 S 1.727.656 (61.8.7.492) 16.7(1.042 t45.119.c50) 

(irneral to. eines: 

    

Taxes - 

    

Property taxes. levied for ceneral purpo,es 

 

9.9111.139 1.363.9()5 11.265.0-44 
Sales and use taxes. levied for general purposes 

 

59.354 839 

 

59 354 839 
Hotel ocuipancy taxes 

 

4Th.S51 

 

42S.SS1 
Fiallthase taxes 

 

53-1.249 

 

53-1.249 
Grants and contributions not rrstrkted to specific programs 

 

51 lb3 

 

51 163 
Interest and investment earmaigs 

 

2.918.584 '."93,359 5.213.943 

  

tins 98(1 214.741 l 291.721 

Nonemployrr pension contulmition 

 

1.192 079 

 

1.192.079 

Gainit loss) MI disposal of Lapital assets 

 

9.764 53.898 63.662 
Tiansfeis 

 

6,598.852 (6.59)1.852) 

 

Total genetal revenues and transfers 

 

82.066.500 (2.670.949) 79.3!15.551 

Clumge in net pa:talon 

 

20,239.008 14.036,993 34.276.001 
Net positron - begimung 

 

197.146 ,r77 121.8'2.961 319.619.938 

Net position - enduig 

 

S 21 7  385.985 S 135.909.954 S 353 295.939 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LOIJISIANA 

Balaiice Sheet 

Ciovernmental Fiinds 

Apiil 30. 2024 

 

General 

Fund 

Gelieral 

Capital 

Piojects Fund 

Odier 

Govenunelital 

Funds Totals 

ASSETS 

    

Cash and inteiest-bealing deposits $ 35.'35.659 $ 27,220,170 $ 28,174,881 $ 90,630,710 

Certificates of deposit 

 

- 1.306,465 1,306.-165 

Receivables. net 9.303,277 1,55).548 65',031 11,51)7.856 

Due horn orhei funds 6.764,416 116.670 319,007 7,200.093 

Due from othei govermnental agencies - 634,782 3,524 638,306 

Inventones 373,509 

  

373.509 

Total assets ti5l.fi76 N61 S 19.514.170 $ ;'0.455.908 $ 111.656.939 

LLABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 

    

OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 

    

Liabilities: 

    

Accounts pavahle S 1.14l,235 $ 17'1.956 $ -154,4-15 $ 1,818.636 

Salaiies payable 2.126.922 

  

2.126.922 

Due to other fimds 1.199.359 

 

9.013 1.208.372 

Total liabilities 4.467.516 222.956 463,458 5,153.9;0 

Deferred Inflows of Resonices: 

    

Unavailable revenues 

  

238,635 /38,635 

Film! balances 

    

Nonspendable 373.509 

  

373.509 

Restncted - 

    

Debt service 

  

1.639,460 1,639.460 

Capital projects 

 

28.201.214 24.265.868 52.467.082 

Comniitted 

    

Capital projects 

 

1,100.0(t1) 

 

1.100.000 

Econoinic development 

  

',979,695 2.979,695 

Assigned - 

 

868,792 868,792 

Unassigned 46,835,836 - 

 

46,835.836 

Total Mud balances 47.209.345 29,301.21-1 29.753,815 106,26-1.374 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 51.676.861 $ 29.524.170 $ 30.455.908 $ 111.656.939 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the hasic financial statements. 



CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 

to the Statement of Net Position 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2024 

Total fund balances for governmental funds 

Capital assets, net 

Long-term habilines: 

 

$ 106,264,374 

171,505,380 

Bonds payable S (8,(i10,000) 

 

Leased asset liability (114,268) 

 

Compensated absences (3,622,871) 

 

Accriied interest payahle (87,313) (12,434,452) 

Pensions: 

  

Net pension liahilitv (44,573,852) 

 

Deferred inflows of resources (12,690,577) 

 

Deferred outflows of resources 26,397,580 (30,866,849) 

Unearned revenue 

 

238,635 

Net posihon of the Internal Service Funds 

 

(17,321,1(13) 

Total net position of governmental activines 

 

S 217,385,985 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the hasic financial statements. 
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CITY C)F ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-

 

Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2024 

 

(ieneral 

Fund 

General 

Capital 

Projects Fund 

Other 

Governmental 

Funds Totals 

Revenues. 

Taxes: 

    

Property taxes $ 4,284,604 S S 5.616,535 $ 9.901,139 

Sales taxes 49,696,810 7,63/.175 /.025,754 59.354,839 

Franchise 534,249 

  

534,249 

Hotel occupancy taxes 

  

428,851 428,851 

Licenses and permits 3,638,122 

  

3.638,122 

Intergovernmental 12,615,570 2,177.304 838,604 15.631,478 

Charges for services 411,967 

 

327,053 750,020 

Fines and fees 209,400 

  

209,400 

Investment income 290,708 1,1 ?'.019 1.015,072 2.427,799 

Miscellanecnis 391,985 

  

3O,985 

Total revenues 72,085,415 10,931.598 10.75 1.869 93.768,881 

Expenditures. 

    

Current - 

    

General go% ernment 18,737,064 85.347 893,106 19.715,517 

Public safety 31,114,541 

  

32.124,542 

Public works 12,242,452 

  

12.242,452 

Community development 

  

871,901 871,901 

Capital outlay 4,213.860 4,175.593 1.563,050 9.952,503 

Debt service - 

    

Principal retirement 177,177 

 

2.445,000 2.622,177 

Interest and fiscal charges 7,268 

 

404,638 411,906 

Total expenditures 67.502,363 4,260.940 6.177,695 77.940,998 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditures 4,583,05? 6,670.658 4.074.174 15.327,884 

Other financing sources (uses): 

    

Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 9,764 

  

9,764 

Transfers in 9,971,000 100.000 - 10.071,000 

Transfers out (2.523,000) (724.599) (155,00(1) (3.432,599) 

Total other financina sources (uses) 7.457,764 (624.599) (185,0(>0) 6.648,165 

Net changes in fund balances 12,040,816 6,046.059 3.889,174 21.976,049 

Fund balances. beginning 35,168,529 23,255.155 25.864,641 84.288,325 

Fund halances. endin2 $ 47,209.345 S 29,301.214 S 29.753,815 $ 106.264.374 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the hasic financial statements. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Chanees in Fund Balances of Go% emmental Funds 
to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2024 

Total net changes in fund halances per Statement of Revenues. Expenditures 

  

and Changes in Fund Balances 

 

21,976,049 

Capital assets: 

  

Capital outlay, meeting the City's capitalization policy S 6,823,03() 

 

Depreciation expense (S.206,830) (1,383,800) 

Long-term debt. 

  

Principal payrnents - bonds 2,445,000 

 

Compensated absences 19,206 

 

Interest expense ?1,9)7 2.486.133 

Effect of GASB 87: 

  

Principal payments - leased assets 177,177 

 

Depreciation expense - leased assets (169,128) 8.049 

Net revenue (expense) of the Internal Service Fund 

 

(2,981,157) 

Unavailahle revenue 

 

(26,308) 

Effect of the change in net pension liability, deferred outflowsinflows of resources: 

  

Increase in pension expense .032,037) 

 

Nonempkyyer pension contribution re% enue recognized 1.192.079 160.042 

Total changes in net position per Statement of Activities 

 

S )0.")3().00S 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the hasic financial statements. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRI.A. LOUISIANA 

Statement of Net Position 
Proprietary Funds 

April 30. 2024 

  

 Busmess-Tvpe Activities  

Governmental 
Activities     

C)thei Total Internal 

(Hilly Enterpri, e Enterprise Service 
Svsterns Fund Fund Funds Fund 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 

    

Cash and interest-bearing deposits S 15,533.517 $ 16.425,990 $ 41.959.807 $ 12.518.938 

Certificates of deposit 1.517,201 - 1.517, )01 

 

Receivables. net 13.461.694 290,521 13.752.215 

 

Due from other govermnental agencies - - - 

 

Due from other funds 43.985 1,689,435 1,733.420 885.000 

Inventor les 9 943,278 

 

9.943.278 - 

Prepard expense - 

  

269.150 

Total current assets 50,490.076 18.405,946 t,8.005.91' 13.073.118 

Restricted assets: 

    

Cash and interest hearing deposns 38,836.532 

 

38.836,532 

 

Noncurrent assers: 

    

Capital assets 

    

Land and land improvements 2,398,084 1.090.965 3.489.049 

 

Construction and infrastructure in progress 16,103.429 

 

16.103.429 

 

Property, plant and equipment, net 178.532.706 11.443.510 189.976.5 It; 

 

Total noncurrent assets 235.870,751 12.534,775 2.18.-105 526 

 

Tntal assets 286 37U,727 30 940,721 317.311..415 13.973.118 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

    

Unamortized hond refunding charges 13.915,160 

 

13.915,160 

 

Deferied outflows of resources - pensions 15,631.5 Hi 4,65o.286 20,258.104 

 

Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB 

   

4.901.236 

Toral deferred outflows of resources /9.546.07S 4.650,286 34,203.264 4.001.2,36 

(continued) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the hasic financial statements. 
26 



C'ITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LOUISIANA 

Statement of Net Position 

Proprietaiy Funds (corninued) 

Apnl 30. 2024 

  

 Business-Tvpe Activities  

Goverumental 

.Xctiviti es 
    

Other Total Internal 

Utility Enterprise Enteiprise Service 

Systems Fund Fund Funds Fund 

LIABILITIES 

Current liabilities: 

    

Accounts payable $ 3.338.467 $ 20'.13i) $ 3.590.697 $ 201.223 

Salaries payable 863,197 246.627 1.109,824 

 

Due to other funds 5,190.658 3.419.483 8,(i10.141 

 

Compensated absences 238.612 36.767 " 75.379 

 

Claims payable - 

 

- 4.957,352 

Bonds payable 513.689 78,627 592.316 

 

Payable from restricted assets - 

    

Accmed interest 1,794).2 l 9 

 

1,799.219 

 

Bonds payable 29,015,000 

 

29,015,000 

 

Total cuirent liabilities 41,305.542 3.983,734 45,292,576 5,158,575 

Noncunent liabilities* 

    

Conipensated absences 1.352.132 208,344 1.560.476 

 

Customer guaranteed deposits 5.856.022 

 

5.856.022 

 

Claims payable 

   

7.714,742 

OPEB obligation payable 

 

- - 19,475.642 

Bonds payable 137.629,448 352.266 137.981,714 

 

Net pension liability 7.005,080 2.037.514 0.095.603 

 

Total noncurrent liabilities 151,545.61)1 2.648.124 154.493.X 15 27.190.384 

Total liabilities 193,154.533 6.631.858 199.786.391 32.348.95!) 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

    

Deferred inflows of resources - pensions 12.187.919 3.630.448 15.518,367 

 

Deferred inflows of resoruces - CrPEB 

   

3.846.498 

Total deferred inflows of resources 12,137.919 3.630.443 15.818.367 3.846.498 

NET POSITION 

    

Net investment in capital assets 97.444,931 12,182.509 109.627.440 

 

Restricted for deht service 24.736.646 - 24.736.646 

 

Restricted for Project Restor ',500.000 

 

1,500.000 

 

Resrricted for capital additions and contingencies 1.024.458 

 

1.024.458 

 

Unrestricted (15,130.782) 13.152,192 (1,978,590) (17.321,103i 

Total net position $ 110,575,253  $ 25.334,701  $ 135,909.954  $ 17.321,103) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the hasic financial statements. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA LOUISIANA 

Statement of Revenues. Expenses. and Changes in Fmid Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 

Eta the Year Ended April 30, 2024 

  

Business-Type 
Activities 

 

Goveitunental 

Activities 

 

Utility 

Systems Fund 

(Uhei 

Enterprise 

Fund 

Total 

Enterprise 

Funds 

hiternal 

Service 

Funl 

Operating ievenues: 

    

Charges for services S 122.618504 S 7,371.601 $ 129,9911,1AS S 14399,585 

Mei 207.551 7.190 214..741 1.117.17i 

Tutal operating revenues 122.826.055 7.378,791 13(1,204,846 15.516.760 

Operattng expenses: 

    

Salaries and wages 12.541.198 3.363,556 15,904.754 

 

Payaoll taxes 167.026 56.583 773.609 

 

Retirement 2.582.070 742.609 3.324.679 

 

Griiiip insurinice 1.911.279 {70.9t16 2.482.265 

 

General iiisurance 

   

517.464 

Claims 1.431.000 387.000 1,818.nnn 17.544.616 

Telephone anti utilities 2.orto.640 742.186 2,822.826 

 

Po ifesskuial services 3.419.338 1511.625 4.930.963 2.696.622 

Ecpiipment alid nails 1.405.175 61.557 1.466.732 

 

Depi roam ill 11.415.396 1.687.179 13. l 02,775 

 

Gas and oil 406.168 477.115 883,283 

 

Repairs and maintenance 12.792.905 1.469.793 14,262,698 

 

Supplies 2.663.694 550.566 3,214,260 

 

Miscellaneous 3.140 114.912 118.052 

 

Disposal costs - 7.258.535 2.'58.535 

 

Electricity and Natitral Gas Purchases 43.294.313 - -13.294,313 

 

Total operating expenses 96.113.342 13.994.402 I IV. I (17.7-14 20.758.701 

Opeianng income (loss) 26.712.713 ((,.61',.(,11) 2u.uQ7.1u2 I S.241.942) 

Ni an peranlig revenues (expenses): 

    

hoperty taxes 

 

1.363.905 1363,9n5 

 

Interest income 1,811.422 483.937 7.795359 490.785 

Grants and contributions 1.290.000 1.487.123 1.777,1, 3 

 

Provision foi net pensii .11 laibility. net 179.726 (47.6991 132.077 

 

Inkiest expense and other fiscal charges (4.502.8371 (5.530) (4.5+18.367) 

 

Gaiii,(loss) on sale of assets 27.326 16.572 53.898 

 

Total nonopeiating revenues (expenses) (1 1 J-1.3(>>1 3.308.308 2,113,945 490.785 

Income (loss) befoie capital contributions and transfers 25.518.350 (3.307,303) 22,211,n47 (4.751.157) 

Capital contnbuttons 50.550 183.797 234,347 

 

Tiansfers in 119.000 4.205.599 4324,599 1.770.000 

Tiansfers otit (10.490.000') (2.243.000) ill.733,nnni 

 

Change in net position 15.197.90(1 L160.907) 14,036.993 (2.981,157) 

Net positii beginning 95.377.353 '6.495.608 121.872.961 04.119.946) 

Net position. ending S 110.575.253 S 25.334.7n1 $ 135.909.954 $ 0 7.521.11131 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the hasic financial statements. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LOUISIANA 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Funds 

Fol the Year Ended April 30. 2024 

 

Business-Type Activities 

Governmental 

Activities 

 

Utility 
.S, steals Fauld 

Othei 

£nterpnse 
Funds 

Total 

Enterpnse 
Fund 

Internal 

Sery ice 
Fund 

Cash flows hum operating activities: 

    

Receipts from customers $ 121,191.720 $ 7.201,208 $ 128,392,928 $ 
Receipts from insured 

   

2,1(i4,695 

Receipts finial interfiind semces pionded 

 

- - 12,23O90 
Payments to supplien i 73.082.444) (7.675.504) (S0.757.94S) (3,245,050) 

Payments foi clauns aud loss time 

   

(14,469,738) 
Payments to employees (17.075,158) (4,678.602) (21.753.760) 

 

Other aeceipts 107.551 7.190 214.741 1.117.175 

Net cash provided (used) by gyrating activities 31.241.669 (5.145.70S) 26,105 961 (2,198,028 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities 

    

Proceeds from taxes levied 

 

1.363.905 1.363.905 

 

Grants aud contributions 

 

1.829,372 1,879,372 

 

Cash received (paid) florin() other hinds (61O9..941) 3,943.503 (2,896.438) 

 

Transfers horn othei funds 119.000 4.205.599 4,324.599 SS5,00l) 

Transfers to other funds (10.490.000) (2.243.000) f 12,733,048l) 

 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital 

financing activities ti 7.2 10.94 1) ci 069 3 79 (S.111.562) 885.000 

Cash flows from capital and ielated financing activities 

    

Pnneipal paid on loug lei in debt (5.-195.000) 

 

15,495.000) 

 

Pnneipal paid on leased assets (31.493) (69.265) (100.758) 

 

Interest aud fiscal vial ges paid on long term debt (3,874.445) (5,53(1) (3.879,975) 

 

Grants aud nther contributions 1,015.1-10 183,797 1,198,937 

 

Proceeds from sale of assets 27.326 38.770 66.096 

 

Acquisition Of piopeity. plant and eqwpment (5.204.940) (I .459.220) (6.664160) 

 

Net used by capital and ielated 

financing activities (13,563.412) (1.311,448) (14,874,8601 

 

Cash flows from investing activities 

    

Puichase of interest-bearing deposits with maturity 

in excess of ninety days (1.517.202) 

 

(1.517.202) 

 

Proceeds of interest-bearing deposits with maturity 

in excess of ninety days 2.500.000 

 

2.500.000 

 

Inteiest nn deposits 1.811.422 483.937 '.295,359 490,785 

Net cash piovided by investing activities 2.704.2'0 483.9:37 3.278.157 490,785 

Net increase (deciease) in cash aud cash equivalents 3.261.536 3.126.160 6,387.696 (822,243) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 61,108.813 13.299,830 74,408,643 13,641,181 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ (14.370,349 $ 16,-125.990  $ 80,796.339 $ 12.818.938 

(continued) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the hasic financial statements. 



CITY C)F ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 

Stateinent of Cash Flows t Continued ) 

Proprietary Funds 

Fnr the Year Ended April 30. 2024 

 

Busiu,2,,s-Type Act( %Ilk-, 

Governmental 

:Activities 

 

Utility 

Systenis Fund 

Otliet 

Enterprise 

Fiuids 

Total 

Enterprise 

Funds 

Intel nal 

Service 

Fund 

Reconciliation of operating income (kiss) to net cash 

provided (used) by openiting activities 

    

Operating mcnnie (loss) $ 26.712.713 $ (6.615,61O $ 20.097,102 $ (5.241.942) 

.Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to 

net cash provided (used) hy operating activities 

    

Depieciation 11.415.396 1.687,379 13.102,775 

 

Provision for OPEB related activity. net 

    

(Increase) decrease current assets 

    

Accounts receivable (1.384.46(1) (170,393) (1.554,853) 

 

haventories (4.401,95(i) 

 

(4,4o1,956) 

 

Prepaid expenses 

    

Increase (decrease) cunent Itahtlihrs 

    

Accounts payable (1.184,115) (102.215) (1,286,330) (3(t,964) 

Salaries payahle 156.360 63.37' 219,732 

 

Compensated absences (29,945) (8.240) (38,185) 

 

Cusrnmer guaranteed deposits (42.324) 

 

(42,324) 

 

Claims payable 

   

3.379.451 

Ner cash provided (used) by 

operating activities $ 31.241,669 S (5 145,708) $ 26,095,961 $ (2.198,028) 

Reconciliation nf cash and cash equivalents per statement 

of cash fluws tu statement of net position 

    

Cash and cash equivalents. beginning of period - 

    

Cash and interest-bearing deposits - unrestricted $ ' 1.337,9SI S 13,1 99.830 $ 35,637,811 $ 13.641,151 

Cash and interest-beanng deposits - iestricted 770  s32 

 

18.770.832 

 

Total cash and cash equivalents 61.108.813 13 299.830 74.4u8.6.43 13.641.151 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period - 

    

Cash and interest-beanng deposits - unrestricted 25.533,817 16.425..990 41,959,807 12.818,938 

Cash and interest-bearing deposits - resuicted 38.836.532 

 

38.836.53' 

 

Total cash and cash equivalents 64,370,349 16,425.990 80.796,339 12,818.938 

Net increase (decrease) $ 3.261.536 `4. 3.126.160 $ 6.357.696 $ (822.243) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the hasic financial statements. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
Fiduciary Funds 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2024 

Pension Trust Funds 

C ity ot City of 
Alexandria Alexandria 

Employees' Firemen's 
Retirement Pension and 

System Relief Fund 

 

(1' 31.2(Y22) (4.30:2024) Totals 

ASSETS 

   

Cash and interest-bearing deposits $ 5,532,419 $ 25,154 $ 5,557,573 

Accrued interest and dividends receivable 1.031,7£+1 

 

1.021.781 
Investments, at fair value 

   

Corporate bonds 85,525,553 

 

85,5'5,553 

Corporate stocks 124.436.247 

 

124,436,247 

Total investments 209,961,800 

 

209,961,800 

Capital assets 

Furnitures, fixtures and equipment, net 26 

 

26 

Total assets 216,516.026 25,154 216.541,180 

LIABILITIES 

   

Liabilities: 

   

Payroll taxes withheld 780 

 

780 

NET POSITION 

   

Restricted 216,515,246 S 25,154 S 216.540,40(1 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the hasic financial statements. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Chanees in Fiducian Net Position 
Fiduciary Funds 

For the Year Ended April 30. 2(124 

l'ension Tnist Funcls 

City of City ol 
Alexandria Alexandria 

Employees' Firemen's 
Retirement Pension and 

System Relief Fund 

 

(12'31.2023) (430. 2024) Totals 

Additions. 

Contributions 

   

Employer $ 5,246,271 

 

$ 5.246,271 

Plan Members 2,183.163 

 

2,183,163 

Purchased service, transfer, etc. 754,228 

 

754:)/8 

Total contributions £+,183.6G? 

 

8,183,662 

Investment earnings. 
Net appreciation {depreciation) in fair value of 

investments 

22,539,873 

 

22,539,873 

Interest 3,343.983 1.108 3,345,091 

Dividends 2.699.630 

 

2,699,630 

Total investment earnings 28,583,486 1,108 28,584,594 

Total additions 36.767.148 1.1()8 36,768,256 

Deductions: 

   

Benefit payments, excluding DROP benefits 12,100.641 13.756 12,114,397 

DROP benefits 1,123,401 

 

1.123,401 

Employee refunds 55G,4£+9 

 

556,489 

Administrative expenses 187,900 

 

1g7 900 

Total deductions 13.908.431 13.756 13,982,187 

Net increase (decrease) 22,798.717 (12.648) 22,786,069 

Net Position Restricted thr Pensions, beginning of 
year 193,716.529 37.802 193,754,331 

Net Position Restricted for Pensions. end of year S 216.515.2-16 S 25.154 S 216.540,400 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the hasic financial statements. 



CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LC)UISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Stateinents 

( 1 ) Surnmary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompanying financial statements of the City of Alexandria (City) have been prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. GAAP 
includes all relevant Govermnental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The accounting 
and reporting framework and the more significant accounting policies are discussed in subsequent 
subsections of this note. 

A. Financial Reporting Entity 

The City of Alexandria, Louisiana (City) is governed under the provisions of the Home 
Rule Charter adopted June 7, 1977. The City operates under a Mayor-City Council form of 
government. The City Council is comprised of se‘ en members (two members are elected at 
large, and one member is elected from each of the five districts of the City for terms of four 
years). The City pro% ides the following services to the residents of the City as authorized by 
its charter: police and fire protection. street and drainage systems, utility services including 
electricity, gas. water, wastewater. and waste disposal, parks and recreation, planning and 
zoning, and economic development programs. 

A financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary gm ernment. (b) organizations 
for which the priniary government is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for 
which the prirnary government is not accountable, but for which the nature and significance of 
their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the 
reporting entity's financial statements to he misleadMg or incomplete. GASB estahlishes 
criteria fbr determining which entities should be considered a component unit and, as such, part 
of the reporting entity for financial reporting purposes. The basic criteria are as tbllows: 

I A potential component unit must have separate corporate powers that distinguish it as being 
legally separate from the primary government. These include the right to incur its own deht, 
levy its own taxes and charges, expropriate property in its own name, sue and be sued in 
its own name without recourse to a State or local go‘ernment. and the right to buy. sell, 
lease, ancl mortgage property in its own name. 

2. The prirnary government must be financially accountahle for a potential component unit. 
Financial accountability may exist as a result of the primary government appointing a 
voting majority of the potential component unit's governing body: their ability to impose 
their will on the potential component unit by significantly inthiencing the programs, 
projects, activities. or level of services performed or provided by the potential component 
unit: or the existence of a financial benefit or burden. In addition. financial accountability 
may also exist as a result of a potential component unit being fiscally dependent on the 
primary government. 

In some instances, the potential component unit should be Mcluded in the reporting 
entity (even when the criteria above are not met), if exclusion would render the reporting 
entity's financial statements incomplete or nusleading. 

Based on the above criteria, the Citv has no component units. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LC)UISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

B. Basis of Presentation 

Government-Wide Financial Staternents (GWFS) 

The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the 
City of Alexandria, the primary government, as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting 
entity, except fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between governrnental and business-
type activities. Governmental acti‘ities generally are financed through taxes, 
intereovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. Business-type activities are 
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services. The 
City's internal service funds are a governmental activity. Internal service fund activity is 
eliminated to avoid "doubling up" revenues and expenses 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program 
revenues for the business-type actnities of the City and fbr each function of the City's 
eovemmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a 
program or fitnction and, therefore. are clearly identifiable to a particular finiction. Program 
revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered 
by the programs, and (h) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational 
or capital requirernents of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program 
revenues, includine all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements (FFS) 

The accounts of the City are organized and operated on the basis of fttnds. A fund is 
an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a separate set of self-balancing accounts. 
Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid 
management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual 
provisions. The minimum number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and managerial 
requirements Fund financial statements report detailed information about the City. 

The various funds of the Citv are classified into two categories: governmental and 
proprietary. The ernphasis on fund financial statements is on major governrnental and 
enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. A fund is considered major if it is the 
primary operating fund of the City, is determined major at management's discretion, or meets 
the following enteria: 

a. Total assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual 
governmental or enterprise fitnd are at least 10 percent of the 
corresponding total for all funds of that category or type: and 

b. Total assets and deferred outflows. liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual 
governmental or enterpnse fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding 
total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LC)UISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

The rnajor funds of the City are described below: 

Governmental Funds — 

General Fund 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for 
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

General Capital Projects Fund 

This fund accounts for various capital projects. Funding is provided by 
intergovernrnental grants and sales taxes dedicated to capital improvements. 

Enterprise Fund — 

utility Systems Fund 

The Utility Systems fund is used to account for operations (a) that are tinanced and 
operated in a manner sinular to private business enterpnses - where the intent of the governing 
body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the 
general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; 
or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, 
expenses incurred. and-or net income is appropnate for capital maintenance. puhlic policy, 
management control, accountability, or other purposes. The City records revenues and 
expenditures ftom the sales of electricity, natural gas, water and sewer sen ices in this fund. 

In addition to the major ftinds descrihed above, the City reports the following: 

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services 
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the governmental 
unit, or to other governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis. The City's internal service 
funds are the Risk Management Fund, Employee Benefits Insurance Fund and the 
Unemployment Benefits Fund. The City's internal sen ice funds are presented in the 
proprietary fimd financial statements. Because the principal users of the internal services are 
the City's governmental activities. the financial statements of the internal service funds are 
consolidated into the governmental column when presented in the government-wide tinancial 
statements. To the extent possible. the cost of these services is reported in the appropriate 
fttnctional activity These proprietary funds are reported with the governmental activities in 
the government-wide statements. 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, 
including other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the City. The City maintains 
the City of Alexandria Employees' Retirement System Fund and the City of Alexandria 
Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund to account tbr the City's ernployee pension funds. Trust 
funds are used to account for assets held hy the government in a trustee capacity. The financial 
statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis 
of accounting. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LC)UISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Measurement Focus; Basis of Accounting 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "which" transactions are recorded within 
the various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" transactions are recorded 
regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

Measurement Focus 

On the government-wide statement of net position and the statement of activities, both 
governmental and business-type activities are presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus as defined in item h below. 

In the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources" measurement focus 
or the "zconomic resources" measurement focus is used as appropriate: 

a All eovernmental funds utilize a "current financial resources" measurement 
focus. Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on 
their balance sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of 
available spendable financial resources during a given period. These funds use 
fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources at the 
end of the period. 

h The proprietary fund utilizes an "economic resources" measurement focus. 
The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of 
operating income, changes in net position (or cost recovery), financial 
position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or 
noncurrent) associated with their activities are reported. Proprietary fund 
equity is classified as net position. 

Basis of Accounting 

In the governinent-wide statement of net position and statement of activities, hoth 
governrnental and business-type activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are 
recorded when the liability is incurred, or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, 
losses, assets. and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are 
recognized when the exchange takes place. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recognized as soun as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to he 
availahle when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay 
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be 
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. 
Expenditures (including capital outlay) generally are recorded when a liahility is incurred, as 
under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures are recorded only when 
payment is due. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LC)UISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

The proprietary fund utilizes the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual hasis 
of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the 
liability is incurred, or economic asset used. 
Program revenues 

Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities are derived directly from the 
program itself or from parties outside the City's taxpayers or citizens, as a whole: program 
re‘ enues reduce the cost of the function to he financed from the City's general revenues. 

Allocation of indirect expenses 

The City reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct 
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect expenses of other 
functions are not allocated to those functions but are reported separately in the Statement of 
Activities. Depreciation expense is specifically identified by function and is included in the 
direct expense of each function. Interest on 2eneral long-term deht is considered an indirect 
expense and is reported separatdy on the Statement of Activities. 

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities. I)eferred Inflows ancl Equity 

Cash and interest-bearing deposits 

For purposes of the statement of net position, cash and interest-bearing deposits include 
all demand accounts and sat ings accounts deposits of the City. Certificates of deposits with 
maturities in excess of six months are presented in the financials as a separate line item. For 
the purpose of the proprietary fund statement of cash flows. "cash and cash equivalents'. 
include all demand and savings accounts, and certificates of deposit or short-term investments 
with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased. 

Investments 

Under state law, the Citv may deposit funds with a tiscal aeent organized under the 
laws of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the union, or the laws of the United 
States. The City may invest in United States bonds. treasury notes and bills, government backed 
agency securities, or certificates and time deposits of state banks organized under Louisiana 
Law and national banks having principal offices in Louisiana. Investments are reported at fair 
market value. 

Interfund receivables and payables 

During the course of operations. numerous transactions occur between individual funds 
that may result in amounts owed between funds. Those related to goods and services type 
transactions are classified as "due to and from other funds." Short-term interfund loans are 
reported as "interfund receivables and payables." Lon2-term interfund loans (noncurrent 
portion) are reported as "advances from and to other funds." Interfund receivables and payables 
between funds within governmental activities are eliminated in the statement of net position 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LC)UISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Receivables 

In the 2overnment-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-
end and not yet received. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include ad 
valorem, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts and sales and use taxes. Major receivables 
of the Business-type actiuties include customer's utility service receivables as well as 
estimated unbilled services at April 30, 2024. In addition, the City records other receivables 
for loans and intergovernmental gams. Receivables are shown net ofan allowance fm doubtful 
accounts and are hased on management estimate of their collectability. 

Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market, with the 
exception of central warehouse inventory and fuel, which are valued at average cost. 

entories are accounted for in the funds using the consumption method, whereby 
expenditures are recognized as inventory is used. 

Prepaid Expenses 

Certain payrnents to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and 
are recorded as prepaid expenses in both government-wide and proprietary fund financial 
statements. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets. which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are 
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-
wide or tinancial statements. C'apital assets are capitalized at acquisition cost or estimated cost 
if acquisition is not m ailable. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated 
fair market value at the date of donation. 
threshold.s as follows: 

The City maintains minimum capitalization 

Land All costs 
Buildings and building improvements $100,000 
Machinery and equipment $5,1100 
Furniture and Fixtures $5,000 
Vehic les $5.000 
Infrastructure $250,000 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the vahie of the asset 
or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. These assets have been valued at estimated 
acquisition cost. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the 
statement of activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net assets. 
Depreciation is prmided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method 
of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows: 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LC)UISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Buildings and buikling improvements 10-40 years 

Furniture and tixtures 3-10 years 

Plant, equipment and infrastructure 3-50 years 

Vehicles 3-10 years 

In the fund tinancial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations 
are accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. 
Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same as in the 
government-wide statements. 

Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets include cash and interest-hearing deposits of the propnetary fund that 
are legally restncted as to their use. The restricted assets are related to revenue bond accounts 
and custoiner deposits 

Unearned Revenues 

Unearned revenues arise when resources are received before the City has a legal claim 
to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. 
In subsequent periods, when the City has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for 
unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheet and the revenue is recognized. 

Long-term debt 

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in 
governmental fund operations or propnetary fund operations and whether they are reported in 
the government-wide or fund tinancial statements. 

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental anJ business-type resources is 
reported as liabilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term debt consists 
prirnarily of the revenue bonds payable and state revolving loan funds. 

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental resources is reported as habihties 
in the government-wide statements. 

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund 
financial statements. The debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of 
principal and interest reported as expenditures. For fund financial reporting, issuance costs, 
even if withheld from the actual net proceeds received, are reported as debt service 
expenditures. The accounting for proprietary fund long-term debt is the same in the fimd 
stateinents as it is in the govenunent-wide statements. 

Compensated Absences 

Employees of the City can earn nation pay in N arying amounts ranging from eiality 
(80) hours a year to a maximum of two-hundred and sixty-four (264) hours a year, depending 
upon length of service and type of employee. At the end of each year. annual leave may be 
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carried forward prol, ided the arnount earned forward does not exceed five hundred and twenty-
eight (528) hours. Unused vacation is paid to an employee upon retirement or resignation at 
hourly rates being earned at separation. 

Sick leave is accumulated at the rate of eight hours per month, and any unused sick 
lea% e may be carried forward without limitation. Upon resignation, termination or retirement, 
employees are paid out of their accumulated sick leave. 

In the government-wide and proprietary fund tinancial statements, the City accrues 
accurnulated unpaid vacation and sick leave and associated related costs when earned (or 
estimated to be earned) by the employee The current portion is the amount estimated to be 
used:paid in the following year. The remainder is reported as non-current 

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred 
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to 
a future period and thus, will not be recognized as an outtlow of resources 
(expenses. expenditure) until then. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes repon a separate 
section for deferred intlows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred 
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a 
future period and so will not be recomized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 

Equity Classifications 

In the go% ernment-wide statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed 
in three components: 

Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets including 
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes. or other borrowing that 
are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 
assets. 

Restricted net position — Consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities 
and deterred inflows of resources related to those assets Constraints may 
be placed on the use, either by (1) external groups. such as creditors, 
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (2) 
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted net position — Net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities. and deferred inflows of resources that are not included 
in either of the other two categories of net position. 

Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements. 
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In the fund statements, governmental fund equity is classified as fund halance. 

Nonspendahle — amounts that cannot be spent either hecause they are in 
nonspendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to he 
maintained intact. 

Restricted — amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or because of constraints that 
are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or 
regulations of other governments. 

Committed — amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined 
hy a formal action of the council members. The Council is the highest level 
of decision-making authority for the City. Conunitments may he established, 
modified. or rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions approved by 
council members. 

Assigned - amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted 
or conunitted but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. Under the 
City's adopted policy, only council members or the City's finance committee 
may assign amounts for specific purposes. 

Unassigned — all other spendable amounts. 

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted 
fund halance is available. the City considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an 
expenditure is incurred tbr which committed, assiped, or unassigned fund balances are 
available, the City considers amounts to have been spent tirst out of committed funds, then 
assigned funds, and tinally unassigned funds, as needed. unless Council members or the fmance 
committee has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions. 

Revenues, Expenditures. and Expenses 

Operating Revenues and Expenses 

Operating re‘enues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from 
providing services and producing and delivering goods and. or services. It also includes all 
revenue and expenses not related to capital and related financing, noncapital financing, or 
investing activities. 

Expenditures/Expenses 

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for 
both eovernmental and business-type activities 

In the fund tinancial statements, expenditures are classified by character in the 
governmental fund.s and by operating and nonoperating expenditures in the proprietary 
fund financials. 
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In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial 
resources Proprietary funds report expenses relating to use of economic resources. 

IntCrfind Transfers 

Pernianent reallocations of resources between funds of the reporting entitv are 
classified as interfund transfers. For the purposes of the statement of activities, all interfund 
transfers between individual governmental funds have been eliminated. 

E. Revenue Restrictions 

I-he City has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from state or local 
requirements. The primary restricted reverme sources include restrictions related to Sales Tax 
Note 3, Ad Valorem Taxes for the Repayment of Debt Note I I, and Utilities System revenue 
Note 12 

F. tJse of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statetnents in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

G. Pensions 

The net pension liability. deferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense has been determined using the flow of 
economic resources measurement focus and full accrual hasis of accounting. Non-employer 
contributions are recognized as revenues in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial 
statements. In the governmental fund financial statements contrihutions are recoenized 
expenditures when due. 

H. Postemplovment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB) 

The net OPEB liability, defened outflows of resources. and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense has been determined using the flow of economic 
resources measurement focus and full accmal basis of accountinit. In the governmental fund 
financial statements contributions are recognized as expenditures when due. 

(2) Ad Valorem Taxes 

Ad valorem taxes attach as an entbrceable hen on property as ofJanuary l of each year. Taxes are 
levied by the City in October and are actually billed to taxpayers in Novemher. Billed taxes become 
delinquent on January I of the following year. The City hills and collects its own property taxes using the 
assessed values determined by the tax assessor of Rapides Parish. Property tax revenues are recognized 
when levied to the extent that they result in current receivables. 
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For the vear ended April 30, 2024, taxes of 24.54 mills were levied on property with assessed 
valuations of S449,786,390 and were dedicated as follows: 

Street and Drainage 11.51 mills 

General purpose 6.98 mills 
Zoo. capital projects and general corporate purposes 6.05 mills 

Total 24.54 mills 

(3) Dedication of Proceeds and Flow of Funds - Sales and tise Tax 

Proceeds of the 1976 one percent (1%) City Sales and Use Tax are dedicated with one-half to be 
used for maintenance and operating expenses of the City The other one-half is used in the following order 
of pnonty: On or before the 20th day of each month. they should transfer to a Sales Tax Bond Sinking 
Account in the Debt Service Fund, an amount equal to 1:6th of the interest falling due on the next interest 
payment date and 1-12th of the principal falling due on the next principal payment date of all sales tax bond 
issues outstanding. Any funds remaining after the ahove transfers will he considered surplus and may be 
used for constructing, acquiring, extending, and or improving capital improvements for the City (including, 
but not limited to, major thoroughfares and arterial streets with related improvements, major drainage 
systems. a en ic convention center complex. parks. and parking facilities). 

Proceeds of the 2005 one-half percent (.50%) City Sales and Use Tax are dedicated to paying 
salaries and related benefits for police, fire. and other City employees funded through the City's General 
Fund. 

Proceeds of the .2008 one percent (1%) City Sales and Use Tax are dedicated to fund General Fund 
operations including no less than one-third of the tax collected is dedicated to fire, police, and General Fund 
classified employees' salaries and to replace Cieneral Fund revenues lost from federal and state government 
funding cuts from previous year and street repair; street cleaning; maintenance of city drainage systems; 
grass cutting: maintenance of parks and recreational facilities; police and fire services and programs; 
general building maintenance; demolition of condemned structures; and city planning. 

(4) Cash and Interest-Bearing Deposits 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that. in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, the City's deposits may not be recovered or the City will not he able to recover the collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. These deposits are stated at cost, which 
approximates market. The City does not have a policy for custodial credit risks: however, under state law, 
these deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge 
of securities owned by the pledging financial institution The market value of the pledged securities plus 
the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the financial institution. 
These securities are held in the name of the pledging financial institution in a holding or custodial bank that 
is mutually acceptable to both parties. Deposit balances thank balances) at April 30. 2024, are secured as 
follows: 
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Bank balances $ 155,409 603 

Federal deposit insurance $ 500,000 
Uninsured and collateral held hy pledging bank not in the Citys name 154,909.603 

Total S 155,409,603 

(5) Investments 

The City of Alexandria Employees' Retirement System (COAERS) carrying amounts and 
approximate market values of investments are reported as of December 31. 2023 and summarized below: 

Investment Type Fair Value 

 

Investment NIaturnies (1n Years) 

 

Le‘o, than I 1 -- 5 -- 10 More than 10 
Corporate bonds $ £i5,196,?6ti $ $ 2,283.452 $ 24,250,891 S 58,(i61,923 
GNMA notes 329.'87 

   

3/9./87 

Total interest-beanng 85.515,553 $ $ 2,283.45' S 14.250,84)1 S 55.991,210 

Common stocks 122.321.977 

    

Preferred stocks 2A 14,270 

     

S 209,961.800 

    

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value 
of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its value 
to changes in market interest rates. The System does not have a formal investment policy that limits 
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair vahie losses arising from increasing 
interest rates. Interest rates for the interest-hearing investments are as follows: 

Investment-Type Interest Rates    
Corporate bonds 

GNMA notes  

1.90 - 8.75°.6 
2.00% 

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, the System will not be able to recover the value of its 
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. All of System's investments 
are held by the System or its aL,ent in the System's name. 

Credit Risk: The System may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes. or time certificates of 
deposit of any bank domiciled or having a branch office in the State of Louisiana, investments as stipulated 
in state law, or any other federally insured investment. In addition, the System may invest in corporate 
stocks and bonds. The Systeas hwestment policies limit its corporate debt investments to bonds rated at 
least BBB by Standards and Poor's or Baa by Moody's Investor Services. Moody's Investor Services credit 
ratings of the System's corporate bonds are summarized below. Due to the extraordinary market conditions 
experienced during the past several years, management determined that it would be detrimental to the 
System to sell the bonds whose credit ratings dropped below Baa. 
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Moody's Investor Service Credit Ratings Fair Value 
A or better $ 76,275,406 
BBB 8,920,860 

85.196,266 

The System categorizes its fair ‘alue measurements within the fair ‘alue hierarchy established by 
eenerally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure 
the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets: Level 2 
inputs are significant other observable inputs: Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The 
System has recurnng fair value measurements of $209,961.800, as of December 31, 2023, which are 
categorized as level 1 inputs. 

(6) Receivables 

the following: 

Governmental 

Activities 

Business-Type 

Activities Total 

Receivables at April 30, 2024 consisted of 

Receivables 

    

Taxes - sales $ 9,321,801 $ 

 

$ 9.321,801 
Taxes - ad valorem 947,699 

  

947,699 

Taxes - hotel motel £0,201 

  

£;(1?01 

Accounts: 

    

Uncollected cycle hillings 

  

10,179,191 10,179,191 

Estimated unhilled services 

  

5,646.650 5,646,650 
Interest 12,845 

 

4.825 17,670 

Other 2,113,916 

 

497.397 2,611,313 

Gross receivables 12,476,462 

 

16.3 , 8.063 28.804.525 

Allowance for uncollectibles 968,606 

 

2,575.848 3,544,454 

Net receivables 11.507,85(, 

 

13.752.215 -)5.160.071 

Receivables of $947,699 related to ad valorem taxes consists of taxes uncollected for current and 
previous years, including accumulated costs for penalties, interest. grass cuttings, etc. Management ha.s 
determined that these amounts will be uncollectihle and has established an allowance for doubtful accounts 
of $947,699. An additional allowance of $20,907 is related to other receivables. 

An allowance of doubtful accounts of 52.575,848 has been established for the receivables related 
to Utility services incurred hy customers of the City. This amount represents management's estimate of the 
amount =collectible at year end April 30. 2024. 
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17) Accounts Payable 

Accounts payable at April 30, 2024 consisted of the following: 

 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Acti‘ ities 

Internal Service 
Funds Totals 

Accounts payahle S 1,590,2.10 $ 3,484,839 $ 201,2'3 $ 5,276,302 

Retainage payable 129.639 24.865 

 

154,504 
C)ther liabilities 98,757 80.993 

 

179,750 

Total ', 1.81 .636 '1, 3.590.697 $ 201.223 $ 5,610,556 

18) Due from Other Governmental Agencies 

Due from other governmental agencies at April 30, 2024 consisted of the followine: 

 

Governmental Business-Type 

  

Activities Activities Totals 

Federal grants S 3,524 S s 3,524 

State grants 634.782 

 

634,7ti2 

Tota 1 $ 638,306 '5 638,306 

(9) Restricted Assets 

 

Business-type activities: 

Revenue bonds current debt service $ 6,689,219 

Customer's deposits 5,856,0' ) 

MISO deposits 500,975 

Cash in Escrow - 2014 Utility Revenue Bonds 24,125,000 

Revenue bonds future debt service 517.081 

ReN enue bonds capital additions and contingencies 1,148,:235 

Total business-type activities S 
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(10) Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity was as follows: 

Beginning 
Balance Additii Deletions 

Ending 
Balance 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not heing depreciated: 

    

Land and land improvements S 14.636.292 S S - S 14,636.292 
Construction and infrastnicture progress 13.412.465 4.151.775 7,114.443 10.449.797 

Total capital assets not being 
depreciated 1 K.048.757 4,151.775 7,114.443 25,086.089 

Capital assets heing depreciated: 

    

Buildings and improvements 110.032.271 

  

110,032.271 
Furruture and fixtures 931.316 

  

931.316 
Equipment 17.491.989 1,190.786 114.025 18,568.750 
Vehicles 18.948.836 1,480.469 

 

"0,429.3115 
Leased assets 867.583 

  

867.583 
Intrastructure 169.794.471 7.114.443 

 

176,908.914 

Total capital assets being 

depreciated 318.066.466 9.785.69K 114.1P 5 3.7,738.139 

Less accumulated depreciatii in 

    

Buildings and improvements 62.837.912 2.715.697 

 

65,553.609 
Furruture and fixtures 911.9(18 19.4118 

 

931.316 
Equipment 16.631.554 795.236 114.1125 17,312.765 
Vehicles 13.832.1)06 94'7.'54 

 

14,774.26(1 
Leased assets 6i1i1.607 169.128 

 

769.735 
Infrastructure 78.242.928 3,734.235 

 

81,977.163 

Total accumulated depreciation 173.056.915 8,375.958 114.025 181,318.84S 

Total capital assets being 

depreciated. net 145.009.551 1,409.740 

 

146,419.291 

Governmental activities. 
capital assets. net S 173.058,308 S 5.561.515 S 7.114.443 S 171.505.380 

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows. 

 

General aovernment S ),033,591 
Puhlic safety 1,275,437 

Public works 4,948,622 

Economic development 118,307 

Total depreciation expense S 8.375,958 

Capital asset activity for business-type activities was as follows: 
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Beginning 

Balance Additions Deletions 

Ending 

Balance 
Business-type activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

    

Land and land improvements $ 3.489,049 S - $ $ 3.489,049 

Construction and infrastructure progress 14.381.5S3 1.721.846 

 

16.103.429 

Tšual capital assets not being 

depreciated 17.871(.632 1.721.846 

 

19.592.478 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

    

Plant and infrastructure 410.905.611 2.821.512 365.071 413.362.052 
Buildings and improvements 11.455,436 - 

 

11.455,436 

Vehicles and buses 17.624.721 1.908,749 

 

19.533.470 
Leased assets 367,254 438,778 215.617 590,415 

Furniture. fixtures and equipment 1.658,074 212,049 64.941 1.81(5,182 

Total capital assets being 

depreciated 442.011,096 5.381,088 (45.629 446.746,555 

Less accumulated depreciation 

    

Plant and infrastructure 221.718,148 11.049,168 365.071 232.402,745 

Buildings and improvements 8.170.683 568,196 

 

8.838.879 
Vehicles and buses 12.901.456 1.212,966 

 

14.114.422 

Leased assets 246.237 91.544 206.632 131.149 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1.164.l 73 180,9(11 61.730 1.283,344 

Total accumulated depreciation '44.3( H).697 13.11)2.775 633.433 '56,77(1.019 

Total capital assets being 

depreciated. net 197.710399 (7.721.687) 12.196 189.976.516 

Business-type activities. 
capital assets. net $ 215.5s1.031 S (5.999.841) S 12.196 $ 209.568,994 

Depreciation expense was charged to the business-type activities as follows: 

 

Elec tricity $ 6.713.770 

Natural gas 1,371,882 

Water 1.692.110 

Wastewater 1.637.634 

Municipal bus line 518,662 

Sanitation /33,353 

Municipal zoo 640,479 

Municipal golf course 294M5 

Total depreciation expense $ 13,102.775 
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A summary of siimilicant construction projects the Utilities System Enterprise Fund is presented 
below: 

 

Project 

Authorization 

Expended to 

Date Commitment 

Electric $ 23,344.746 $ 9,330,307 $ 1,413.16£ 

Water 18,792.062 3,721,356 2,896,273 

Gas 6,812,749 3,185,160 847,460 

Wastewater 5,680.184 119,551 1,421.152 

General and administrative 1,666.868 119,887 8.400 

Totals $ 56,296,609 $ 16,476,261 $ 6,616,453 

(11) Lonti.-Term  

The following is a summary of the governmental activ ities long term debt: 

 

Beginning 
Bal.ince Additions Reductions 

Endnig 
BAance 

Due Within 
One Year 

Governmental activities: 

     

Sales tax revenue bonds S 11.1155.000 S $ 2.445,ititit S 8,610,000 S 1.565,000 

Leased asset liability (Note 18) 291,445 

 

177.177 114,268 47,537 
Compensated absences. net 3,642,077 

 

19,206 3.622..871 543,430 
Claims payable 9,292,613 16,249.602 12.870,121 12,672,094 4.957,35' 

Total governmental activities 

long term habiltities $ 24.281.135 S 16,249.602 $ 15.511.51)4 $ 25.019,233 S 7.113,319 

The compensated absences, net liability above is the obligation of the City and will be liquidated 
primarily from the general fund. See Note 18 for additional information on the leased asset liability. 

On May 28, 2014, the City issued $6,895,000 in Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2014, with an 
average interest rate of 2.05%, to advance refund $9,770,000 of outstanding Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, 2004 
Issue, with an average interest rate of 1.99%. Interest on the bonds is paid semi-annually in February and 
August, with principal payments occurring in August each fiscal year end. These bonds are secured by and 
payable from an irrevocable pledge and dedication of one half of the City's special one percent (1°40 sales 
and use tax. Events of default are outlined in the official statement of the Series 2014 bond and mclude failure 
to reinit payments timely. In addition, failure to observe or perform any other agreement contained in the 
official statement that is not remedied within 45 days of receivine written notice will be considered a default 
The sole remedy in the event of fault under the certificate shall be an action to compel performance. As of 
April 30, 2024. these bonds were matured. 

On November 24, 2015, the City issued $15,795,000 in Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2015, 
with an average interest rate of 1.84%. to adl, ance refund $15,345.000 of outstanding Sales Tax revenue 
Bonds, Series 2008, with an average rate of interest of 2.37%. Interest on the bonds is paid semiannually in 
February and August. with principal payments occurring in August each fiscal year end. These bonds are 
secured by and payable from an irrevocable pledge and dedication of one half of the City's special one percent 

49 



CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LC)UISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

(1%) sales and use tax. Events of default are outlined in the official statement of the Series 2014 bond and 
include failure to remit payments timely. In addition, failure to observe or perform any other agreement 
contained in the official statement that is not remedied within 45 days of receiving written notice will be 
considered a default. The sole remedy in the event of fault under the certificate shall be an action to compel 
performance. 

Governmental activities Ion -term liabilities are comprised of the following. 

Issue Maturity Interest Balance 

Governmental Activities Date Dates Rates Outstandine 

Sales tax revenue bonds 

Series 2015- RefUnding 11 24 2015 8/1. 2028 2.00 - 5.00% S S.6 10.000 
  

The annual debt service requirements to maturity of all governmental actnities debt are as 
follows. 

Year Ending 

April 30. 

Principal 

Payments 

Interest 

Payments Total 

2025 S 1.565,000 $ 317,975 S 1,882,975 

)016 1.645,00(1 /37,71 5 1,882,725 

2027 1.730,000 153,350 1,883350 

1 0)8 1.810,000 82,950 1,892,950 

2029 1.860,000 27,900 1,887,900 

Totals S 8,610,00(1 $ 819,900 S 9,429,900 

The following is a summary of business-type actnities long term debt. 

 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions 

Ending 
Balance 

Due Within 
One Year 

Business-type activities. 

     

Urilatv revenue bonds $ 165,775,000 $ 

 

$ 4.730,000 $ 161,045,000 $ 29,015,000 
Siate tevolving loans 7.148,448 

 

765,000 6.383.448 784,000 
Leased asset liability (Note 

     

18) 122.562 438,778 100.758 460.582 108.316 
Compensated absences, net 1,874.040 

 

38,1S5 1,s 3 5.s5 5 275,379 

Total loiag-tenn 
habalitites 174,920,050 438,778 5,633,943 l69,724,S85 30,182,695 

Customea deposals. net 5,90'1.036 

 

46.014 5.856.022 

 

Umunortized bond refundin2 

charges (14,62-1.740) 

 

709.5S0 (13.915,160) 

 

Total business- type 
activaties $ 166,197.346 438.7'8 $ 6.389.537 S 161.665.74' S 30.182.695 
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The compensated absences, net liability abo% e is the obligation of the City and will be liquidated 
primarily from the enterprise fund the liability is associated with. See Note 18 for additional information 
on the leased asset liability. 

On October 1, 2013, the City Issued $9,420,000 in Utilities Revenue Refianding Bonds, Series 
2013A. with an average interest rate of 2.22% and $13.720.000 in Taxable Utilities Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 20I3B, with an average Interest rate of 1.81 t! 6, to advance refund $24,900,000 of outstanding 
Utility Revenue Bond.s. Series 2004, with an a‘ erage Interest rate of 2.33°.;.. Interest on the bonds is paid 
semi-annually in May and November with principal payments occurring in May each tiscal year end. These 
bonds are secured by and payable from an irrel, ()cable pledge and dedication of the Utihty System revenues. 
Events of default are outlined in the official statements of the Series 2013A and Series 2014B bonds and 
include failure to remit pyments timely. In addition, failure to observe or pertbrin any other agreement 
contained in the official statement that is not remedied within 45 days of receiving written notice will be 
considered a default. The sole remedy in the event of fault under the certificate shall be an action to compel 
performance. 

On Febniary 25, 2014. the City Issued $28,075.000 in Utilities Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 
2014, with an average interest rate of 3 50%, for the purpose of constructing, acquiring or extending and 
improving the Utilities System of the City. Interest on the bonds is paid semi-annually in Mav and 
No% ember with principal payments occurring in May each fiscal year end. These bonds are secured by and 
payable from an irrevocable pledge and dedication of the Utilitv System revenues. Events of default are 
outlined in the official statement of the Series 2014 bond and include failure to remit payments timely. In 
addition, failure to observe or perform any other ageement contained in the official statement that is not 
remedied within 45 days of receiving written notice will be considered a default. The sole remedy in the 
event of fault under the certificate shall be an action to compel performance. 

On June 23, 2020. the City of Alexandria issued $138,800.000 of Taxable Utilities Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 to refund $96,150,000 of outstanding Utilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A 
maturing May 1, 2024 to May 1, 2043 and refund $24,125,000 of outstanding Utilities Re% enue Bonds, 
Series 2014 niaturing May 1, 2025 to May 1, 2043 (Series 2013A and 2014 referred to as "refunded bonds"). 
The Series 2020 Bonds hear interest at 0.90% to 3.09%, upon maturity, while the refunded bonds were 
bearing interest from 2.00% to 5.00% upon maturitv. The Series 2014 bonds were partially refunded as the 
City has in escrow proceeds of 524.125,000 to pay off the bonds when they become callable. The Series 
2014 bonds are expected to become callable on May 1, 2024, and currently remain recorded on the financial 
statements. 

The $96,150,000 outstanding Utilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A were deemed defeased as of 
June 23, 2020, when the Series 2020 bonds were issued. A total of $137,940.960 was deposited into an 
escrow fund for fiaure payment of the refunded bonds. Of the monies deposited, $136,973,192 was derived 
from the proceeds of the issuance of the Series 2020 bonds, while the remaining $967,768 was transferred 
from existing sources. Monies are to he held in escrow, until the time when the bonds become callable. As 
of April 30, 2024 the amount remaining in escrow was $135,127.383, for the payment of remaining callahle 
bonds of $120.275,000 which mature on May 1, 2024. As noted in the first paragraph of the bond refundinL, 
section above, $24,125,000 of the amount held in escrow, is currently recorded in the financials as restricted 
assets. Business-type activities long-term liabilities are comprised of the following: 
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Issue Maturity 

Business-Type activities Date Dates 
Interest 
Rates 

Balance 
Outstanding 

Utilities System revenue bonds series 

    

2013A refunding 2004A 10 1:2013 10 1 2024 4.00-5.00% S 590.000 
2013B reftinding 2004B 10:1:2013 1011:2024 2.33-4.53°6 1.030.000 
2014 capital improvements ?/25i2014 5/1:2024 1 .tHl-5.000.6 24.905.i M0 

20211 taxable utilities refunding 6:23,20211 5:1:2043 0.911-3.O% 134.520.I 
State Revolving loan funds series 

20111capital improvements 1:22:2010 5:1:2030 3.45% 1.209.1100 
2011 capital improvements 5:1/2011 5'1:2030 3.45% 3.'66.845 
2(112 capital impro‘ements 5T/012 5.1'2031 0.95°0 1.907.603 

Total debt outstanding 

   

S 167,428.44S 

The annual debt service requirements of the utility revenue bond outstanding is as follows: 

Year Ending 

April 30, 

Principal 

Payments 

Interest 

Payments Total 
1 015 S 29,015.00(1 $ 4,153.835 $ 33,168.835 

2026 5,030.00(1 3,425.769 8,455.769 

2027 5,120.000 3,341.886 8,461.886 
1 028 5,”5.000 3,244.604 8,469.604 

2029 5,335.000 3,136.632 8,471.632 

203(1-2034 '9,935.000 13,776.395 43,711.395 

?035-1039 37,655.000 9,415.233 47,070.233 

2040-2043 43.730.000 3,443.X61 47,1 73.X61 

Totals S 161,045.000 S 43,938.215 104,983."15 

State Revolving Loans 

The City has three State Revoh ing Loans under DHH - Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State 
Revolving Funds and DEQ - Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds programs. 
Additional information is presented below on each of those loans. 

The 2010 Capital improxements state revolving loan was tinanced through DHH for a maximum loan 
balance of $3,390.000. The City has fully drawn down thas loan. Interest and fees On the loan are paid semi-
annually in May and November at a 3.45% interest rate with principal payments occurring in May each 
fiscal year end. No default pro‘ision is provided tirr in the debt agreement. 

The 2011 Capital improvements state revolving loan was financed through DHH for a maximum loan 
balance of $7,610,000. At April 30, 2024 the City has drawn down $6,323,902 leaving S1,286,098 lefi to be 
drawn down. Interest and fees on the loan are paid semi-annually in May and November at a 3.45% interest 
rate with principal payments occurring in May each fiscal year end. No default provision as provided for in 
the debt agreement. 
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The 2012 Capital improvements state revoh ing loan was financed through DEQ for a maximum loan 
balance of S-1,550.000. The Cm has fully drawn down this loan. Interest and fees on the loan are paid semi-
annually in May and November at a 0.95% interest rate with principal payments occurring in May each 
fiscal vear end. No default proi, ision is provided for in the debt agreement. 

The estimated annual deht service requirements of the state revolving loans are as follows: 

Year Ending 
April 30. 

 

Direct Borrowings 

 

Principal 
Payments 

Interest 
Payments Total 

2025 $ 784,000 $ 130,090 $ 914,090 

 

803,0011 110,402 913.402 
, 017 823,000 90.188 913.288 

2028 843,000 81,226 924.226 

2029 863,000 62.125 925.125 
1030-/03/ 2.267,448 72.533 2.339.981 

Totals $ 6.383,448 $ 546,664 6,930,112 

(12) Flow of Funds; Restrictions on Use — Uhlitteti Systern Enterprise Fund 

The utility revetme bonds were issued pursuant to bond ordinances, which provide substantially the 
following terms: 

The City, through its governing authority, has covenanted to fix, establish, maintain, and collect 
such rates. fees, rents or other charges for the sett ices and facilities of the Utilities System, and all parts 
thereof', and to revise the same from time to time whenever necessary. The City will always provide 
revenues in each year sufficient to pay the necessary expenses of adnrinistering. operating, and maintaining 
the Utilities System; 120% of the principal and interest maturing on the bonds or other obligations payable 
there from as the same shall become due and payable in each year; all reserves or sinking funds or other 
payments required for such year by the Bond Ordinance; and all other obligations or indebtedness payable 
out of the revenues of the Utilities System for such year. The City's rates, fees, rents, or other charges shall 
not at any time be reduced so as to be insufficient to provide adequate revenues for such purposes. 

The City has further covenanted that all of said income and revenues earned or derived from the 
operation of the Utilities System shall be deposited daily as the same may be collected in the Utilities 
System Fund heretofore established with the regularly designated fiscal agent of the City pursuant to the 
Bond Resolutions; that said fund shall he maintained and administered in the following order of priority 
and for the fbllowing express purposes: 

• The payment of all reasonable expenses of administration, operation, and maintenance 
of the Utilities System. 

• The maintenance of the Sinking Funds established pursuant to the bond resolutions 
sufficient in arnount to pay promptly and fully the principal of and the interest on the 
Bonds and any additional pari passu bonds issued hereafter in the manner provided by 
the bond ordinance, as they become due and payable, by transferring ftom the Utilities 
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System Fund to the Sinking Funds estabhshed pursuant to the bond resolutions, 
monthly in advance on or before the 20th day of each month of each year, a sum equal 
to 1:6th of the interest falling due on the next interest payment date, and a sum equal 
to 1.12th of principal falling due on the next principal payment date, together with such 
additional proportionate sum as may be required to pay said principal and interest as 
the same respectii ely becomes due. The depository for the Sinking Funds shall transfer 
from said Sinking Funds to the paying agent bank or hanks for all bonds payable from 
said Fund at least one day in advance of the date on which each payrnent of principal 
or interest falls due, funds fully sufficient to pay promptly the principal and interest so 
falling due on such date. 

• The maintenance of the Reserve Funds established pursuant to the bond resolutions by 
transferring from the proceeds of the bonds a surn equal to the lesser of (i) ten percent 
(10%) of the proceeds of the bonds or (ii) an amount which, together with monies on 
deposit in the Reserve Funds. will equal the highest combined principal and interest 
requirements for any succeeding fiscal year (ending 4;30) on the bonds (the "Reserve 
Funds Requirement"). (iii) or one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the aggregate 
amount of principal installments and interest becoming due in any fiscal year on the 
bonds (ending 4.30). If such monies do not cause the balance in the Reserve Funds to 
equal the Reserve Funds Requirement. by transferring from said Utilities System Fund 
to the Reserve Funds established pursuant to the bond resolutions. monthly in advance 
on or before the 20th day of each month of each year, a sum at least equal to twenty 
percent (20%) of the amount required to be paid into the aforesaid Sinking Fund, the 
payments into said Reserve Funds to continue until such time as there has been 
accumulated therein a sum equal to the Reserve Funds Requirement. The money in the 
Reserve Funds shall be retained solely for the purpose of paying the principal and 
interest on Bonds payable from the aforesaid Sinking Fund as to which there would 
otherwise be default. In the event that additional pari passu bonds are issued hereafter 
in the manner provided by the bond ordinance, the payments into said Reserve Fund 
shall continue, or if the said payments have ceased because of the accumulation of the 
maximum amount provided above. then such payments shall be resumed, until such 
time as there has been accumulated in said Reserve Funds an amount of money equal 
to the highest combined principal and interest requirements in any succeeding fiscal 
year on all outstanding bonds, including such additional pari passu bonds. 

• The maintenance of the Capital Additions and Contingencies Fund established 
pursuant to the bond resolutions to care for extensions, additions, improvements, 
renewals, and replacements necessary to properly operate the Utilities System hy 
transferring from said Utilities System Fund to the Capital Additions and 
Contingencies Fund established hy the bond resolutions, monthly on or before the 20th 
day of each month of each year, a sum equal to nine percent (9%) of the gross revenues 
of the Utilities System for the preceding month, provided that such sum is available 
after provision is made for the payments required under the paragraphs above. Such 
payments into the Capital Additions and Contingencies Fund shall continue until such 
time as there has been accumulated in said Fund the sum of one million dollars 
($1,000,000), whereupon such payments may cease and need be resumed thereafter 
only if the total amount of money on deposit in said fund is reduced below the sum of 
one million dollars ($1,00(I,000), in which event such payments shall be resumed and 
continue until said maximum of one million dollars ($1,000.000) is again accuinulated. 
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In addition to caring for extensions. additions, improvements. renewals, and 
replacements necessary to properly operate the Utilities System, the money in the 
Capital Additions and Contingencies Fund shall also be used to pay the principal of 
and the interest on the bonds, including any additional pari passu bonds issued hereafter 
in the manner provided by the bond ordinance, for the payment of which there is not 
sufficient money in the Sinking Fund and Reserve Fund described above, but the 
money in said Capital Additions and Contingencies Fund shall never be used for the 
making of improvements and extensions to the Utilities System or for payment of 
principal or interest on bonds, if the use of said money will leave in said Capital 
Additions and Contingencies Fund for the making of emergency repairs or 
replacements less than the sum of twenty-five thousand dollars (S25,000). 

Any monies remaining in said Utilities System Fund after making the above required payments 
may he used by the City for the purpose of calling and:or purchasing and paying any bonds payable from 
the revenues of the Utilities System. or for such other lawful corporate purposes as the governing authority 
may determine, whether such purposes are or are not in relation to the Utilities System. 

If at any time it shall be necessary to use monies in the Reserve Fund or the Capital Additions and 
Contingencies Fund above provided for the purpose of paying principal of or interest on bonds payable 
from the aforesaid Sinking Fund as to which there would otherwise be default. then the monies so used 
shall be replaced from the revenues first thereafter received, not herein above required to be used for 
administration, operation, and maintenance or for current principal, interest. and reserve requirements. If at 
any time there are sufficient monies on deposit in the Reserve Fund and Capital Additions and 
Contingencies Fund to retire all outstanding bonds payable from the Sinking Fund by exercising the 
redemption option provided by such bonds or by purchase on the open market, the City may utilize such 
funds for such purpose. 

All or any part of the monies in the Reserve Fund and the Capital Additions and Contingencies 
Fund shall. at the written request of the City, be invested in one or hoth of the following if and to the extent 
that the same are legal for the investment of funds of the City: (a) direct obligations of the United States of 
America, or (b) negotiable or non-negotiable certificates of deposit issued hy any bank, trust company, or 
national banking association provided (i) such certificates of deposit are continuously and at all times 
secured by direct obligations of the United States of America having a market value (exclusive of accrued 
interest) at all times at least equal to the principal amount of such certificates of deposit, and (ii) interest is 
paid thereon to the extent of one hundred percent (1(N0%) All income derived from such investments shall 
be added to the money in said respective funds or to the Utilities System Fund. and such investments shall, 
to the extent at any time necessary, be liquidated and the proceeds thereof applied to the purpose for which 
the respective tunds are created. 

(13) Utilities System Fund Pm\ er Purchase Contract Commitment 

On November 15, 1982, the City entered into an electric power purchase contract with Louisiana 
Energy and Power Authority (LEPA). a political subdivision of the State of Louisiana, which acquired an 
interest in the Rademacher Unit Number 2. a low sulfur-coal burning power plant. The City is obligated to 
pay 52.83% of the fixed project costs allocated to LEPA plus energy related costs when the unit is operable. 
This contract expires at the later of (1) the date all outstanding bonds of LEPA have been paid, (2) the date 
the joint operating agreement entered into by LEPA is terminated and settlement of all costs are completed, 
or (3) July 1, 2032. 
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As part of the contract, the City agreed not to issue honds, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness 
or enter into any contract to incur any expenses payable from or secured by revenues of the combined 
utilities system superior to or having a priority over the ohligation to pay for the costs incurred under this 
contract. 

(14) Employee Retirement 

The City contributes to two statewide cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit public 
employee retirement systems and two single-employer defined benefit pension plans. The employer pension 
schedules for the plans are prepared using the accnial basis of accounting. Employer contributions, fbr 
which the employer allocations are based, are recognized in the period in which the employee is 
compensated for sen ices performed. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability asset, deferred 
outtlows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, 
information about the fiduciary net position of the plans and additions to- deductions from the plan's 
fiduciary net position have heen determined on the same basis as they are reported hy the plan. For this 
purpose. benefit payments (including reftmds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. Details concerning 
these plans follow: 

A. Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana 

Plan Description: The Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (the System) 
is the administrator of a cost-shanng multiple-employer plan. Membership in the System is 
mandatory for any full-time police officer employed hy a municipality of the State of Louisiana 
and engaged in law enforcement, empowered to make arrests, providing he or she dors not 
have to pay social secunty and providing he or she meets the statutory criteria. The System 
provides retirement benefits for municipal police officers. The projections of benefit payments 
in the calculation of the total pension liability includes all benefits to he provided to current 
active and inactive employees through the System in accordance with benefit terms and any 
additional legal agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date. 

The Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana issues a stand-
alone report on their financial statements. Access to the audit report can be found on the 
System's website: www.lampers.org or on the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's website, 
www.11a.state. la. us. 

Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by LRS 
11:2211-11.2233. The following is a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is 
provided for general information purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate 
statutes for more complete information. 

Membership Prior to January 1, 2013. A member is eligible for regular retirement after 
he has been a member of the System and has 25 years of creditable service at any age or has 
20 years of creditable service and is age 50 or has 12 years creditable service and is age 55. A 
member is eligible for early retirement after he has been a member of the System for 20 years 
of creditable service at any age with an actuarially reduced benefit. 
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Benefit rates are three and one-third percent of average final compensation (average 
monthly earnings during the highest 36 consecutive months or joined months if service was 
interrupted) per number of years of creditable service, not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

Upon the death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan 
provides for surviving spouses and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the 
statutes, the benefits range from forty to sixty percent of the membefs average final 
compensation for the sun iving spouse. In addition. each child under age eighteen receives 
benefits equal to ten percent of the member's average tinal compensation or $200 per month. 
whichever is greater. 

Membership Commencing January 1, 2013: Memher eligihility for regular retirement, 
early retirement, disability and survi‘ or benefits are hased on Hazardous Duty and Non-
Hazardous Duty sub plans Under the Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for 
regular retirement after he has been a member of the System and has 25 years of creditable 
service at any age or has 12 years of creditable service at age 55. Under the Non-Hazardous 
Duty suh plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has heen a member of the 
Systein and has 30 years of creditable service at any age, 25 years of creditable service at age 
55. or 10 years of creditable service at age 60. Under both sub plans, a meinber is eligihle for 
early retirement atier he has been a member of the System for 20 years of creditable sen ice at 
any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit from age 55. 

Under the Hazardous and Non Hazardous Duty sub plans, the benefit rates are three 
percent and two and a half percent. respectnely, of average final compensation (average 
monthly earnings during the highest 60 consecutive months or joined months if service was 
interrupted) per number of years of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

tJpon death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides 
for surviving spouses and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statues, the 
benefits range from twenty-five to fifty-five percent of the member's average final 
compensation for the surviving spouse. In addition, each child under age eighteen receives ten 
percent of average tinal compensation or $200 per month whichever is greater. If the deceased 
member had less than ten years of service, the beneficiary will receive a refund of employee 
contributions only. 

Cost of Living Adjustments: The Board of Trustees is authorized to provide annual 
cost-of-living adjustments (COLA) computed on the amount of the current regular retirement. 
disability, beneficiary or survivor's benefit, not to exceed 3% in any L,iven year. The Board is 
authorized to provide an additional 2% COLA. computed on the member's original benefit. to 
all regular retirees, disability, survivors anti beneficiaries who are 65 years of age or older on 
the cut-off date which determines eligibihty. 

No regular retiree, sun ivor or beneficiary shall be eligible to receive a cost-of-living 
adjustment until benefits have been received at least one full fiscal year and the payment of 
such COLA, when authorized. shall not be effective until the lapse of at least one-half of the 
fiscal year. Members who elect early retirement are not eligible for a cost of living adjustment 
until they reach regular retirement age. 
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Deferred Retirement Option Plan. A member is eligihle to elect to enter the deferred 
retirement option plan (DROP) when he is eligible for regular retirement based on the 
members' sub plan participation. Upon filing the application for the program, the employee's 
active membership in the System is terminated At the entry date into the DR()P, the employee 
and employer contributions cease. The amount to be deposited into the DROP account is equal 
to the benefit computed under the retirement plan elected by the participant at date of 
application. The duration of participation in the DR()P is thirty-six months or less. If 
employment is terminated after the three-year period, the participant may recen e his benefits 
by lump sum payment or a true annuity. If employment is not terminated, active contributing 
memberslup into the System shall resume and upon later termination, he shall receive 
additional retirement benefit hased on the additional service. For those eligible to enter DROP 
prior to January 1, 2004, DROP accounts shall earn interest subsequent to the termination of 
DROP participation at a rate of half of one percentage point below the percentage rate of return 
of the System's investment portfolio as certified by the actuary on an annual basis but will never 
lose money. For those eligible to enter DROP subsequent to January I. 2004, an irrevocable 
election is made to earn interest based on the System's investment portfolio return or a money 
market investment return. This could result in a negative earnings rate heing applied to the 
account. If the member elects a money market investment return, the funds are transferred to 
a government money o  market accunt. 

Initial Benefit Option Plan: In 1999, the State L.egislature authorized the System to 
estahlish an Initial Benefit Option program. Initial Benefit Option is availahle to members who 
are eligible for regular retirement and have not participated in DROP. The Initial Benefit 
Option program pro‘ ides hoth a one-time single sum payment of up to 36 months of regular 
monthly retirement benefit, plus a reduced monthly retirement benefit for life. Interest is 
computed on the halanee based on same criteria as DROP. 

Employer Contributions: Contributions for all members are actuarially determined as 
required hy state law but cannot be less than 9% of the employees' earnable compensation 
excluding overtime but including state supplemental pay. 

For the year ended April 30, 2024, total contributions due for employers and employees 
were 43.75%. The employer and employee contribution rates for all members hired pnor to 
January 1, 2013 and Hazardous Duty members hired after January 1. 2013 was 31.25% and 
10%, respectively. The employer and employee contribution rates for all Non-Hazardous Duty 
members hired after January 1, 2013 was 31.251!/0 and 8%, respectively. The employer and 
employee contribution rates for all members whose earnable compensation is less than or equal 
to the poverty guidelines issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
were 33 75% and 7.50%. respectively. 

Non-employer contributions: The System also recen es insurance premium tax mollies 
as additional employer contributions. The tax is considered support from a non-contributing 
entity and appropriated by the legislature each year based on an actuarial studv. Non-employer 
contributions of $513,282 is recognized as revenue during the year ended April 30, 2024 and 
excluded from pension expense. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense. and Deferred Outtlows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions: At April 30, 2024, the City reported a 
liability of S23,512,825 for its proportionate share of the net pension liahility. The net pension 
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liabihty was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension liabihtv used to calculate the 
net pension liability was determined hy an actuarial valuation as of that date. The City's 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's lonm-term share 
of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating 
employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2023, the City's pmportionate share was 
2.225546%. which was a decrease of .070715% from its proportionate share measured as of 
June 30, 2022. 

For the year ended April 30, 2024, the City recognized expense of $3,227,725. At April 
30, 2024. the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to the System trom the following sources: 

Difference between expected and 

Governmental Activities 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

Deferred Inflows 

of Resources 

  

actual experience 41; 1,656.246 51; 9,856 
Change of assumptions 392.357 

 

Change in proportion and 

differences between the employer's 
contributions and the employer's 

proportionate share of contributions 233.276 1.027,775 
Net differences hetween projected and 

actual earnings on plan investments 2.538,348 

 

Contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date 2,326,801 

 

Total $ 7.147.028 S 1.U.+7,(i l 

Deferred outflows of resources of $2.326,801 related to the System resulting from the 
City's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of 
the net pension hahility in the suhsequent fiscal period. Other ainounts reported as deferred 
outtlows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized 
in pension expense (benefit) as follows: 

Year Ended 
April 30, 

101i S 888.652 
1016 632.870 

2027 1 ,387.235 

1018 (126.161) 

S 3.782.596 
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Contributions — Proportionate Share - Differences between contributions remitted to 
the System and the employer's proportionate share are recognized in pension expense (benefit) 
using the straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the 
expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with a pension through the 
pension plan 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The net pension liahility was measured as the 
portion of the present value of projected benefit payments to be provided through the pension 
plan to current active and inactive employees that is attributed to those employees' past periods 
of service, less the amount of the pension plan's fiduciary net position. 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining MPERS 
total pension liability as of June 30. 2023 are as follows: 

Valuation Date June 30, 2023 

Actuanal Cost Method Entry Age Normal Cost 

Investment Rate of Return 6.750%, net of investment income 

Projected Salary Increases Vary from 12.30% in the first 2 years of Service, 
and 4.70% 

Inflation Rate 2.50% 

Expected Remaining 
Service Lives 4 years 

Mortality For annuitants and beneficiaries, the Puh-2010 
Public Retirement Plan Mortality Table for 
Safety Below-Median Healthy Retirees 
multiplied by 115% for males and 125% for 
females. each with full generational projection 
using the M132019 sale was used. 

For disabled lives. the Pub-2010 Public 
Retirement Plan Mortalitv Tahle for Safety 
Disable Retirees multiplied by 105% for males 
and 115% for females, each with full 
generational projection using the MP2019 scale 
was used. 

For employees, the Pub-2010 Public Retirement 
Plans Mortality Table for Safetv Below-Median 
Employees multiplied by 115% for males and 
125% for females, each with full generational 
projection using the MP2019 scale was used. 
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Cost-of-Living 
Adjustments The present value of future retirement benefits is 

based on benefits currently heing paid hy the 
System and includes previously granted cost-of-
living increases The present values do not 
include pro‘isions for potential future increases 
not yet authorized hy the Board of Trustees. 

The mortality rate assumption used was based upon an experience study pertbrmed by 
the prior actuary on plan data for the penod July 1, 2014 through June 30. 2019 and review of 
similar law enforcement mortality. The data was then assigned credibility weighting and 
combined with a standard table to produce current levels of mortality. This mortality was then 
projected forward to a period equivalent to the estimated duration of the System's habilities. 
Annuity values calculated based on this mortality were compared to those produced bv using a 
setback of standard tables. The result of the procedure indicated that the tables used would 
produce liability values approximating the appropriate generational mortality tables 

The best estimates of the arithmetic nominal rates of return for each major asset class 
included in the System's target allocation are summarized in the followine tahle: 

Asset Class  

Long-Term Expected 

Target Asset Portfolio Rate 

Allocation of Return      
Equity 52.00°.:0 3.29% 
Fixed income 34.00% 1.12"./0 

Alternati‘e 14.00% 0.95'!-O 
Tutals 100.00'! o 5.36% 

Inflation 2.54% 
Expected Artithmetic Nominal Return 7.9)1% 

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure net pension habihty was 6.75°.•;., 
which wase equivalent to the discount rate used in the previous year. The projection of cash 
flows used to detennine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will 
be made at the current contrihution rates and that contributions from participating employers 
will he made at the actuarially determined rates approved by PRSAC taking intu consideration 
the recommendation of the Systein's actuary. Based on those assumptions. the Systein's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension 
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payinents to determine the total 
pension 

Sensitivity to Changes m the Discount Rate. The following presents net pension 
liability of the participating employer calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%. as well as 
what the employer's net pension liability would he if it were calculated usmg a discount rate 
that is one percentage point lower. or one percentage point hieher than the current rate. 
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Current 

1°0 Discount 1° n 

Decrease Rate Increase 

5.75°0 6.75°o 7 75% 

Net Pension Liability $ 33,(184,399 $ 23.51 7.8'5 S 15,517,036 

B. Firefighters Retirement Svstem of Louisiana 

Plan description: The Firefighters' Retirement System (the System) is the 
administrator of a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Memhership in the System is a 
condition of employment for any full-time firefighters (or any person in a position as detined 
in the municipal fire and police civil service system) who earn more than 5375 per month and 
are employed by any municipality. parish, or fire protection district of the State of Louisiana 
in addition to employees of the Firefighters' Retirement System. The System provides 
retirement benefits for their members. The projections of benefit payments in the calculation 
of the total pension liability includes all benefits to be prol, ided to current acme and inactive 
employees through the System in accordance with benefit terms and any additional legal 
agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date. 

Firefighters' Retirement System issues a stand-alone report on its financial statements. 
Access to the audit report can be tbund on the System's website www.latirefightersret.com or 
on the Office of Louisiana Legislative Auditor's official website www.11a.state.la.us. Benetit 
provisions are authorized within Act 434 of 1979 and amended by LRS 11:2251- 11:2272. The 
following is a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general 
infonnational purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more 
complete information. Any person who becomes an employee as defined in RS 11.2252 on and 
after January 1, 1980 shall become a member as a condition of employment. 

No person who has attained age fifty or over shall become a member of the System. 
unless the person becomes a rnember by reasons of a merger or unless the System received an 
application for membership before the applicant attained the age of fifty. No person who has 
not attained the age of eighteen years shall become a member of the System. Any person who 
has retired from sen ice under any retirement system or pension fund maintained basically for 
public officers and employees of the state, its agencies or political subdivisions, and who is 
receiving retirement benefits there from may hecome a member of System, provided the person 
meets all other requirements for membership. Service credit from the retirement system or 
pension plan from which the member is retired shall not be used for reciprocal recognition of 
service with this System, or thr any other purpose in order to attain eligibility or increase the 
amount of service credit in this System. 

Retirement Benefits: Employees with 20 or more years of service who have attained 
age 50, or employees who have 12 years of service who have attained age 55, or 25 years of 
service at any age are entitled to annual pension benetits equal to 3.333% of their average final 
compensation based on the 36 consecutive months of highest pay multiplied by their total years 
of service, not to exceed 100°-;.. Employees may elect to receive their pension benefits in the 
form of a joint and survivor annuity. If employees terminate before rendering 12 years of 
service, they forfeit the nght to receive the portion of their accumulated plan benefits 
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attrihutable to their employer's contributions. Benefits are payable er the employees' lives 
in the limin of a monthly annuity. An employee may elect an unreduced benefit or any of seven 
options at retirement. See R.S. 11:2256(A) for additional details on retirement benefits. 

Disability Benefits. A member who acquires a disability, and who files for disability 
benefits while in service, and who upon medical examination and certification as provided for 
in Title 11, is found to have a total disability solely as the result of injuries sustained in the 
performance of his official duties, or for any cause, provided the member has at least tive years 
of creditable service and provided that the disability was incurred while the member was an 
active contributing member in active service. shall be entitled to disability benefits under the 
provisions of R.S. 11.2258(B). 

Death Benefits. Benefits shall be payable to the surviving eligible spouse or designated 
beneficiary of a deceased member as specified in R.S. 11:2256(B) & (C). 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan Benefits. After completing 20 years of creditable 
service and attaining the age of 50 years, or 25 years at any age, a member may elect to 
participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) for up to 36 months. Upon 
commencement of participation in the deferred retirement option plan, employer and employee 
contributions to the System cease The monthly retirement benefit that would have been 
payable is paid into the member's deferred retirement option plan account. Upon termination 
of employment, a participant in the program has several options to receive their DROP benefit. 
A member may (1) elect to roll over all or a portion of their DROP balance into another eligible 
qualified plan, (2) receive a lump-sum payment from the account, (3) receive single 
withdrawals at the discretion of the member. (4) receive monthly or annual withdrawals. or (5) 
receive an annuity based on the DROP account balance. These withdrawals are in addition to 
his regular monthly benefit. If employment is not terminated at the end of the 36 months, the 
participant resumes regular contributions to the System. No withdrawals may be made from 
the deferred retirement option plan account until the participant retires. 

Initial Benefit Option Plan: Effective June 16. 1999, members eligihle to retire and 
who do not choose to participate in DROP may elect to receive. at the time of retirement, an 
initial henefit option (IBM in an amount up to 36 months of benefits, with an actuarial 
reduction of their future benefits. Such amounts may be withdrawn or remain in the IBO 
account eanung interest at the same rate as the DROP account. 

Cost of Living Adjustments (COLAs): Under the provisions of R.S. 11:246 and 
11:2260(A)(7), the board of trustees is authorized to grant retired members and widows of 
members who have retired an annual cost of living increase of up to 3% of their current benefit, 
and all retired members and widows who are 65 years of age and older a 2% increase in their 
original benefit. In order for the board to grant either of these increases, the System must meet 
certain criteria detailed in the statute related to funding status and interest earnings (R.S. 
11:243). In lieu of these COLAs. pursuant to R S. 11:241, the board may also grant an increase 
in the form of "X x (A+B)," where "X" is any amount up to S1 per month. and "A" is equal to 
the number of years of credited service accrued at retirement or at death of the member of 
retiree, and "B" equal to the number of years since retirement or since death of the member 
or retiree to June 30th of the initial year of such increase. 
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Employer and Employee Contributions: According to State statute, employer 
contributions are actuarially determined each year. For the year ended June 30, 2023, employer 
and employee contribution rates for members above the poverty line were 33.25% and 10.00%, 
respectively. The employer and employee contrihution rates for those members below the 
poverty line were 35.25°i, and 8.00%. respectively. 

Non-employer Contributions: The System also receives insurance premium tax 
monies as additional employer contributions. The tax is considered support from a non-
contributing entity and appropriated by the legislature each year based on an actuarial study. 
Non-employer contributions of $678,797 is recognized as re% enue during the year ended April 
30, 2024 and excluded from pension expense. 

Pension Liabihties. Pension Expense. and Deferred Outtlows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions. At April 30, 2024, the City reported a 
liability of $15,129,164 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension 
liability was measured as of June 30. 2023 and the total pension liability used to calculate the 
net pension liability was determined hy an actuarial valuation as of that date. The City's 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long-term share 
of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating 
employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2023, the City's proportionate share was 
2.318004%, which was an increase of .207507% from its proportionate share measured as of 
June 30, 2022. For the year ended April 30, 2024, the City recognized pension expense of 
$2,821,164. 

At April 30, 2024, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions from the followine sources: 

Difference between expected and 

Ciovernmental .Activities 
Deferred Outflows 

of Resources 
Defened Inflows 

of Resources 

  

actual experience S 472.348 S 518.332 

Change of assumptions 915.457 

 

Change in pruportion and 

differences between the employer's 

contributions and the employer's 

proportionate share of contributions 1.109.096 1.016.179 

Net differences between projected and 

actual earnings on plan investments 2,050,570 

 

Contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date 1,721.276 

 

Total ,S 6,268.747 S 1,534.511 
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Deferred outflows of resources of S1,721.276 related to pensions resulting from the 
City's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of 
the net pension liability in the subsequent fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred 
outtlows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized 
in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended 

April 30, 

2015 $ 586.748 

2026 247,339 

2027 1.793.719 

2028 (33.215) 

2029 199,628 

2030 218.741 

 

S 3.012,960 

Actuarial Assumptions: The net pension liahility was measured as the portion of the 
present N alue of projected henefit payments to he provided through the pension plan to current 
active and inactive employees that is attributed to those employees' past periods of service, less 
the amount of the System's fiduciary net position. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30. 2023 valuation were based on the 
assumptions used in the June 30. 2023 actuarial fundine valuation and were based on results of 
an actuarial experience study for the period July I. 2014 through June 30, 2019. In cases where 
benefit structures were changed after the study period. assumptions were based on estimates of 
future experience. 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total 
pension liability of the System as of June 30, 2023 are as follows. 

Valuation Date 

Actuarial Cost Method 

Investmciu Rate of Return 

Salary Increases 

Inflation Rate 

Expected Remainine 
Sen ice Lives 

Cost of Livine Adjustments  

June 30, 2023 

Entry Age Normal C'ost 

6.90% per annum 

Vary from 14.10% in the first two years of 
service to 5.20% with 3 or more years. 

2.50% per annum 

7 years 

Only those previously granted 
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The mortality rate assumption used was set based upon an experience study performed 
on plan data for the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2019. For active members, mortality 
was set equal to the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for Safety Below-
Median Employees. For annuitants and beneficiaries, mortality was set equal to the Pub-2010 
Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for Safety Below-Median Healthy Retirees. For 
disahled retirees, mortality was set equal to the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality 
Table for Safety Disabled Retirees. In all cases the hase table was multiplied by 105% for males 
and 1151!•',3 for females, each with full generational projection using the appropriate NIP2019 
scale set hack five years for males and set back three years for females was selected for disabled 
annuitants. Setbacks in these tables were used to approximate mortality improvement. 

The estimated long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
deternuned using a building-block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future 
real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are 
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term 
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset 
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation, 2.50%. The resulting long-term 
expected arithinetic nominal rate of return was 7.94% as of June 30, 2023. Best estimates of 
real rates of return for each major asset class included in FRS' target asset allocation as ofJune 
30, 2023 are sununarized in the following table. 

Asset Class 

Long-Term 

Target Asset 

Allocation 

Lone-term 

Expected Real 

Rate of Return 

Fixed income 

U.S Core Fixed Income 

U.S. Tips 

Emerging Market Debt 

Multisector Fixed Income 

Equity 

29.50% 

11.50% 

10.00% 

5 00% 

1.89% 

1.71% 

4.30% 
*** 

U.S. Equity 10.00% 6.2-PO 

Non-U.S. Equity 2.00% 6.49% 

Global 2 00% 6.49% 

Emerging Market Equity 2 00% 8.37% 

Multi-Asset Strategies 

Global Tacitcal Asset Allocation 0 00% 4.01% 

Alternatives 

  

Real Estate 6.00qb 4.41% 

Private Equity 9.00% 9.57% 

Real Assets 3.00cki, 5 61% 

Totals 1= 1  

 

• **Multisector Fixed Income was added to the tamet asset allocation policy 
subsequent to the actuary's caluclation of the 2023 long-term expected real rate of 
re turn. 
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*** Suhsequent to the actuary's calculation of the long term expected real rate of return in 
January 2021, the Board voted to amend the target assets allocations (which inchided a target 
weieht in private real assets) 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%, which is 
equivalent to the discount rate used in the previous year. The projection of cash flows used to 
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be rnade at 
the actuarially determined rates approved by PRSAC' taking into consideration the 
recommendation of the System's actuary. Based on those assumptions. the System's fiduciary 
net position was projected to be available to rnake all projected future benefit payments of 
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payrnents to determine the total 
pension liability. 

Sensitivity to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following presents the net pension 
liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.90%, as well as what the City's net 
pension liability would he if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point 
lower, or one percentage point higher than the current rate. 

1P•;. Discount 1% 

Decrease Rate Increase 
5.th Rif 6.90% 7.90% 

Net Pension Liability $ 23.339,758 $ 15,129,1M $ 8,281.16(1 

City of Alexandria Employees' Retirement System (COAERS) 

Plan Administration - The City of Alexandria Employees Retirement System (the 
System) is the administrator of a single-employer defined benefit plan established by Act 459 
of the Louisiana Legislature of 1948, as amended (Louisiana Revised Statutes (RS) 11:3001 to 
13:3017), and administered by the City of Alexandria. Substantially all employees of the City, 
except firemen and policemen, become members of the System as a condition of employment. 
The System issues publicly available financial reports that are available by contacting the 
Systenis management at P O. Box 71, Alexandria. LA 71309. 

R.S. 11.3011 provides that the Board shall consist of seven trustees as follows: 
• The Mayor of the City; 
• The Director of Finance of the City; 
• The Director of Civil Service and Personnel of the City: 
• Two municipal employees, who are members of the System and who are 

selected hy plurality vote of the members of the System; 
• Two retired municipal employees of the City who are members of the System 

and who are selected by plurality vote of the retired municipal employee 
members of the System. 
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Plan Membership- Municipal ernployees of the City of Alexandria are eligible to 
become members of the system, other than those public officials and City employees who 
receive per diem allowance in lieu of earnable compensation, patient or imitate help in City 
charitahle, penal, and corrective institutions, and independent contractors employed to render 
service on a contractual basis, including independent contractual professional services. 
Membership in this system shall he optional with any class of elected official or with any class 
of officials appointed by the Mayor or appointed for fixed terms. The Board of trustees may, 
in its discretion, deny the right to membership in this system to any class of employees whose 
compensation is only partly paid by the Citv or who are occupying positions on a part-time or 
intennittent basis. The Board may. in its discretion. make optional with employees in any such 
classes their individual entrance into the system. 

At December 31, 2023, pension plan membership consisted of 

 

Inactive plan members and beneficiaries currently receiving henetits 404 

Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 213 
Active plan members 47 

Total 1.095 

The following brief description of the System is provided for general information only. 

Retirement Benefits - Members with ten years of creditable service may retire at age 
sixty-two, members with at least twentv years of creditable service may retire at age sixtv; 
members with twenty-five years of service may retire at age fifty-five; members with thirty 
years of service may retire regardless of age. The retirement allowance is equal to three percent 
of the member's average compensation multiplied hy number of years of creditable service, not 
to exceed one hundred percent of average compensation. Average compensation is defined as 
the highest three-vear average annual compensation. 

Members may receive their henefits as a life annuitv, or in lieu of such, a reduced 
benefit according to the option selected which is the actuarial equivalent of the maximum 
benefit. 

Option I -If the member dies before he has received in annuity payments the present 
value of his member's annuity, as it was at the time of retirement, the balance is paid to his 
beneficiary. 

Option 2- Upon retirement, the member receives a reduced benefit. Upon the member's 
death, the desipated beneficiary will continue to receive the same reduced benefit. 

Option 3- Upon retirement, the member receives a reduced benefit. Upon the member's 
death, the designated beneficiary will receive one-half of the member's reduced benefit. 

Option 4 - Upon retirement, the member elects to receive a hoard-approved benefit that 
is actuarially equivalent to the maximum benefit. 
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Option 5- Upon retirement, the member elects to receive the amount of his maximum 
retirement and upon death, if survived by a spouse, the spouse will receive one-half of the 
member's maximum benefit 

Disability Benefits - Five years of creditable service are required in order to be eligible 
for disability benefits. Disabled members receive a retirement allowance if they have attained 
the age of sixty-two. Otherwise, they receive three percent of the final average compensation 
for each year of service, not to be less than three hundred dollars per year. 

Survivor Benefits- Three years of creditable service are required m order to be eligible 
for survivor benetits. The survivor is entitled to twice the amount of accumulated contributions 
or two months' salary, whichever is greater, plus S1,0410 If the member has completed fifteen 
or more years of service. the sun iving spouse is entitled to an automatic option 2 benefit (an 
actuarially equivalent joint and full survivor benetit) which ceases if the spouse remarries. In 
lieu of option 2, the spouse may receive the greater of a refund of twice the member's 
contributions with interest earnings or two months' salary Widows. who are at least age fifty, 
of mernbers who die prior to retirement hut subsequent to becoming eligible to retire, are 
entitled to automatic option 2 benefits. 

Deferred Retirement C)ption Plan (DROP) - In lieu of terminating employment and 
accepting a service retirement allowance, any member of the System who has at least ten years 
of creditable service and who is eligible to receive a service retirement allowance may elect to 
participate in the Deferred Retirement Option Plan for up to thirty-six months and defer the 
receipt of benefits. Creditable sen ice shall not include service reciprocally recognized pursuant 
to R.S I 1:142. Upon commencement of participation in the DROP plan, active membership in 
the System terrninates and the participant's contributions cease: however, employer 
contrihutions continue. C'ompensation and creditable service remain, as they existed on the 
effective date of commencement of participation in the plan. The monthly retirement benefits 
that would have been payable, had the member elected to cease employment and receive a 
service retirement allowance, are paid into the Deferred Retirement Option Plan account. Upon 
ternunation of employment at the end of the specified period of participation, a participant in 
the program may receive, at his option, a lump sum payment from the account equal to the 
payments to the account, or a true annuity based upon his account balance (or any other method 
of payment subject to approval by the Board of Trustees): in addition. the member receives the 
monthly benefits that were paid into the fund during the period of participation. After a member 
has terminated his participation in the plan, the member's individual account balance in the plan 
will earn interest at the actual rate ot return earned on such funds left on deposit with the 
System. Such funds will be invested in accordance with a policy adopted by the Board of 
Trustees. The accnied interest will be credited to the individual account on annual basis. If 
employment is not terminated at the end of the participation period. payments into the account 
cease and the member resumes active contributing membership in the Systern. The monthly 
benefit payments that were heing paid into the DROP fund are paid to the retiree and an 
additional benefit based on his additional service rendered since termination of DROP 
participation is calculated using the normal method of benefit computation. The average 
compensation used to calculate the additional benefit is that used to calculate the original 
benefit unless his period of additional service is at least thirty-six months In no event can the 
entire monthlv benefit amount paid to the retiree exceed WO% of the average compensation 
used to compute the additional benefit. If a participant dies during the period of participation 
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in the program. a lump sum payment equal to his account balance is paid to his named 
beneficiary or, if none, to his estate. 

Contribution Refunds - Upon withdrawal from service, members not entitled to a 
retirement allowance are paid a refund of accumulated contrihutions on request. Receipt of 
such a refiind cancels all accrued nghts in the System. 

Contribution Rates - The retirement system is financed by ernployee contributions of 
10q.i. of pay plus employer contributions that are set according to actuarial requirements. 
Ernployer contnhution rate for the year ended December 31. 2023 was 22.43°.;,. The employer 
contribution rate is determined annually hy actuarial valuation. The rate so determined is 
adjusted on May I, of the calendar year fiAlowing the year in which the report is issued. The 
City is required by statute to contribute remaining amounts necessary to finance the System at 
an actuarially detennined rate. Benefit and contribution provisions are established hy state law 
and may be amended only by the Louisiana Legislature. 

Cost of Living Increases - The board of trustees is authorized to use earnings on 
investments of the system in excess of normal requirements to grant retired members, and 
widows of members, an annual cost of living increase of 2 OW.0 of their original benefit (not 
less than ten dollars per month). No cost of living increase was authorized by the board of 
trustees for calendar vear 2023. 

Administrative Costs - Administrative costs of the plan are tinanced through 
investment earnings. 

Basis of Accounting - The Systern's financial statements are prepared using the accrual 
basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the 
contributions are due. Employer contributions are recognized when due and when the employer 
has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refimds are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. 

Investments - Louisiana statutes allow the System to invest in securities issued. 
guaranteed, or insured by the United States government; bonds and other evidence of 
indebtedness issued by states or their political subdivisions: stocks, bonds, or other securities 
or evidence of indebtedness issued by any solvent corporation created under the laws of the 
United States or any of the states of the United States: and certificates of deposit of any bank 
domiciled or having a branch office in the State of Louisiana Investments are reported at fair 
value. Corporate bonds are valued based on yields currently available on comparable secunties 
of issuers with similar credit ratines. Securities traded on the national securities exchange are 
valued at the last reported sales pnce on the last business day of the plan year. Investments 
traded in the over-the-counter market and listed securities tbr which no sale was reported on 
that date are valued at the average of the last reported hid and asked pnces 

The System's investment policies are established by and may he amended by the Board 
of Trustees by a majority vote of Board members. It is the policy of the System that all assets 
shall be managed with the care that an institutional investor of ordinary prudence, discretion, 
and intelligence exercises in management of large institutional investments considering 
probable safety of capital as well as probable income. The primary considerations of the 
investment manager shall be to minimize the risk of loss of principal value and to achieve the 
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greatest rate of return on investments consistent with the level of risk incurred and to provide 
for future benefits. The management of the pension fund assets and the responsibility for 
investment decisions is delegated to the secretary of the retirement board who shall be the 
investment manager. The System's investment policy limits investments to common or 
preferred stock, corporate or government securities, certificates of deposit, government 
guaranteed mortgage pools, Guaranteed In% estment Contracts' repurchase agreements, and 
sufficient cash reserves to meet the System's liquidity needs. 

The following is the Board's adopted asset allocation policy as of year-end• 

Target Asset 
Asset Class Allocation 

Cash and shon term investments 2% to 15u.1; 
Long-term tixed income securities and preferred stock 40% to 90% 
Equities 5% to 60'!;. 

Actuarial Assumptions: The Total Pension Liability as stated in this report is based on 
the Individual Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method as described in Statement 67 of the 
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB 67). Calculations were made as of December 
31, 2022 and were hased on December 31. 2023 data. The current year actuarial assumptions 
utilized for this report are based on the assumptions used in the December 31, 2023 actuarial 
fimding valuation, which were based on results of an actuarial experience study for the period 
January 1, 2015 — December 3 I, 2019. unless otherwise specified in this report. 

Investment rate of return, net of investment expense, including inflation 5.£►[1°0 
Salary increases, including inflation and merit increases 4.90% 
Inflation '.10% 

Mortality Rates: In the case of mortality• a study of system mortality was conducted in 
2021. The data for the study was collected over the period January 1. 2015. through December 
31, 2019 The data was then assigned credibility weighting and combined with standard table 
to produce current levels of mortality. The Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table 
for General Healthy Retirees multiplied by 125% for males and 120% for females each with 
full generational projection using the appropriate MP- 2020 improvement scale was selected 
for annuitant and beneficiary mortality. For employees, the Pub-2010 Puhlic Retirement Plans 
Mortality Table for General Employees multiplied by 12.5.1N, for males and 120% for females 
each with full generational projection using the appropriate MP-2020 improvement scales was 
selected. The Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Table for General Disabled Retirees 
multiplied by 125% for males and 120% for females each with full generational projection 
using the appropriate MP-2020 improvement scale was selected for disabled annuitants. 

Expected Remaining Service Lives — The effects of certain other changes in the net 
pension liability are required to be included in pension expense over the current and finure 
periods. The effects on the total pension liability of (1) changes of economic and demographic 
assumptions or of other inputs and (2) differences between expected and actual experience are 
required to be included in pension expense in a systematic and rational manner o‘er a closed 
period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are 
provided with benetits through the pension plan (active employees and inactive employees), 
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determined as of the beginning of the measurement period. The effect on the net pension 
liability of differences between the projected earnings on pension plan investments and actual 
experience with regard to those earnings is required to be included in pension expense in a 
systernatic and rational manner over a closed period of tive vears, beginning with the current 
period. The Expected Remaining Service Lives (ERSL) for the plan year ending December 31, 
2023 was 4 years. 

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.80%, 
which was equivalent to the discount rate used in the prior year. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan members will be made 
at the current contribution rates and that contributions from the participating employers and 
non-employer contrihuting entities will be made at actuarially determined contribution rates, 
which are calculated in accordance with relevant statutes and approved by the Board of 
Trustees. Based on these assumptions and the other assumptions and methods as specified in 
this report. the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members Therefore, the long-term expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liahility. 

Post-employment benefit changes — Although the board of trustees has authority to 
mrant ad hoc Cost of Living Increases (COLAs) under limited circuntstances. these COLAs 
have not shown to have a historical pattern, the amounts of the COLAs have not been relative 
to a defined cost-of-living or inflation index, and there is no evidence to conclude that COLAs 
will be granted on a predictable basis in the future. Therefore, for purposes of determining the 
present value of benefits, these COLAs were deemed not to be substantively automatic and the 
present value of benefits excludes COLAs not previously granted hy the board of trustees. 

At April 30, 2024, the City reported a liability of $14,910,824 for the Net Pension 
Liabilitv (NPI) as follows: 

Governmental Activities $ 5.815,"1 

Business-type Activities 

 

Utilities System Enterprise Fund 7.008.089 
Other Enterprise Funds 2.087.514 

Total Enterprise Funds 9.1)95,603 

Total net pension liability $ 14.910.824 

The NPL was measured as of December 31. 2023, and the total pension liahility used 
to calculate the NPL was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Total pension liability $ 231.426.070 
Plan fiduciary net position 216.515.246 

Net pension liability (asset) 14.910,824 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension liability 93.c(Pi, 
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For the year ended Apnl 30. 2024. the City recognized pension henefit of $216,437 as 
follows: 

Governmental Activities x (84.411) 

Business-type Activities 
Utilities System Enterprise Fund (101.725) 
Other Entetprise Funds (3(1,301) 

Total Enterprise Funds (132.02(.) 

Total pension expense (benefit) (216.437) 

At year-end, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 

 

Deferred 
Outilow 

Deferred 
Inflows 

I)eferred 
t.}utIlu4ry 

Deferred 
Inflows 

Difference between expected 

    

and actual expenence $ 2329.438 $ $ 3,643.480 $ 

Change of assumptions 

 

312,188 

 

488.449 

Net differences between 

projected and actual eannngs 
on plan investments 10.029.895 9.801.095 15,687.783 15,329,921 

Contributions suhsequent to the 

measurernent date 611,750 

 

956,840 

 

Total $ 12,971.0S3 $ 10,113.383 $ 20.288.103 $ 15.S18.370 

The $611,750 and $956,840 reported as deferred outflows of resources relatecl to 
pensions resulting from the City's contributions subsequent to thr measurement date will be 
recognized as a reduction of the NPL in the subsequent fiscal period. Other amounts reported 
as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized as an increase (decrease) in pension expense as follows. 

Year Ended 

Apri130, 

2025 647,393 

2026 3.464,814 
2027 5.149,307 

2028 (3.502,664) 

 

S 5.75,850 
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Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rate 

The following presents the Net Pension Liability using the discount rate of 5.80%, as 
well as what the Net Pension Liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that 
is one percentage point lower (4 80%) or one percentage point higher (6.80%) than the current 
rate. 

Current 
1% Discmmt l% 

Decrease Rate Increase 
4.80% 5 80% 6.80gb 

Net Pension Liabihty (Asset) S 41.135.0)3 S 14.910.824 S (7,921,279) 

D. City of Alexandria Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund t FPARFI 

Plan Administration - The City of Alexandria Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund (the 
Fund) of the City of Alexandria, Louisiana, is the administrator of a single-employer defined 
benefit plan established by Act 12 of the Louisiana Legislature of 1940, as amended (Louisiana 
Revised Statutes (RS) 1 L3101 to 13.3118), and adnunistered by the City of Alexandria. The 
Fund issues publicly available tinancial reports that are available hy contactine the Fund's 
management at P.O. Box 71, Alexandria, LA 71309. 

R.S. 11.3104 provides that the Board shall consist of seven trustees as follows: 

• The Mayor of the City: 
• The Director of Finance of the City: 
• Five active members of the Fire Department of the City. not ahove the rank of 

Station Captain, who must have served at least two years in that Department 
before being eligible to serve on the Board and must be elected by the members 
of the Fire Department. 

RS 11:3103 provides that the Board will control and manage the City of Alexandria 
Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund and will make all rules and regulations for the proper 
administration of the Fund not to conflict with Act 12 of the Louisiana Legislature of 1940. as 
amended. 

Plan Membership - Effective May 1, 1993, the City of Alexandria Firemen's Pension 
and Relief Fund merged with the statewide Firefighters' Retirement System. On this date, all 
retirees and survivors receiving benefits at April 30, 1993, transferred to the Firefighters' 
Retirement System. 

The City of Alexandria and the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund of the City of 
Alexandria guaranteed that no active member. retiree. beneficiary. or survivor merged into the 
Firefighters' Retirement System would lose any riehts or benefits that he or she would have been 
entitled to under the City of Alexandria Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund. Specifically. it is 
agreed that if a firefighter dies, retires, or becomes disabled subsequent to the merger, the Fund 
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shall pay or cause to be paid to the firefighter or the firefighter's sun ivors and:or beneficiaries 
any difference in benefits, if any, where those benefits payable under the Fund prior to the 
merger exceed those benefits payable under the State system. It is further agreed and understood 
that if a firefighter exercises his or her right to a twenty year retirement any time before the age 
50 and is not eligible to receive benefits from the State System, then the Fund shall provide 
benefits until that person is eligihle for benefits under the State System. 

As of April 30, 2024, four (4) retirees and survivors are cunently receiving benefits 
under the City of Alexandria Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund. No remaining employees are 
vested in the Fund with twenty (20) vears of service and less than fifty (50) years of age; 
therefore, this fund is closed to any new retirees. Once the retirees and survivors who are 
currently receiving benefits are deceased, this fund will cease to exist. There were no signiticant 
changes to thr plan benefits. provisions, assumptions or demographics, as a result and due to the 
immateriality, an actuarial valuation was not planned as of April 30, 21124. 

Basis of Accounting - The Fund's financial statements are prepared using the accrual 
basis of accouming. Under this method. revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred 

Contributions - There are no covered employees remaining in the Fund. The City is 
required to contribute an amount sufficient to meet any deficit of the Fund without regard for 
reserve requirements accnnng or having accrued on an actuarial basis. No amounts were 
transferred to the plan at April 30, 2024. Benefits and contribution provisions are established by 
state law and may be amended only by the Louisiana Legislature. 

Actuarial Assumptions: The Total Pension Liability as stated in this report is based on 
the Individual Entry Age Nomial actuarial cost method as described in Statement 67 of the 
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB 67). Calculations were made as of April 30, 
2018 and were based on April 30, 2018 data. The actuarial assumptions utilized were based on 
the April 30, 2018 actuarial funding valuation, which were based on 1994 Uninsured Pensioners 
Mortahty Table and discount rates from Bond Buyer 20-Bond GO Municipal Bond Index. The 
investment rate of return, net of investment expense, including intlation actuarial assumption 
used was 3.90%. 

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.90%. 
GASB 67 requires that the discount rate to be used in detennining the total pension hability is 
the long-term expected return on pension plan investments to the extent that the pension plan's 
fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to make projected benefit payments. Since the 
City of Alexandria Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund is not actuarially funded and is, and has 
always been, a pay-as-you-go system. projections mandated by GASB 67 are inapplicable and 
the discount rate stipulated hy GASB 67 for the unfunded portion of projected benefit payments. 
in this case all of the projected payments, would apply and that rate would be used to determine 
the total pension liability. For this puipose the rate for Apnl 30, 2018 from the Bond Buyer 20-
Bond GC) Municipal Bond Index have been used. 

Expected Remaining Service Lives: The effects of certain other changes in the net 
pension liability are required to be included in pension expense over the current and future 
periods. The effects on the total pension liability of (1) changes of economic and demographic 
assumptions or of other inputs and (2) differences between expected and actual experience are 
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required to he included in pension expense in a systematic and rational manner over a closed 
period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are 
provided with benefits through the pension plan (active employees and inactive employees), 
determined as of the beginning of the measurement period. The effect on the net pension liability 
of differences between the projected earnings on pension plan investments and actual experience 
with regard to those earnings is required to be included in pension expense in a systematic and 
rational manner over a closed period to five years, heginning with the current period. The 
Expected Remaining Services Lives as of April 30. 2018 was 4 years. 

At April 30. 2024, the City reported a liability of $116,642 for the Net Pension Liability 
(NPL ). The NPL was measured as of April 30, 2018, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the NPL was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Total pension liability 
Plan fiduciary net position 

Net pension liability 

$ 154.713 
38.071 

$ 116,642 
  

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension liahility 24.61% 

For the year ended April 30, 2024, the City recognized a pension expense of $14,625 

At year-end, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Governmental Activities 
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 

of Resources of Resources 

Difference between expected and 

actual experience 8,735 S 5.052 

Change of assumptions 1,987  

Total $ 10,722 S 5.052 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows ot resources 
related to pensions will he recognized as an increase (decrease) in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended 

April 30.  

2025 !S 7.93' 

/016 (2,394) 

2027 132 

5.670 
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Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rate 

The following presents the Net Pension Liability usim the discount rate of 3.90%, as 
well as what the Net Pension Liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that 
is one percentage point lower (2 90%) or one percentage point higher (4.90%) than the current 
rate. 

Current 
1% Discount 1% 

Decrease Rate Increase 

  

2.90°.0 3 90% 4.90% 

Net Pension Liability w 143.838 S 116,642 $ 99.337 

(15) Defined Contribution Pension Plan 

The City contributes to the City of Alexandria Unclassified Employees Retirement Plan (the Plan), 
a defined contribution pension plan, for its unclassified employees who elect to participate in the Plan in 
lieu of Social Security. The Plan is administered by the Trustees of the Plan. The City appoints and 
designates one or more persons to serve as the trustee or trustees of the Plan. The Trustees of the Plan may 
appoint a bank or tnist company in accordance with the terms of the Plan, under which the bank's or trust 
company's duties shall be of a custodial, clerical, and record-keeping nature. The powers granted to the 
trustees shall he exercised in the sole fiduciary discretion of the Trustees. Howe‘er, if participants are so 
empowered by the Plan or by the employer, each participant may direct the Trustees to separate and keep 
separate all or any portion of his or her Plan account: and in such event, each participant is authorized and 
empowered, in his or her sole and absolute discretion, to give directions to the Trustees pursuant to the 
procedures established by the employer and in such form as the Trustees may require concerning the 
investments of the participant's directed investment account. 

Benefit terms, including contribution requirements, for the Plan are established and may be 
amended by the City Council. For each electing unclassified employee in the pension plan, the City is 
authorized to contribute to the Plan for the account of each eligible participant an amount of money equal 
to the "normal contributioe (as described in Louisiana Revised Statute 11:3013(B) and (C)) which the City 
would have been required to contribute to the statutory plan (Citv of Alexandria Employees Retirement 
System) on behalf of those employees. subject to any basic annual limitation proved hy statute or regulation. 
The contribution rate is set at May lst of each year at the nonnal contribution rate for the City of Alexandria 
Employees Retirement System for the prior calendar year. For the year ended April 30, 2024, the rate was 
set at 22.43%. Employees are permitted to make contributions to the pension plan, up to applicable Internal 
Revenue Code limits. The plan has two options which are administered hy MassMutual and Nationwide 
Retirement Solutions. As of April 30, 2024, the plan assets totaled $2,495,519 with MassMutual and 
$9,7M,157 with Nationwide. Employee contributions totaled $404,237, and the City recognized pension 
expense of $351,390 for the year ending April 30, 2024. All employer and employee contributions and 
earnings are immediately vested. 
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16) Post-employment Benefits 

Plan description — The City of Alexandria (the City) provides certain continuing health care and 
life insurance benefits for its retired employees. The City of Alexandria's OPEB Plan (the OPEB Plan) is a 
single employer defined benefit C)PEB plan administered by the City The authority to establish and:or 
amend the obligation of the employer, employees and retirees' rests with the City. No assets are 
accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (CiASB) 
Codification Section P52 Postemployment Benefits Other Thun Pensions—Reporting For Benefits Not 
Provided Through Trusts That 1feet Specified Criterio—Delined Benefit. 

Benefits Provided — Medical benefits are provided through a comprehensive medical plan and are 
made availahle to employees upon actual retirement. The employees are covered by a retirement system 
whose retirement eligibility provisions are as follows: 30 years of service at any age, age 55 and 25 years 
of service: age 60 and 20 years of service: or, age 62 and 10 years of service. 

Employees covered hy benefit terms — At April 30. 2024, the following employees were covered 
by the benefit terms: 

Inactive plan members and beneficiaries currently receiving henetits 

Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 

Active plan members 

Total 

Total OPEB Liability 

The City's total OPEB liahility of $19,475.642 was measured as of April 30. 2024 and was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial Assumptions and other inputs — The total ()PEB liability in the April 30, 2024 actuarial 
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods 
included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 2.0% 

Salary increases Service 1-4 years 6.4°.•;. 
Service 5-25+ years 4.5°1) 

Discount Rate 3.53% annually (Beginning of Year to Determine ADC) 
4 07%, annually (As of End of Year Measurement Date) 

Healthcare cost trend rates Getzen Model, with an initial trend of 5.5% 

Mortality Pub-2010 

78 

123 

613 

736 
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The discount rate was based on the average of the Bond Buyers' 20 Year General Obhganon 
municipal bond index on the applicable measurement dates. The RP-2010 combined healthy without 
projection. The actuanal assumptions used in the April 30, 2024 valuation were based on the results of 
ongoing evaluations of the assumptions from May 1, 2009 to April 30, 2024. 

Charms in the Total OPEB  

Balance at April 30. /t)13 

Changes for the year: 

Service cost 

Interest 
Differences between expected and ietual experience 

Changes in assumptions 

Benefit payments and net transfers 

Net changes 

S 20,541,1(17  

549.O2 

717,154 

(769,(139) 

(1.5(i3.332) 

(1.065,525)   

Balance at April 30, 2024 S 19,475.64/ 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate - The following presents the 
total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would he if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (3.07%) or I-percentage-point higher (5.07%) than 
the current discount rate: 

Current 

Discount 

Decrease Rate Increase 
5.071)0 

Total OPEB liability /0.919.009 S 19.475,642 S 18.14(,.s69  

Sensitivity of the total (WEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates — Ihe following 
presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability would be if it 
were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (4 .51-.0) or I -percentage-
point higher (6 5%) than the current healthcare trend rates: 

Current 
1°.•0 Trend 

Decrease Rate Increase 

4.50% 5.50% 6.50% 
Total OPEB liahility $ 17,651,5 )3 $ 19.475.642 S 21,5ii1,333  



CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LC)UISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

OPEB Expense ancl Defened Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to ()PEB 

For the year ended April 30, 2024, the City recopized OPEB benefit of 304,603. At April 30, 
2024, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to C)PEB 
from the following sources: 

Governmental Activities 

Difference between expected and 

Deferred Outfltms 

of Resources 

Deterred Inflows 

of Resources 

  

actual experience S 3.444,605 $ 850,386 

Change of assumptions 1,456,631 2,996,112 

Total S 4.901.236 $ 3.S46,498 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred intlows of resources related 

to C)PEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows. 

Year Ended 

April 30, 
10,5 $ (8,117) 

2026 (8,115) 

2027 218.574 
7018 385.995 

2029 70.018 

2030-2033 396.3)f;3 

 

S 1.054.738 

(17) Commitments and Contineencies 

Litieation 

The City is subject to litigation arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion of the City 
Attorney, there are cases pending in which there is at least a possibility that the plaintiff could he entitled 
to monetary damages. However. the City belie% es that its financial position would not be adversdy affected 
due to the availability of reserves in the remote event that the plaintiff prevails. 

Management has not calculated the possible rebate of arhitrage interest, as of April 30, 2024, on 
each of the recent tax-exempt bond issues. The contingent liability, stated simply, is the interest earned 
frorn the investment of unspent bond proceeds that is in excess of the amount of earnings that would have 
been obtained had the investment rate been equal to the yield on the bonds Since the rebate calculation is 
a cumulative calculation performed until all proceeds have been expended, management believes that the 
amount of the contingent liability for arbitrage interest, if any, will be eliminated in future years. In the 
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event that the contingent liability for arbitrage interest is not elimmated, the City will be hable for remittance 
of the rebate amount, as subsequently calculated, to the federal government. 

The City is a defendant in a suit entitled "Charles W. Armand, et al vs. City of Alexandria" referred 
to as the "dual pay plan". Nothing is currently set or pending but the claim is viable. In the opinion of legal 
counsel, some contingent exposure for possible payment of wages and other considerations may be 
considered. Management and legal counsel for the City are unable to provide reasonable estimates of the 
claims amount, if any, and it is not practical to calculate such amounts under current known facts mid 
conditions. 

Urant Audits 

The City receives federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit 
by federal and state agencies. Such audits could result in a request for reiinbursement by these agencies for 
expenditures disallowed under the terms and conditions of the appropriate agency. In the opinion of City 
management, such disallowances, if any, will not be significant to the City's financial statements. 

(18) Leases 

The City of Alexandria is a party to several separate operating lease agreements with entities to 
lease land and various equipment. The term of each lease range from thirty six (36) to sixty (60) months 
beginning on various dates. In accordance with the standards of GASB 87, the City recognizes a lease 
liability and an intangihle right-to-use lease asset { lease asset) in the government-wide financial statements, 
and recognizes proceeds from leased liability (as an other financing source) as well as a the leased asset, 
(as an expenditure in the related function) in the fund financial statements. 

The following is a summary of changes in the leased asset liability for the Governrnental activities 
for the year ended April 30, 2024: 

Beginning Ending Due Within 

Balance .AcIditions Reductions Balance One Year 

Governmental activities. 
Leased asset liability $ 291,445 ti $ 177.177 S 114,268 ¶ 47,537  

Payments on the lease habihty as of April 30, 2024 are as follows. 

Year Endine Principal Interest 

April 30. Payments Payments Total 
2025 $ 47.537 S 2.744 $ 50.281 

1016 10,065 1 ,701 12,267 
1017 10,396 1,870 12,266 

2028 10.740 1.527 12,267 
2029 35.530 2.408 37.93g 

Totals $ 114.268 S 10.751 S 125.019 
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The following is a summary of changes in the leased asset liability for the Business tvpe Activities 
for the year ended April 30, 2024: 

 

Beeinning 

Balance Additions Reductions 

Ending 

Balance 

Due Within 

One Year 

Busines-type actkities: 

     

Utility Systems Fund 

Leased asset liability S 61.182 S 31,493 S 29.689 S 29.689 

Other enterprise funds 

Leased asset liability 61.381) 438.778 69.265 430,893 78,6)7 

Total business-type activities 

leased asset liability S 122.562  S 438,778 S 100.758  S 460.5S2 S 108.316  

Payments on the lease liability as of April 30, 2024 are as tbllows 

Utility Systems Fund 

Year Ending Principal Interest 

April 30, Payments Payments 

'0/5 29,689 $ 520 $ 30,209 

Other Business-Type Activities 

Year Ending Principal Interest 

April 30. Payments Payments Total 

2025 $ 78.6'7 S 7,3.03 7 S 101.664 

2026 83,393 18,271 101,664 

2027 88,449 13.215 101.664 

2028 93.811 7.853 101.664 

'019 86,613 1,119 88,842 

 

S 430.893 S 64.605 S 495.498 
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119) Compensation, Benefits. and C)ther Payments to Mayor 

A detail of compensation, benefits, and other payments paid to Mayor Jacques M. Roy for the year 
ended April 30, 2024 are as follows. 

Jacques M. 

Purpose Roy  
Salary $ 141,595 

Benefits-medicare 2,548 

Benefits-health insurance 23,169 
Benefits-retirement 22,212 

C'ar allowance 7,705 
Travel 768  

$ 197,997  

(20) Compensation of City Officials 

A detail of conipensation paid to the City Council members for the year ended Apnl 30, 2024 
follows: 

Felter, Elizabeth M 

Fowler, Charles L Jr 

Johnson, Gary 

Perry, Cynthia 
Rubin, Lee 
Villard, James A 
Washington. Reddex 

S 25,200 

25,200 

25,200 

25,200 
25,200 
25,200 
25,200 

 S 176,400 

(2 1) Risk NianaLreinent 

A. Risk Nianawmcnt Fund 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefi or damage to and 
destruction of assets: errors and omissions: injuries to employees: and natural disasters. The 
City employs a Risk Management Fund (an internal service fund) to account for and finance 
its uninsured risks of loss. Under this program, the Risk Management Fund provides coverage 
up to the maximum amounts indicated ui the following table. The City purchases commercial 
insurance for clainis in excess of coveraee provided by the Fund and for all other risks of loss. 
Settled claims did not exceed this commercial coverage for the fiscal year ended April 30, 
2024. All claims are now handled hy the City Attorney's office with the City pnmanly liable 
for any and all claim settlements 
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Loss Retained 
Each 

Occurrence  

Limits of Insurance 
ln 

Ageregate     
General liability $ 500.000 .)(►0,U►10 

Workers' compensation 500.000 None 
Automobile liability 200,000 1.000,000 

All funds of the City participate in the progam and make payments to the Risk 
Management Fund based upon actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and 
current year claims. The claims liability of $11,964.742 as of April 30, 2024 is based on the 
requirements of GASB, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information 
prior to thr issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has 
been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can he 
reasonably estimated. The City has elected to record the liability on the discounted basis. 
Changes in the City's claims liability amount were as follows for the fiscal years ending April 
30: 

 

2024 )0'3 

Unpaid claims, beginning $ S,5i£;,713 $7,920,956 

Claims incurred 7,086,065 5,792.827 
Claims payments (3.6(i0,036) {5,175,07(t) 

Unpaid claims, ending $11.964.742 $8.53X,713 

B. Employment Benefits Fund 

The City employs an Employee Benefits Insurance Fund tan internal service fund) to 
account for and tinance employee hospitalization:health insurance and certain employee lite 
insurance. Under this program, the Employee Benetits Insurance Fund normally provides 
coverage for a maximum of $125,000 per plan year for each covered employees t and 
dependent's, if applicable) qualifying health claims Commercial insurance is purchased for 
health clairns in excess of self-insured maximum of $125010 for each covered employee's tand 
dependent's, if applicable) qual4ing health claims. The Fund does not have a maximum 
aggregate retained loss. The Employee Benefits Insurance Fund also purchases certain 
employee life insurance from employee contributions. 

Applicable funds of the City and covered employees participate in the program and 
make payments to the Employee Benefits Insurance Fund based on estnnates of the amount 
needed to pay current year claims. The claims liability of $707,352 reported in the Fund at 
April 30, 2024, is based upon the requirements of GASB, which requires that a liability for 
claims be reported if infbrmation prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that 
it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the tinancial statements and the 
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Changes in the City's claims liability amount 
were as follows for the fiscal years ending April 30. 
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2024 2023 

 

Unpaid claims, beginning $ 753,900 $ 527,202 

 

Claints incurred 9,163,537 8.583,747 

 

Claims payments {9,210,0851 (8.357,049) 

 

Unpaid claims, ending $ 707,352 $ 753,900 

C. Unemployment Benefits Fund 

  

The City employs an Unemployment Benefits Fund (an internal service fund) to pay 
self-insured unemployment claims under state statutes. All claims are administered by the state 
unemployment office. Approved claims are paid hy the state, which invoices the City kir 
reimbursement. All fimds of the City participate in the program. 

During the years ended April 30, 2024 and 2023, claim payments of $21,665 and 
$19,845 were paid by the Unemployment Benefits Fund. Nfanagement believes that sufficient 
investments are availahle in the Unemployment Benefits Fund to pay claims from investment 
earnings. Claims due as of Apnl 30, 2024 and 2023, are considered immaterial and are not 
included in this report. 

( 22 ) Interfund Receivables 'Payables and Interffind Tranfers 

A. A summary of interfund receivables and payables at April 30. 2024 follows: 

lnterfund 

Receivables 

Interfund 

Payabks 

General fund $ 6,764.416 $ 1.199.359 

General capital projects fund 116.670 

 

Other governmental funds 319,007 9,013 

Internal service fiands 885,000 

 

Utilities system enterprise fiind 43,985 5,190.658 

Other business-type fluids 1.689,435 3,419,483 

Total $ 9.818,513 $ 9,818.513 

The amounts due from the General Fund to various other funds are for reimbursements 
owed for expenditures paid for those funds. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LC)UISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

B. Interfund transfers consisted of the following at April 30, 2024. 

Transfers In Transfers Out 

General fund $ 9,971,000 S 2.523.000 

General capital projects fund 100,000 724,599 

Other governmental funds 

 

185,000 

Internal service funds 1,770.000 

 

Utilities system enterprise fund 119.000 10,490,000 

Other business-type funds 4,205,599 2,243,000 

Total $ 16.165,599 $ 16,165,599 

Transfers are used to (a) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires 
to collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them and to tb) use 
unrestricted revenues collected to tinance various programs accounted for in other fimds in 
accordance with budgetary authorizations. 

(23) On-Behalf Payments 

The City has recognized $1.562,954 as intergovernmental revenue and expenditures in the General 
Fund for on-behalf salary payments paid directly to certain employees meeting statutory requirements. C)f 
the total payments, $773,050 was paid to police and S789.904 to firemen. 

(24) Deficit Fund Balance 

The Internal Service Funds of the City had a deficit fund balance on April 30, 2024, of $17,321.103. 
The deficit will be tinanced through future transfers to the funds for services provided. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LOUISIANA 

General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2024 

 

Budget 

 

Actual 

Variance 

Positive 

(Negative) 

 

Original Final 

Re% enues: 

Taxes 

    

Property taxes S 3,816,000 $ 4.023,000 $ 4.284,604 S 261.604 

Sales taxes 38.202,000 46.000,000 49,696.810 3.696.810 

Franchise 510,000 510,000 534,249 24.249 

Licenses and permits 2,885,000 3.085,00(1 3.638,122 553,1" 

Intereovernmental 

    

Federal 35,000 5,680,000 10.414,539 4,734,539 

State 1.697,000 1,898,000 2,201.031 303,031 

Charges for services 220,000 354,000 4 7'1,967 68.967 

Fines and fees 277,000 '69,000 209.400 (59.6(10) 

Inveitment income - 70,000 290,708 220.708 

Miscellaneous 3'1,000 218,000 39).985 174.985 

Total revenues 47,963,000 62.107.000 72.085,415 9.978,415 

Expenditures: 

    

Current - 

    

General government 20,106.29(1 20.772,504 18.737,(164 2.035.440 

Public safety 28.845,142 33,850,855 32,124.542 1.726.313 

Public works 11,503,703 13.127.132 12.242,452 884,680 

Capital outlay 2.809,865 8,561,669 4,213.860 4.347.809 

Debt service - 

    

Principal retirement 

  

177,177 (177.177) 

Interest and fiscal charges 

  

7.268 (7.268) 

Total expenditures 63.'65.0(H) 76,312.100 67.507,363 8,809,797 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditures (15.302,000) (14.205,160) 4,583.052 18.788.212 

Other financinc. ;ources (uses): 

    

Proceed!, from ',ale of fixed assets 

 

33,0041 9,764 (23,236) 

Transfers in 9.949,00(1 9,971,000 9.971,000 

 

Transfers out (5.313.000) (2.523,000) (2,523.0001 

 

Total other financing sources (uses) 4_636.000 7.481,000 7,4:s7.764 (23.236) 

Net chanue in fund balance (10,6(i6,000) (6.724,160) 12.040,816 18,764,976 

Fund balance. beginning 35.168,529 35,168,529 35.168,519 

 

Fund balance. endine S 24.502,529 $ 28.444,369 $ 47.209,345 S 18,704,976 

88 



CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB and Related Ratios 

For the Year Ended April 30. 2024 

 

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 

Total C)PEB Liabtlity 

      

Service cost $ 549.692 $ 572,519 S 319.888 $ 296,313 S 185,396 $ 176,741 

Interest 717,154 596.088 439,909 495.577 711,137 787.441 

Changes of benefit terms 

  

- - 

  

Differences between expected and actual experience - 4.221,409 605.210 (1.536,364) 561,816 (628,210) 

Changes of asstunptions (769,(►39) (2,325.558) (1,609,750) 176.244 2.152,491 264.206 

Benetit payments (1,563.332) (1.263,881) (959.344) (972,255) (1,778,356) (1.5(i4.563) 

Net change in total OPEB liability ( I,065.525) 1.80(f,577 (1,204.087) (1.540,485) 1,832,484 (964,385) 

Total OPEB liability - heginning 20,541.167 18.740,590 19.944.677 21.485,162 19,(i52.678 20,617,063 

* Total OPEB - ending $ 19.475.642 $ 20.541,167 S 18.740.590 $ 19.944,677 S 21.4S5.162 $ 19.652,678 

Covered-employee payroll S 29,212,566 1 7.954.0)9 :s $ /5,"3.789 $ 29.212,743 $ 28.089.176 

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-
employee pwoll 66.67% 73 48% 71.44% 7907"0 73.55'?;, 69.97% 

* Equal to Net ()PEB Liability. 

      

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years Additional \ ears %yin he displayed as they become in lahle. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LOUISLANA 

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios 

COAERS 
Foi the Year Ended April 30. 2024 

Total Pension Liability 
• 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 

         

Service costs $ 4.820.959 1 4.171.af,1 $ 4.029.079 $ 3.617.187 S 3.508.934 S 3.444.992 S 3.218.971 S 2,975,969 S 3.263.636 
1 mei est 12,906,555 12.163.619 12.389.240 11.908.564 11,709,404 11.358.256 11.521.228 11.376.092 11.165.902 

Changes of benefit terms 2.280.4110 2,177,5-10 L984.131 

  

369.833 

  

1.249.682 
Dffletence between expected and 

acttial experience 317.646 6.670.989 (3.202.937) 1 017  964 4918.159) 76(1.132 (3.522.2401 (857.021) (1 157 889) 
Changes nf assumptions 

  

9.596.766 10.9-12.477 

  

8.726.019 3,553,024 3.12-1.571 
Benefit payments 113.224.042( r 12.245.313, (12.719.2-15) (11.301.682) (10.493.619i (9.1O5.151) 49.240.582) (9,042,968 (9.0)4.0331 
Retina:1s of member contribniums (556.489i 4414.8381 1869.893) (518.168) (468.497) I 300.(► l 2) (596.958) 1352.3401 (353.939) 
other 754."1 ”4 O61 354) 4457.856) 8(1.906 

 

(83.881) 47.1(22 (42 820) 146.848 

Net Change m Total Pension Liability 7.298.867 12,202,104 10.749.265 15 747 248 3,338,..63 C.094.169 10 154 260 7.609.936 8.-434.778 

Ti ital Pension Liability - Begnining 224.127.203 211.865.099 201.115.814 185.168.566 182.031).503 1'6.336.334 166,182,074 158.572.138 150.137.360 
Ttaal Pension Liability -Ending (a) ) 211.41'6.070 ) 224 127 2(?1 ) '11 86i 099 201.1Ichl-t $ Ihc 365 52 ! S 152 030.501 $ 176316_334 % 166 182 cri 

 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

         

Contributions - Nlember 2.183.163 $ 2,023,710 $ 1.836.726 $ 1.954.355 $ 1.935,419 S 1.690.978 $ 1.873.690 S 1.830.452 S 1.790.965 

Contributions - Employel 5.246.271 4,849.023 4.001.269 4 220 444 3,991,734 4.609.374 4 734 943 4,580,596 4.858,476 
Net investment income 28.583.486 (29.717.538) 29.5-11.096 33 642 350 37.487.306 (9.882.707) 17 882 012 11.1-43.790 (4 378 3491 
Benetit payments (13.224i-421 (12.245.313) (12.719.245) ill 301 682) (10.493.6191 (9.855.151) (9.240.582) (9.042.968) (9 004 033i 

R.etinids of member conuibniu (556.4891 1414.838) 1869.8931 (518.168) 4468.497i 1300.(I1 2) (596.958) t 352.340) (353.939) 

Adiminstrative expenses (187.900) (178.687) (179.591) 4195 43h (165.687) (163.269) 4155 590) (149.330) (15.17771 
Othei 754.228 k361.354) (457,856) 80 906 

 

483.881) 47.822 (42.82(t) 146 848 

Net Change ni Plan Fithiciary Net Position 22,798,717 (36.044.997) 21.152.506 27.882.734 32.286.656 (13.784.668) 14.545.337 7.967.380 (7.090.809) 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 193.716.529 229.761.526 208.609.020 180.726.286 148.439.630 162.224.298 147.678.961 139.711.581 146.802.39(1 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending tb) ) 216 MS 74(1 ; 193.716.529 229.761.526 ) 2.18 6.19 020 180.726.286 $ 148.439.630 ) 162 224 298 ) 147.678.96 S 139 711 561 

Net Pension Liability4Asset) - Ending t a) - tb) $ 14.9111.824 S 30.-110.674 it (17.896.427) $ 47A93.206) S 4.642.280 S 33.590.573 S 14.112.036 S 18.503.113 S 18.860.557 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage 
of the Total Pension Liability 93 56°0 86.43°‘ 108.45°0 103 73.!* 97.50'0 81.55°0 92 0..°0 88.87%0 88.114 0 

Covered-employee payroll 23.162.34-4 1 21191325 $ 20.208.429 $ 21.379.959 S 211.716.251 S 20.368.422 S 19.894.718 S 19.384.664 S 18.643.423 

Net Pension Liability (Asset) as a peiveutage 
covered employee payroll 64 31..'0 137.03°; -88.56°0 -35 0.5.!0 22.39'o 164.921'0 70 93°0 95.45% 101.16tio 

The amounts piesented have If nteasuiement dare ol the previous year ending DeLemlier 3 l 

wh,..dule hitemied shun iOrmatienflie in eery, .4.hioriunal "no-% will be di 400E-414v :her become dedilable 
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Aptil 3rt .Apnl 30. April 36. April 30. April 30. April 

2021 2020 2010 2018 2017 201 h 

CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Changes in Ne Pension Liability and Related Ratios 

FPARF 

For die Year Ended Apill 30. 2024 

Total Pension Liability 

Service costs S S S S S S S S S 

Inteiest 1108 9 269 8.713 8,307 

Changes of benefit tenns 

Difference hem een expestei3 dud 

il0.1n6) actual expenence 525 33 370 

(Awes nf Assumptions 

i 14.9671 

- 

418...921 

- 7 051 

i l8.392) Benefit paymenis (I-1.025) (18..392) O8.392) (18 302) (18392i 

Refiind, of member coninhuiion, - 

(18,392) 

- 
Other 

(19,7b5) (18,392) ii1.598) Net Change in Total Pension Liability (12.917) (14,967 i (18.392) (18,392i 31.29u O8,392i 

Toial Pension Liability - Beginning 154.713 169 680 181O72 Zuk-16-1 12-1 ',54', 213,2-18 251,846 271,631 240 335 

Toial Pension Liability - Ending fa) Li41. -Laii s 154 711, ) 160 (.;:it :-. 1ER 0- ' S "o6 VA 5 "4 Sc6 S '41 ".iF S '51 R-16 ,S "1 511, 

Pian Fiduciary Net Poniion 

Coninbrilions - Member $ S s s S S s 22.000 S 22.000 S 22.000 

Coninlmiions - Employer - - - 

Net investment income 1108 841 

i 14.9671 

1611 107 861 1.170 200 141 125 

.13.7561 i 18.3921 Benefit pal.Ilienis (14.025) (18.392) (le.392 (13..492) (18.302i 

Refun& of member eclair ibutrons - - - 

Administrative expense, 

(18 392) 

Odra 

i 12.5-7 ) O8.195i Net Change in Plan Fidmiary Net Position (12 917) III.I2(6 3 8ue 3.74q 3 733 (Itt.232) (17 531) 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Begriming i.15 071 2, I 9-   7  u.-129 88.621 1116 155 123„,68 I 10,560 115.511 112 078  

Plan Fiduciary Net Posiiion - Ending ibi 5i::.1 54 I_IL.2.111 -..._1112L ji "1,112 ii5 6 71 S 110 '91  SL -a.I'li 1_  1 IQ iri0  1iilkii 

Net Pension Liabihty (.Asseti - Ending f a) - lb) S 116.642 S 110.642 S 117,483 S 117.64.1 S I I".84o S I I -Lilac S 11Y.Sgil S 132,286 s 155.820 

Plan Fuhiciary Net Pnsilion as a Peicentage 

of ihe Total Pension Liability 17.744s 24.01la 3(1.70% 37 -W!'n 42 92'u 40  2'a a 50 72'q 4" 47% 42 64** 

Covered-einployee payroll $ - S S S S S - $ S S 

Net Pension Liability fAs,et i as a percentage 

of cuyeied enipkiyee payroll N A NA N/A N:A N/A N A NiA N:A N/A 

Mea•Airenicul date April 3n 2n18 April 30. 2019 April 30. 2018 .April 3n 2(11 5 April 30. 2UIS Apnl 30. 2018 .Apnl 3° 21)15 April 30. 201" April 30. 2016 

Pot veettnic a otteitchtti to • bon Ittfi.tmotton for .to t...ut Addtro qv! i b•o s ad! be dt• FAn ett a: they Iwome .naaal•tr. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Employer's Share of Net Pension Liability 

MPERS and FRS 

For the Year Ended April 30. 2024 

    

Employer's 

  

Employer's Employer's 

 

Proportionate Share Plan Fiduciary 

 

Proportion Proportionate 

 

of the Net Pension Net Position 

Year of the Share of the Employer's Liability as a as a Percentage 
ended Net Pension Net Pension covered Percentaae of its of the Total 

April 30. Liability Liability Payroll Covered Payroll Pension Liability 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS) * 

2016 3.089654% $ 24,204,210 $ 8,265,621 292 83% 70.73% 

2017 2.939849% $ 27,554,668 $ £+.?35.?24 334.60% 66.04% 
2018 2.711096% $ 23,669,015 $ £+.l)74.1147 '93.15% 7{).U£+csb 

2019 2 619241% $ 22,143,224 $ 7,728,825 286.50% 71.89% 

2020 2.447169% $ 22.224,393 $ 7,642.256 290.81% 71.01% 

2021 2.514398% $ 23.238,897 $ 7,777.172 298.81% 70.94% 

10.), 2 234428% $ 11,910,723 $ 6,806,020 I 75.00% 84.09% 

2023 2.296261% $ 23.471,£G4 S G.113.3£+8 383.94% 70.80% 

2024 2.225546% $ 23.51?,£'_'5 S 7.523,147 312.54% 71.30% 

Firefighters Retirement System (FRS)* 

   

2016 2.595836% $ 14.010,018 S 5.524.733 '53.59% 72.45% 

2017 1.503373% $ 16,374,323 $ 5,653,225 289 65% 68.16% 

2018 2.380044% $ 13,642,053 $ 5.562.330 245.26% 73.55% 
2019 2.3785-44% $ 13,6£+1,571 $ 5.676.908 241.00% 74.76% 

2020 2 422111% $ 15,167,041 $ 5,848,928 '59.31% 73.96% 

2021 2.256678% $ 15.642,275 $ 5,612.502 278.70% 72.61% 
2022 2.077232% $ 7.361,403 $ 5,215.900 141.13% 86.78% 

10'3 2 110497% $ 14,881,731 $ 5,445,588 73.28% 74.68% 

2024 2 318004% $ 15,129,164 $ 6,132,148 246.72% 77.69% 

* The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous year ending June 30 

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 pars. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LOUISLANA 

Schedule of Employer Contributions 

For the Year Ended Awl 30. 2024 

Contnbutions an 

Relation to CI nanbunims 

Contractually Contractual Contribution Employea's as a % of 

Yeal r u, led Requited Requited Defictency Coveted ( 'ov ei ed 

Apial 30. Contlibution Coutlibutiou f Exces Pa IOU P‘t roll 

Municipal Police Empluees' Retirement System IMPERS) 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2021) 

2021 

2022 

2023 

2024 

$ 2.603.348 

$ 2.429.224 

$ 2.571.395 

S 2.446.584 

$ 2 515.305 

S 2 367.036 

S 2.100.309 

S 2.242.540 

$ 2.765,726 

$ 2.603.348 1 

$ 2.429,224 $ 

I 2,571,395 $ 

$ 2,446,584 $ 

$ 2.515.305 S 

$ 2.367.036 $ 

$ 2.100.309 $ 

S 2.242.540 $ 
$ 2 765.726 S 

S 8,265.621 

$ 8,116,308 

$ 7,782,119 

$ 7.641,089 

S 7.748.514 

S 7.058.164 
$ 6,811,657 

$ 7.'30,21i 

S 7.310,515 

31 50% 

29.93% 

33.04% 

32.02% 

32.-16% 

33.5-1% 

30.79% 

31.'5% 

37.83° 

Firefighter's Retirement System (FRS) 

  

2016 $ 1.615.984 $ l 615.984 S S 5.524,733 29.25% 

2017 $ 1.540.512 $ l 540.512 S S 5.570,846 27.65°.) 

2018 $ 1.406.404 $ l 406.404 S S 5.638,318 24.94°.) 
2019 S 1.539.275 $ 1.539.175 $ 1 5.808,586 26 50°8 

2020 S 1.571.906 $ 1.571,906 $ 1 5.705,353 27 55°8 

2021 $ 1.659.641 $ 1.659.641 S S 5.260.488 31 55% 

2022 $ 1.783.717 $ 1.783.717 S S 5.324.666 33 50,0 

2023 S 1.980.021 S 1,980,021 'I $ 5,945,333 33.'5% 

2024 S 2.109.357 S 2,109,357 'I $ 6.343,931 33.'5% 

City of Alexandria Employees' Retirement System (COAERS) 

  

2016 S 4.843.760 S 4.843.760 S $ 19,610,365 1 4.70°Et 

2017 S 4.517.698 S 4.517.698 S $ 19,557,386 1 3.10% 

2018 $ 4.847.332 $ 4 84 7.332 S S 20,060,745 24.16% 

2019 $ 4.472.320 $ 4 47'.3'0 S S 20,449,894 21.87% 

2020 S 3.718.248 S 3.718.248 $ $ 20,726,193 17.94% 

2021 S 4.209.082 S 4.209.082 1 $ 20,392.841 20.64°8 

2022 $ 3.945  759 5 3 945.759 S S '0,303,020 19.43% 

2023 $ 5.234.54-1 $ 5 234.544 S S 21,919,495 23.09% 

2024 S 5.182.757 $ 5.181...757 $ 1 23,162,344 22 38° 

City of Alexandria Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund (FPARF) 

  

2016 $ Z2.000 $ 18.267 S (3,733) S NiA 

2017 S 22.000 1 18.251 'I (3,749) 1 

 

2018 S 22.000 I 18.192 'I (3,8081 1 

 

2019 S - $ - S - S N A 

2020 S - 1 S $ N A 

2021 S $ S S 

 

2022 S $ S S 

 

2023 S $ S S 

 

2024 S - S S s N A 

Thir srholtili,  rs rthended ro %how thirtrmatinn Jor lu ream Additionai vetirc it'd/ hF ,Inplatof as they &row ,naillthir 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Investment Returns 

COAERS 

For the Year Ended Apral 30. 2024 

 

* 2024 10/3 2022 2021 2020 

Annual money-weighted rate of- return 

net of investment expense 

 

15.00% -13.10u.4, 14.50% 18.9(tu.4, 25.70% 

  

2019 2018 2017 2016 

 

Annual money-weighted rate of return 

net of investment expense 

 

-6.10% 12 20% 8.10% -3 00% 

 

* The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous year ending December 31. 

This schedule Is Intended io show it!folnhilion for 11) ycor5. Adcluional years be displayed as they become availahk 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LC)UISIANA 

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information 

(1) Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The City follows these procedures in estabhshing the budgetary data retlected in the financial 
statements. 

(a) The preparation of the budget begins in December of the current fiscal year when 
Budget Preparation Manuals are distributed to City departments. These are due back 
to the Budget CHlice the following January for review and compilation. In February, 
the Administrative Review process is completed. The proposed budget for the next 
fiscal year is submitted to the City Council for review by March 15 in compliance with 
the City's Home Rule Charter. 

(b) A summary of the proposed hudget is published, and the public notified that the 
proposed hudget is available for public inspection. At the same time. a public hearing 
is called. 

(c) A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after puhlication of 
the call for the hearing. 

(d) After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to 
finalize and implement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage of a 
resolution prior to the commencement of the tiscal year for which the budget is being 
adopted. 

(e) Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department, program 
or function to another or invol‘ mg increases in expenditures resulting from revenues 
exceeding amounts estimated require the approval of the Council. 

(f) All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

(g) Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP). Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as 
finally amended by the Council. 

(2) Retirement System Pkins 

A. Changes in Benefit Terrns 

There were no changes of benefit terms. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LC)UISIANA 

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information 

B. Changes of Assumptions 

Year ended 

1piil 30. 

Di ccount 

Rate 

Investment Expected 

Rate Inflation Remaining 

of Rennn Rate Service Lives 

Projected 

Salary 

Increase 

*Munkipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

2016 7.50010 7.500% 2 8756o 

2017 7.500% 7.500"o 2.875% 

2018 7.325% 7.3'5% 2 700°0 

2019 7.200% 7.200°0 2.600°0 

2020 7.125% 7.125% 2 500° o 

2021 6.950% 6.9501  i) 2 50010 

2022 6.750% 6.750°o 500% 

2023 6.75010 6.750% 2 500°o 

2024 6.750% 6.750% 2.500% 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 25°u - 9.75°o 

4 25°0 - 9.75% 

4.2510 - 9.75° o 

4 25% - 9.75°0 

4 250 o - 9.750 o 

4.70% - 12 30% 

4.70°o - 12 30°0 

4.70(to - 12 301.0 

4.70% - 12.30% 

*Firelighters Retirement System of Louisiana 

  

2016 7 50° o 7 50°o 2 875% 7 4.75°0 - 15 00% 

2017 7 50% 7 50% 2 875% 7 -I.75° o - 15 00°o 

2018 7 400.0 7 401.0 2 750% 7 4.75°G - 15 00°0 

2019 7 30% 7 30°0 2 700°o 7 4.75% - 15 00% 

2020 7 15% 7 15% 2.500% 7 4.50°O - 14.75% 

2021 7.00% 7.000 o 2 500% 

 

5.20% - 14 10% 
,0,, 6 901•O 6 901•O 2.5000 0 7 5.200 o - 14.1010 

1023 6.9010 6.9010 5006 o 7 5.20°o - 14 IO% 

2024 6 90% 6 90% 250040 7 5.20°o - 14 10% 

**City of Alexandria Employees' Retirement System 

  

2016 7 25% 7 250 0 2.75% 4 4 75% 

2017 7 00°0 7 00% -7.75°0 4 4 75% 

2018 6 501.0 6 50% 2.5010 4 4 50% 

2019 6.50°o 6.500 o 2.-10% 4 4 50% 

2020 6 50°o 6 50°o 2.400 o 4 4.50% 

2021 6.2510 6.2510 2.30% 4 5 00% 
,0,, 5 801.O 5 801.O 2.20% 4 4.90°0 

20'3 5 80% 5 SO° o 1.100.0 4 4 90% 

2024 5 80% 5 80% 2.20% 4 4 90% 

City of Alexandria Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund (FPARF) 

  

2016 3 32% 3 1, 0 0 N.A 4 N/A 
2017 3 82°0 3 82°0 4 N A 

2018 3 90% 3 90% NiA 4 NA 
2019 3.90°o 3.90°o N: A 4 N/A 

2020 3 90°0 3 90°0 N A 4 N/A 

2021 3.9010 3.9010 NIA 4 N:A 
,0,, 3 901.O 3 901•O 4 N A 

2023 3 90% 3 90% NA 4 N/A 

2024 3 90% 3 90°0 NA 4 

 

*The amounts presented have a measurement date the premms June 30. 

**The amounts presented have a measurement date qf previous December 31 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information 

(31 Other Post-Employment Benefits 

2024 2023 2O_'2 2021 2020 

 

Benefit changes None None None None None 

Changes of assumptions 

     

Discount rate 4.071, 3.53% 3.19% 2.36% II.36% 

Mortality PUB-2010 PUB-2010 RP-2014 RP-20I4 RP-2000 

Trend 5.50'1.1, c.50% 5.50% 5.50% c.50% 

 

2019 

    

Benefit changes None 

    

Changes of assumptions 

Discount rate 3.79% 

    

Mortality RP-2000 

    

Trend 5.50% 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 

Utilities System Enterprise Fund 
Unaudited Summary of Utility Servke Customers 

April 30, 2024 

Number 

Type of Service of Customers 

Elearkity 13,966 
Water 21,418 

Gas 15,426 

Wastewater 16.826 
Sanitation 14.813 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LOUISIANA 

Unaudited Listing of Insurance in Force 
April 30, 2024 

Property 
Insurer: XL Insurance America, Inc 

Expiration date. May 6, 2025 
Coverage: 

Rea1 property, comprising buildings, and personal property 

Self- insured retention: 
$100,000 per occurrence deductibles 

Policy limits of liability: 
$204,591,037 per occurrence with specified sublimits 

Boiler and Machinery 
Insurer: Ace American Insurance Company 

Expiration date. May 6, 2025 
Comprehensive boiler and machinery coverage inctudimi productim machines 

Loss retention: 

Varies with a minimum of $50,000 per occurrence 

Policy limits of liability: 

$50,000,000 per accident with specified sublimits 

General Liability! Law Enforcement 
Insurer.  American Alternative Insurance Coporation 
Expiration date: May 6, 2025 

Coverage: 

Bodily injury and property damage, personal and advertising injury, and law enforcement liability 
Selt- insured retention: 

$500,000 each and eNery loss and/or claim and;or occurrence 
Policy limits of liability: 

$2,000,000 each and every loss andi or occurrence Combined Single Limit 

$4,000,000 in the aggregate annually as respects products completed operations 

Cyber Policy 
Insurer.  Traveler Cornpanies, Inc. 

Expiration date: March 5. 2025 

Self- insured retention: 
$25,000 each occurrence 

Policy limits of liability: 
$1,000,000 per occurrence with sublimits 

(continued) 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LOUISIANA 

Unaudited Listing of Insurance in Force (continued) 
April 30, 2024 

Employee Benefits Liability 
Insurer: American Alternative Insurance Corporation 

Expiration date. May 6, 2025 

Coverage: 
Any negligent act, error or omission in the administration of the Insured's ernployee benefits 

programs. 

Self- insured retention: 

S500,000 each and every loss and'or claim and:or occurrence 

Policy limits of liability: 
S2,000.000 each and every loss andior occurrence Combined Single Limit 

S4,000,000 in the aggregate annually as respects products.' completed operations 

Specific Excess Workers' Compensation and Employers Liahility Indemnity 

Insurer: Safety National Casualty Company 
Expiration date: May 6, 2025 

Coverage: 
Workers' compensation- statutory 

Employers' - anv cause of action by an employee against the City for bodily injury or 

disease in the course of employment 
Loss retention. 

S750,000 per occurrence 
Policy limits of liability: 

Workers' compensation - statutory 

Employers' liability - S1.000,000 per occurrence 

Fidelity Bond 
Insurer. Ohio Casualty Insurance Company 

Expiration date: May 21, 2025 

Coverage: Tax Collector 
Policy limits of liahility: S10,000 

Public Employees Honesty Bond 

Insurer: Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland 

Expiration date: September 1, 2025 
Loss retention.  S10,000 per occurrence 

Policy limits of liability: S100,000 per ernployee 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LOLTISENNA 

Justice System Funding Schedule - Receiving Entity 
As Required by ACT 87 of the 2020 Reeular Legislative Session 

Cash Basis Presentation 

Year Ended April 30, 2024 

General Fund 

First Sh Month 
Period Ended 

10/31/2023 

Second Six Month 
Period Ended 

4/30/2024 

Receipts From: 

   

Alexandria City Court - PTI Collections w 24,373 $ 25,405 

Alexandria City Court - Police Officer Witness 41 

 

60 

Alexandria City Court - Fees 46,435 

 

26,827 

Alexandria City Marshall - DWI Collections 1,811 

 

1,579 
Alexandria Citv Marshall - Fines 42,567 

 

59.090 

Total revenues 115,?")7 

 

112,961 

Total receipts ti 115,7"7 

 

112,961 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Honorable Jacques Roy, Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Alexandria, Louisiana, as 
of and for the year ended April 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the City of Alexandria, Louisiana's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated 
October 31, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Alexandria, 
Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Alexandria, Louisiana's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not 
identified. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs as item 2024-001, that we consider to be a material weakness. 



Report un Compliance and Other la tiers 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Alexandria. Louisiana's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect 
on the financial statenients. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

City of Alexandria, Louisiana's Response to Findings 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform linuted procedures On the City of 
Alexandria, Louisiana's response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs. The City of Alexandria, Louisiana', response was not subjected to the other 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the 
response. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to pro% ide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or 
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. However, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24.513, this report is distributed by the 
Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Kolder„Slaven & Company, LI. C 
Certified Public Accountants 

Alexandria, Louisiana 
October 31, 2024 
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" A Professional Accounting Corporation 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

The Honorable Jacques Roy, Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the City of Alexandria, Louisiana's compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on 
the City of Alexandria, Louisiana's major federal program for the year ended April 30, 2024. The City of 
Alexandria, Louisiana's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the City of Alexandria, Louisiana complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal programs 
for the year ended April 30, 2024. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U. S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of City of Alexandria, Louisiana and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Alexandria, Louisiana's 
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 



Responsibilities of Management fir compliance 

Management is responsible fim compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over comphance with the requirements of laws, 
statutes. regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the City of Alexandria, 
Louisiana's federal programs. 

.4 uditor's Responsibilities fOr the Audit of C Mnplianee 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncomphance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the 
City of Alexandria, Louisiana's compliance hased on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards, Government .4uditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect 
material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is 
higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud niay involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations. or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requiremems referred 
to ahove is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggegate, it would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on cornpliance about the City of Alexandria, 
Louisiana's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing 
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we. 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a 
test basis. e‘idence regarding the City of Alexandria. Louisiana's compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary 
in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the City of Alexandria. Louisiana's internal control over compliance 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of 
Alexandria, Louisiana's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

We are required to conununicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters. the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and any sigrificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control 
over compliance that we identitied during the audit. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that might he material weaknesses or signiticant deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. However. as discussed below, we did identify a certain deficiency in internal control m er 
compliance that we consider to he a significant deficiency 
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, 
to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control orer compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected. on a timely hasis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency. or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance 
descrihed in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2024-002 to be a signiticant 
deficiency. 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City of 
Alexandria, Louisiana's response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs. The City of Alexandria. Louisiana's response was not suhjected to the other 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the 
response. 

()ur audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitahle for any other purpose. However, under Louisiana Revised Statute 
24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Kolder, Slaven al Company, LLC 
('ertitied Public Accountants 

Alexandria. Louisiana 
October 31, 2024 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LOUISIANA 

Srleduk of Expenditures of Federal .Awards 
For the Year Ended April 30. 2024 

Federal GrantorPass-ThroughGrantor 

Tule 

Assisiance 

Listing 
Niunber 

Pass-through 

Ideutifpng 
No 

 

Federal 
ExNutlintres 

Amounh 
passed 

T1uough to 
Suhret. [virtu s 

U.S. Depainueut of Housing aud Urban Developmeii? 
Office of Conummity Mamma and Developmeni 
Comnumay Development Block Grants Entitlement 

     

Grants - CDBG - Entitlement Ciranls Cluster 14218 

  

$ 524.435 S 
Brownfields Coopei alive Agreements 66.818 

  

58.476 

 

Home Invesunent Partnership; Program 14.239 

  

65,997 

 

Lead Hazard Redircnon Demonstration Grant Program 14 905 

  

28'.829 

 

Total U S Department of Huns* and Urban Development 

   

921.737 

 

S Department of Justue Offite ofJustice Programs 

     

Passed through 1...orusiana Commisson on Law Enforcement 
and the Adimmstratiou of Criminal Justise 

     

Cnme Victim .Assrstance 16.575 2021-VA-02,01;03-7165 S 25.12S 

  

Cnme Victim .Assrstance hi 575 2021-VA-02 01 '03-7491 15693 

  

Subtotal Assistance Listing Number 16 575 

   

43.821 

 

Edward Byine Memonal Justice .Assistance Giant Plogram 16 607 I 5PBJA-22-GG-00080-BRND 

 

276.000 

 

Passed through die Ciry ot Shreveport 

     

Protect Safe Neighborho,as 16109 2022-PSN-03-00769 14.I4 

  

Projer.t Sale Neighborlio,ds If. 609 202I-PSN-04-01 B.705 

  

Subtotal Assistance Lisnng Nunibei 16 609 

   

27.85? 

 

Pa3sed through Rapides Palish Shenffs Office 

     

Edward Byrne Meinonal Justice .Assistnni.e Gtanr 

     

PrOCTaIll 16 738 2019-DJ-BX-0382 719 

  

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice AssIstance Giant 

     

Program 16.738 I. 5PBJA-2 -GG-0150o-JAGX 
37 906 

  

Subtotal Assistance Listing Number l6.609 

   

38,625 

 

Timid U S Deparunent of Justice 

   

386.294 

 

United Slates Deparunent of Homeland Secunty - 

     

Passed-through the Rapides Pansh Police Jury 

Homeland Secuniy Grant Piogram 97 067 EMW-2020-SS-00111 I -Sol 

 

3.4-46 

 

Total United Siates Department of Homeland Security 

   

3,446 

 

Untied Stales Department nt I reasury - 

Coronas gni Site and Local fiscal Recos ery Funds 21.027 

  

11.2,70.(00 

 

Total United States Department of Treasury 

   

11.2c)(1.0no 

 

iconimuein 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. 
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CITY OF .ALEXANDRIA. LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Eventbrines of Fedeml Awards (continued) 

For the Year Ended Apnl 30. 2024 

    

Amounts 

Assistance Pass-through 

  

passed 
Federal GI ant. kr 113.:%-ThrotaglaGnintol Listing Identifying 

 

Fedei d Through to 

Program Tule tuber No 

  

Subrecipievi 

Lliuted States Department of Tlansporliition 

    

Federal Iransit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Alea 

    

Formult, Grants) - Federal Transit Cluster - Cares Act 20.50' LA2024005 998,333 

  

Fe‘leral Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Ai ea 

    

Fonuula Grants) - Federal Transit Clustei '0 507 LA2022018 87.079 

  

Fedend Transu - Formula Grants (thhanized Area 

    

Formula Grants) - Federal Transit Cluster 20 507 LA20220 !foil 390.4148 

  

Fedeial Transit - Fonnula Grants (Urbanized Alen 

    

Formula Giants) - Federal transit Clustei 20 Cr I7 LA2021002 182.41' 

  

Total Federil Transit Clustei Assistance Lasting Number 20 507 

  

1.658.517 

 

Federal Hrithway Admnnstranon (FHWAI 

    

Passed through State of Lotnsiana Department of Tmnsportion 

    

Haghway Plannang and Construction Cluster 20.205 H 0l4167 6 128.718 

  

Highway Planning ancl Construction - 

    

Highway Planning ancl Construction Cltistei 20.205 H o00574 6 465.459 

  

Total Felletal Highway Administration (FHWA) 
Assistance Listing Number 20 205 

  

594.177 

 

National Highway Iraflic Safety Administration 

    

Passed through the State ot Louisiana Departilleill of Transportation 

    

State and Community Highway Satery - Highway 

    

Salety Chister 2(t.600 

  

0).934 

 

total United States Department of I ransportatron 

  

10.936 

 

I otai Expentimires or Federal Awards 

  

114.875.112 S 

COBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster 14 218 S 524.435 

   

Highway Planning and Construction Cluster 20.205 S 594.177 

   

Federal Iransit Cluster 20 507 1 1.658.51' 

   

HigIrway Safety Clustei 20.600 1 10.936 

   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LC)UISIANA 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended April 30, 2024 

(1) General 

The accompanyine Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ( the Schedule) includes the federal 
award activity of the City of Alexandria, Louisiana (the City) under programs of the federal government 
for the year ended April 30, 2024. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code glFederal Regulations Part 20, Untform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Prmciples, and Audit Requirements JOr Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule 
presents only a selected portion of the operations of the City, it is not intended to and does not present the 
financial position. changes in net position. or cash flows of the City. 

(2) Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented wing both the accrual 
and modified accrual basis of accounting. These accounting policies are described in Note 1 to the City's 
hasic financial statements for the year ended April 30, 2024. 

(3) Indirect Cost Rate 

The City has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the 
Uniform Guidance. 

(4) Loans outstanding 

The City had debt halance outstanding of $4,475,845 at April 30 2024 as it relates to the 
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Re‘olving Funds CFDA 66.468. 

The City had debt balance outstanding of $1,907,603 at April 30, 2024 as it relates to the 
Capitalization Cirants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds CFDA 66.458. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LOUISIANA 

Alexandria, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended Apnl 30, 2024 

Part I Summary of Auditor's Results:  

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: 

Internal control over tinancial reportiim 

Material weaknesskesi identified? 

Signiticant deficiencies identitied? 

Noncomphance material to 

tinancial statements noted? 

Federal Awards  

Unmodified 

X ves 110 

\ e•5 X none reported 

yes X no 

Type of auditor's repon issued on compliance 

for major programs: 

Internal control over major programs 

Material weakness(es) identified' 

Sienificant deficiencies identified? 

Unmodified 

ves X no 

X v es none reported      

Any audit findines disclosed that are required 

to be reported in accordance with 2 (7FR 

sectiim 200 516tay?  veN X no 

Niajor prourams:      

CFDA Number( s Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

20.507 Federal Transit Cluster 

21.027 Coronayirus State and Local Recovery Funds 

Dollar threshold used tci distinguish between 

type A and type B programs: 5750.000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Findinus and Questioned Costs (Continued) 
Year Ended April 30, 2024 

Pan 11. Findliffis w•hieh are requiredto be reported in Iccordance with generally accepted Govemmental Auditing 
Standards: 

A. Internal Control Findings — 

See internal control findinu 20'24-001 on the schedule of current and prior vear findings. 

B. Compliance Findings - 

None reported. 

Pan lll. Findings and questioned costs for Major Federal awards which include audit findings as &fined in 2 CFR 
section 200 of the Uniform Guidance: 

See internal control finding 2024-002 on the schedule of current and prior year findings. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LC)UISIANA 

Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findings 
Year Ended April 30, 2024 

Part I. Current Year Findmgs and Management's Corrective Action Plan: 

A. Internal Control Over Financial Reportmg 

2024-01)1 Material Adjustments 

Fiscal year finding initially occurred: 2024 

CONDITION: During the course of our audit procedures, we requested with 
management to review certain account balances across multiple funds which 
led to additional adjustments of significant account balances. hi addition, we 
proposed material audit adjustments to various funds and accounts related to 
inventory, capital assets. revenue. receivables, liabilities and expenses. 

CRITERIA: The City should have controls in place to ensure that siglificant 
account balances are reviewed and accurately reported at year end. 

CAUSE. The City did not follow internal controls in place to ensure that 
signiticant account balances were accurately reported. 

EFFECT: Failure to properly review and accurately report significant 
account balances at year end. could result in the financial statements bring 
materially misstated and unreliable to the users of the financial ;.tatements. 

RECOMMENDATION: We recommend that the City review their current 
policies and procedures for reconciling account balances at year end and 
implement additional procedures as deemed necessary. 

Management's response: The Accountin2 Department lost some critical and 
experienced personnel during the last 8 months. 2 of the 3 Accountants in 
the department went on to other employment. One position has heen filled 
by promotion. while the other remains vacant. Other departments suffered 
similar losses, such as Customer Service and Water. These burdens at a 
cmcial time impaired the City's end of year activities that are essential to 
audit preparation. Steps are being taken to actively recruit and retain 
competent staff; but will take time to yield full henefits. 

B Compliance and other matters 

None reported. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA. LC)UISIANA 

Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findines (Continued) 
Year Ended April 30, 2024 

C. Internal Control Over Compliance — Uniform Guidance  

20/4-001 Preparation of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Fiscal year finding initially occurred. 2021 

CONDITION: The City lacks an adequate system of internal controls to 
properly monitor grants and prepare and reconcile a complete and accurate 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) to their underlying 
financial records. 

CRITERIA: The Uniform Guidance Subpart F section 200.510 and section 
200.512, respectively, require the preparation of the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) to include an accurate reporting of 
federal awards expended based on the terms and conditions of grants 
received. In order for the SEFA to be prepared accurately. the City's internal 
controls should include a centralized process for accumulating punt 
information and tracking the grant status from inception of the award to 
recording in the financial statements. 

CAUSE: The City does not have an adequate system of internal controls in 
place to properly moiutor grants and accumulate, prepare and reconcile a 
SEFA to its financial records. 

EFFECT: Failure to properly implement a system of internal controls to 
monitor and track grants, could lead to improper usage of grant funds for 
unallowahle costs. In addition, without being able to properly accumulate 
and compile all necessary grant documentation to prepare a SEFA. gants 
could be misidentified in the financials statements and not reported in 
accordance with Uniform Guidance. 

RECOMMENDATION: We recommend that the City review their current 
policies and procedures for monitoring and tracking grants from the 
inception of the award to recording in the financials statements. 

View of Responsible Official: This has drawn the attention of the City's 
Administration. Additional options are being explored such as either hiring 
employee( s) or outside vendors to track and monitor any grants approved by 
the eranting authority and the City. Although not yet resolved, overall grant 
management remains a high priority to the City. Presently. the City's Legal 
Division solicits periodic reports from all divisions of pending and active 
grants and maintains a spreadsheet of key grant information, such as the 
particular grant monitor, amount. etc. 
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CITY OF ALEXANDRIA, LC)UISIANA 

Schedule of Current and Prior Year Audit Findims (Continued) 
Year Ended April 30, 2024 

Part II. Prior Year Findings. 

A. Internal Control Over Financial Reporung 

2023-00 I Utility System Billings 

Fiscal year finding initially occurred: 2023 

CONDITION. During the fiscal year ended April 30, 2023, the Citv of 
Alexandria issued monthly utility bills with incorrect rates assessed for 
electrical and gas fuel costs charges These errors occurred in separate 
months, and in both cases only affected specitic hilling cycles before it was 
noticed by City of Alexandria staff. In one instance. the bills were issued to 
customers for rates that were less than the actual rates intended to be billed. 
In the other instance. the bills were generated and set for delivery, but the 
error was discovered by City personnel, which corrected the error and issued 
bills with the proper rates. 

RECOMMENDATION: Management should review their current policies 
and procedures oNer their utility billing process and implement additional 
internal controls to ensure that proper rates are billed as calculated 

CURRENT STATUS: Resolved. No instances occurred during the current 
fiscal year under audit. 

B. Comphance and Other Matters 

None reported. 

Internal Control over Compliance — Uniform Guidance  

2023-002 Preparation of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Fiscal year finding initially occurred: 2021 

CONDITION: The City lacks an adequate system of internal controls to 
properly monitor grants and prepare and reconcile a complete and accurate 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) to their underlying 
financial records. 

RECOMMENDATION: We recommend that the City review their current 
policies and procedures for monitoring and tracking grants from the 
inception of the award to recording in the financials statements. 

CURRENT STATUS: Unresolved. See item 2024-002. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
WITH UTILITIES REVENUE BONDS SERIES 2014, 2013A AND 2020 

The Honorable Jacques Roy, Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Alexandria, Louisiana (the 
City), as of and for the year ended April 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City of Alexandria, Louisiana's basic financial statements and have issued our report 
thereon dated October 31, 2024. 

In connection with our audit, no default on the part of the City of any covenant or obligation as stated in 
the Utilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2014, Utilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A or the Taxable Utilities Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 was noted. However, our audit was not directed primarily towards obtaining such 
knowledge. 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the City's compliance with the requirements of the Utilities 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2014 and Utilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A. Accordingly, this report is not suitable 
for any other purpose. 

Kolder, Slaven & Company, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

Alexandria, Louisiana 
October 31, 2024 
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The Honorable Jacques Roy, Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

RE: Resolution Number 2341-1982 
Requirement of Specific Recommendations 

As engaged independent certified public accountants, we were requested to include specific recommendations in 
accordance with Resolution Number 2341-1982, which is "a resolution relative to the fulfillment of commitments of the 
City of Alexandria, Louisiana (the City) relative to the Combined Utilities System." These recommendations are intended 
to ensure that the City and the Combined Utilities System generate sufficient revenues to pay operation and maintenance 
expenses of the Combined Utilities System and debt service on outstanding revenue bonds payable from such revenue, 
and to make all budgeted transfers to other funds of the City. During the current year, the City fulfilled each of these 
commitments. 

For future periods, the City should continue to accomplish the following steps: 

1) Prepare and approve an annual operating budget of the Combined Utilities System based upon the best criteria of 
revenue and expense estimates that can be reasonably developed. 

2) Provide for budgetary control on a line-item basis and monitor budget variances on a current basis. Amendments 
should be addressed for any unusual exceptions as they are encountered. 

3) Provide projected monthly cash flow schedules with comparisons to actual, prior, and current amounts. Any unusual 
variances should be investigated. 

4) Maintain current and accurate accounting records relative to financial activity of the system. 

5) Reconcile subsidiary ledgers to appropriate general ledger control accounts on a current basis. 

6) Provide for a complete review of the accounting trial balance and underlying transactions on a current basis for obvious 
posting errors. Investigate and/or correct unusual items as needed. 

7) Update utility rate studies as practical and adjust rates as necessary to provide adequate revenues to meet budgeted 
needs. 

8) Implement other recommendations, if any, relative to the Combined Utilities System as noted in our accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Kolder, Slaven & Company, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

Alexandria, Louisiana 
October 31, 2024 
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The City of Alexandria, Louisiana respectfully submits the following schedule of prior audit findings for 
the year ended April 30, 2023. 

Audit conducted by: 
Kolder, Slaven & Company, LLC 
1428 Metro Drive 
Alexandria, LA 71301 

Audit Period: Fiscal year ended April 30, 2023 

The finding from the April 30, 2023, schedule of findings and questioned costs is discussed below. The 
finding is numbered consistently with the number assigned in the schedule. 

FINDING - FINANCIAL AUDIT 

Significant Deficiencies 

2023-001 Utility System Billings — Utility Rates 

RECOMMENDATION: Management should review their current policies and procedures over their 
utility billing process and implement additional internal controls to ensure that proper rates are billed as 
calculated. 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN: Resolved. No instances occurred during the current fiscal year under 
audit. 

FINDING - UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Significant Deficiency 

2023-002 Preparation of Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

RECOMMENDATION: We recommend that the City review their current policies and procedures for 
monitoring and tracking grants from the inception of the award to recording in the financial statements. 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN: Unresolved. This has drawn the attention of the City's Administration. 
Additional options are being explored such as either hiring employee(s) or outside vendors to track and 
monitor any grants approved by the granting authority and the City. Although not yet resolved, overall 
grant management remains a high priority to the City. Presently, the City's Legal Division solicits 

Jacques Roy 
Mayor  

David L Johnson 
Director of Finance 
Post Office Box 71 

Alexandria, LA 71309-0071 
Tel (318) 449-5034-fax (318) 449-5231 

email: davidjohnson@cityofalex.com 



periodic reports from all divisions of pending ai d active grants and maintains a spreadsheet of kev grant 
information, such as the particular grant monitor. amount, ete. 

If there are cluestions regardmi, the p1an, please call David Johnson. Finance Director at 318-449-5034. 

Sincerely. 

David Johnson 
Finance Director 
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Alexandria 
The City of Alexandria, Louisiana respectfully submits the following corrective action plan for the year 
ended April 30, 2024. 

Audit conducted by: 
Kolder, Slaven & Company, LLC 
1428 Metro Drive 
Alexandria, LA 71301 

Audit Period: Fiscal year ended April 30, 2024 

The findings from the April 30, 2024, schedule of findings and questioned costs is discussed below. The 
finding is numbered consistently with the number assigned in the schedule. 

FINDING - FINANCIAL AUDIT 

Material Weakness 

2024-001 Material Adjustments 

RECOMMENDATION: We recommend that the City review their current policies and procedures for 
reconciling account balances at year end and implement additional procedures as deemed necessary. 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN: The Accounting Department lost some critical and experienced 
personnel during the last 8 months. 2 of the 3 Accountants in the department went on to other 
employment. One position has been filled by promotion, while the other remains vacant. Other 
departments suffered similar losses, such as Customer Service and Water. These burdens at a crucial time 
impaired the City's end of year activities that are essential to audit preparation. Steps are being taken to 
actively recruit and retain competent staff; but will take time to yield full benefits. 

FINDING - UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Significant Deficiency 

2024-002 Preparation of Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

RECOMMENDATION: We recommend that the City review their current policies and procedures for 
monitoring and tracking grants from the inception of the award to recording in the financial statements. 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN: This issue has been brought to the attention of the new Administration, 
exploring the options of either hiring an employee or contractor to initially assess a potential grant, and 
subsequently track and monitor any approved grants. Although not yet resolved, overall grant 

Jacques Roy 
Mayor  

David L Johnson 
Director of Finance 
Post Office Box 71 

Alexandria, LA 71309-0071 
Tel (318) 449-5034-fax (318) 449-5231 

email: davidjohnson@cityofalex.com 



management remains a high priority to the City. Discussions with the new Mayor indicate this to be a 
commitment. 

If there are questions regardmg the plan, please call Dai id Johnson, Fit ce Director at 318-449-5034. 

Sincerely, 

David Johnson 
Fmance Director 
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KOLDER, SLAVEN & COMPANY, LLC 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Honorable Mayor, 
And City Council Members, City of Alexandria, 
And the Louisiana Legislative Auditor 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance 
(C/C) areas identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon 
Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal period May 1, 2023, through April 30, 2024. The City of 
Alexandria's management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

The City of Alexandria has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed 
are appropriate to meet the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified 
procedures on the C/C areas identified in the LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period May 1, 2023 
through April 30, 2024. Additionally, the LLA has agreed to and acknowledged that the 
procedures performed are appropriate for its purpose. This report may not be suitable for any 
other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of 
this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are 
responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

1) Written Policies and Procedures 

A. Obtained and inspected the entity's written policies and procedures and observed that they 
address each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and 
the entity's operations: 

i) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

ii) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated, (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list, (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and 
purchase orders, (4) controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law, and (5) 
documentation required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

iii) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 
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iv) Receipts/Collections, including receiving. recording. and preparing deposits. Also, 
policies and procedures should include management's actions to determine the 
cotnpleteness of all collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g. 
periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billine after cutoff 
procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences. agency fund forfeiture 
monies confirmation). 

v) Payroll/Personnel, includine (1) payroll processing. (2) reviewing and approving titne 
and attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process 
tbr employee(s) rate of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

vi) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard 
tertns and conditions, (3) legal review, (4 ) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

vii) Travel and expense reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses. (2) dollar 
thresholds hy category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required 
approvers. 

viii)Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable). including (1) how 
cards are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses. (3) documentation requirements, 
(4) required approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the 
reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

ix) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 
42. 1111-1121, (2 ) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place. (3) system to 
monitor possible ethics violations, and (4) a requirement that documentation is 
maintained to demonstrate that all employees and officials were notitied of any changes 
to the entity's ethics policy. 

x ) Debt Service. including (1) debt issuance approval. (2) continuing disclosurefEMMA 
reporting requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements. and (4) debt service requirements. 

xi) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity. including (1) 
identification of critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a 
separate physical location isolated from the network. (3) periodic testing/verification that 
backups can be restored. (4) use of antivirus software on all systems. (5) timely 
application of all available system and software patches/updates. and (6) identification of 
personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

xii)Prevention of Sexual Harassment, including R. S. 42 .342-344 requirements tbr (1 ) 
agency responsibilities and prohibitions. (2) annual employee training. and (3) annual 
reporting. 



2) Board or Finance Committee 

A. Obtained and inspected the board 'finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as 
the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect durine the 
fiscal period. and: 

i) Observed that the boardlinance committee met with a quonim at least monthly, or on a 
frequency in accordance with the board's enabline legislation. charter. bylaws, or other 
equivalent document. 

ii ) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observed that the 
minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general 
fund. quarterly budget-to-actual, at a minimum, on proprietary funds, and semi-annual 
budget-to-actual. at a minimum, on all special revenue funds. Alternately, for those 

entities reporting on the non-profit accounting model. observe that the minutes 
relerenced or included financial activio• relating to public jimds if those public finds 
comprised more than 1090 of the entity's collections during the fiscal period. 

iii) For governmental entities, ohtained the prior year audit report and ohserved the 
unassigned fund balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending 
unassigned fund balance in the prior year audit report, observed that the minutes for at 
least one meeting during the fiscal period referenced or included a formal plan to 
eliminate the neeative unrestricted fund balance in the general fund. 

iv) Observed whether the board/finance committee received written updates of the progress 
of resolving audit finding(s). according to inanagement's corrective action plan at each 
meeting until the findings are considered fully resolved. 

3) Bank Reconciliations 

A. Obtained a listing of entity's bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Asked management to identify-  the 
entity's main operating account. Selected the entity's main operating account and randomly 
selected 4 additional accounts (or all accounts if less than 5). Randomly selected one month 
from the fiscal period, ohtained and inspected the corresponding bank statement and 
reconciliation for selected each account. and observed that: 

i) Bank reconciliations included evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the 
related statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged). 

ii) Bank reconciliations included evidence that a member of management/board member 
who does not handle cash. post ledgers. or issue checks has reviewed each bank 
reconciliation within 1 month of the date the reconciliation was prepared (e.g., initialed 
and dated, electronically logged). 

iii) Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that 
have been outstanding fbr more than 12 months from the statement closing date. if 
applicable. 

3 



4) Collections (excluding electronic funds transfers) 

A. Obtained a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money 
orders (cash) are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. 
Randomly selected 5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

B. For each deposit site selected, obtained a listing of collection locations and managelnent's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly selected one collection location for each 
deposit site (i.e. 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtained and inspected written 
policies and procedures relating to employee joh duties (if no written policies or procedures, 
inquire of employees about their job duties) at each collection location, and observed that job 
duties are properly segregated at each collection location such that: 

i) Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers!registers. 

ii) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making 
bank deposits unless another employee/official ts responsible for reconciling collection 
documentation (e.g. pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit. 

iii) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection 
entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers unless another employeelofficial is 
responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

iv) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or 
subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions are not responsible 
for collecting cash, unless another employee/official verifies the reconciliation. 

C. Obtained from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all 
employees who have access to cash and observed the bond or insurance policy for theft was 
enforced during the fiscal period. 

D. Randomly selected two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure 
43 under "Bank Reconciliations-  above (selected the next deposit date chronologically if no 
deposits were made on the dates randomly selected and randomly selected a deposit if 
multiple deposits are made on the same day). Alternately. the practitioner may use a source 
document other than bank statements when selecting the deposit dates Pr testing, such as a 
cash collection log, dadv revenue report. receipt book. etc. Ohtained supporting 
documentation for each of the 10 deposits and: 

i) Observed that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

Traced sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

iii) Traced the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

iv) Observed that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection 
location (within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection 
location or the deposit is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or 
drawer). 

v) Traced the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 
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5) Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases/paymentN, travel reimbursementN, 
and petty ca.sh purchases) 

A. Obtained a listine of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly selected 5 locations (or all locations if 
less than 5). 

B. For each location selected under #5A above, obtained a listing of those employees involved 
with non-payroll purchasine and payment functions. Obtained written policies and 
procedures relating to employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and 
procedures, inquired of employees about their job duties). and observed that job duties are 
properly segregated such that. 

i) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a 
purchase, and placine an ordeemakine the purchase. 

At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

iii) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying 
vendor files unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to 
vendor files. 

iv) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives 
the signed checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

v) Only employees/officials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic disbursement 
(release) of funds, whether through automated clearinghouse (ACK electronic funds 
transfer (EFT), wire transfer, or some other electronic means. 

C. For each location selected under #5A above, obtained the entity's non-payroll disbursement 
transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtained 
management's representation that the population is complete. Randomly selected 5 
dishursements for each location, obtained supporting documentation for each transaction and. 

i) Observed whether the disbursement, whether by paper or electronic means, matched the 
related original itemized invoice and supporting documentation indicates deliverables 
included on the invoice were received hy the entity. 

ii) Observed that the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initialidate, 
electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under #5B above. as applicable. 

D. Using the entity's main operating account and the month selected in Bank Reconciliations 
procedure #3A. randomly selected 5 non-payroll-related electronic dishursements (or all 
electronic disbursements if less than 5) and observed that each electronic disbursement was 
(a) approved only by those persons authorized to disburse funds (e.g., sign checks) per the 
entity's policy, and (b) approved by the required number of authorized signers per the 
entity's policy. Note• If no electronic payments were made from the main operating account 
during the month selected the practitioner should select an alternative month/or account for 
testing that does include electronic disbursements. 
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6) Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

A. Obtained from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, 
and P-cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the 
persons who maintained possession of the cards. Obtained management's representation that 
the listing is complete. 

B. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly selected 5 cards (or all cards if less than 
5) that were used during the fiscal period. Randomly selected one monthly statement or 
combined statement for each card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank 
statement), obtained supporting documentation, and: 

i) Observed that there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, 
exception reports for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing 
(or electronically approved), by someone other than the authorized card holder. [Note: 
Requiring such approval may constrain the legal authority of certain public officials (e.g., 
mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality); these instances should not be reported.] 

ii) Observed that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

C. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #6B above, excluding 
fuel cards, randomly selected 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each 
statement, and obtained supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e. each card should 
have 10 transactions subject to testing). For each transaction, observed that it is supported by 
(1) an original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written 
documentation of the business/public purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals 
participating in meals (for meal charges only). For missing receipts, the practitioner should 
describe the nature of the transaction and note whether management had a compensating 
control to address missing receipts, such as a "missing receipt statement" that is subject to 
increased scrutiny. 

7) Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

A. Obtained from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements 
during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is 
complete. Randomly selected 5 reimbursements, obtained the related expense reimbursement 
forms/prepaid expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the 
supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected: 

i) If reimbursed using a per diem, observed the approved reimbursement rate is no more 
than those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services 
Administration (www. gs a. gov). 

ii) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an 
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 
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iii) Observed that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public 
purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those 
individuals participating) and other documentation required hy Written Policies and 
Procedures procedure # I A(vii.) 

iv) Observed each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other 
than the person receiving reimbursement. 

8) Contracts 

A. Obtained from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, 
materials and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed 
during the fiscal period. Alternately, the pructiuoner may use un equivalent selection source, 
such us an active vendor list. Ohtained management's representation that the listing is 
complete. Randomly selected 5 contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the listing, 
excluding the practitioner's contract, and• 

i) Observed that the contract was hid in accordance with the Louisiana Puhlic Bid Law 
(e.g.. solicited quotes or hids, advertised). if required by law. 

ii ) Observed whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by 
policy or law (e.g. Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

iii) If the contract was amended (e.g. chanee order). observed that the original contract terms 
provided for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the 
contract terms (e.g., if approval is required for any amendment, that approval was 
documented). 

iv) Randomly selected one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, 
obtained the supporting invoice, ageed the invoice to the contract terms. and observed 
the invoice and related payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

9) Payroll and Personnel 

A. Obtained a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly selected 5 employees or 
officials. obtained related paid salaries and personnel files, and agreed paid salaries to 
authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel tiles. 

B. Randomly selected one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials 
selected under #9A above, obtained attendance records and leave documentation for the pay 
period. and: 

i) Observed all selected employees(officials documented their daily attendance and leave 
(e.g., vacation. sick, compensatory). 

ii) Observed whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected 
employees or officials. 

iiil Observed any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's 
cumulative leave records. 
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iv) Observed the rate paid to the employees or officials agree to the authorized salarylpay 
rate found within the personnel file. 

C. Obtained a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during 
the fiscal period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly 
selected two employees or officials, obtained related documentation of the hours and pay 
rates used in management's termination payment calculations and the entity's policy on 
termination payments. Agreed the hours to the employee's or official's cumulative leave 
records, agreed the pay rates to the employee or official's authorized pay rates in the 
employee's or official's personnel files, and agreed the termination payment to entity policy. 

D. Obtained management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-party 
payroll related amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance 
premiums, garnishments, workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any 
associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines. 

10) Ethics 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employeesiofficials from Payroll and Personnel procedure 
#9A obtained ethics documentation from management, and: 

if Observed documentation demonstrates that each employee/official completed one hour of 
ethics training during the calendar year as required hy R.S. 42:1170. 

ii) Observed whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates that each 
employee and official were notified of any chanees to the entity's ethics policy during the 
fiscal period, as applicahle. 

B. Inquired andior observed whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as required by 
R.S. 42.117(1. 

11) Debt Service 

A. Obtained a listing of bondsinotes issued during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Selected all debt instruments on the listing, 
obtained supporting documentation. and observed State Bond Commission approval was 
obtained for each debt instrument issued as required bv Article VII, Section 8 of the 
Louisiana Constitution. 

B. Obtained a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly selected one bondlnote, 
inspected debt covenants, obtained supporting documentation for the reserve balance and 
payments, and aereed actual reserve balances and payments to those required by debt 
covenants (including contingency funds, short-lived asset funds, or other funds required by 
the debt covenants). 
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12) Fraud Notice 

A. Obtained a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Selected all misappropriations on 
the listing. obtained supponmg documentation, and observed that the entity reported the 
misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which 
the entity is domiciled as required by R.S. 24:523. 

B. (_lbserved the entity has posted on its premises and website. the notice required by R.S. 
24:523.1 concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or ahuse of public 
hands. 

13) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/ Business Continuity 

A. Performed the following procedures and discuss the results with management: 

i ) Obtained and inspected the entity's most recent documentation that it has backed up its 
critical data (if no written documentation. inquire of personnel responsible for backing up 
critical data) and observed that such backup (a) occurred within the past week, (b) was 
not stored on the government's local server or network. and (c) was encrypted. 

ii) Obtained and inspected the entity's most recent documentation that it has tested/verified 
that its backups can be restored (if no written documentation. inquired of personnel 
responsible for testing! verifying back-up restoration) and ohserved evidence that the 
test/verification was successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

iii) Obtained a listing of the entity's computers currently in use and their related locations, 
and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly selected 5 
computers and observed while management demonstrated that the selected computers 
have current and active antivirus software and that the operatine system and accounting 
system software in use are currently supported by the vendor. 

We performed the procedures and discussed the results vkith management. 

B. Randomly selected 5 terminated employees (or all terminated employees if less than 5) usine 
the list of terminated employees obtained in procedure #9C. Observed evidence that the 
selected terminated employees have been removed or disabled from the network. 

We performed the procedures and discussed the results vir ith management. 

C. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure 
#9A, obtained cybersecurity training documentation from management. and observed that the 
documentation demonstrates that the following employees!officials with access to the 
agency's infimmation technology assets have completed cybersecurity training as required by 
R.S. 42:1267. The requirements are as follows: 

• Hired on or before June 9. 2020 — completed the training; and 
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• Hired on or after June 9. 2020 — completed the training within 30 days of initial 
service or employment. 

We performed the procedures and discussed the results Is ith management. 

14) Prevention of sexual Harassment 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees!officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure 
I49A. obtained sexual harassment training documentation from management, and observed 
that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour of 
sexual harassment training during the calendar year as required hy R.S. 42.343. 

B. Observed that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on 
its wehsite (or in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity does not have a 
website). 

C. Obtained the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period. observed 
that the report was dated on or betbre February 1, and observed that the report includes the 
applicable requirements of R.S. 42:344: 

i) Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements. 

ii) Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency. 

iii) Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred. 

iv) Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or 
corrective actions. 

v ) The amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

Findings: 

No exceptions were found as a result of applying procedures listed above except: 

Written Policies and Procedures: 

Written policies and procedures do not address how vendors are added to the vendor list. 

Written policies and procedures do not address annual sexual harassment training or 
reporting. 

Board or Finance Committee: 

Board meeting minutes made no reference to hudget to actual comparisons for the General, 
Special Revenue and Utility Systems Fund. 

Board meeting tninutes made no mention of the status of resolving prior vear audit tindin2s. 
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Bank Reconciliations: 

Four of Five bank reconciliations tested showed no sips of management researching and 
reconciling old outstanding items. 

Non-Payroll Disbursements: 

There is no written documentation prohibiting individuals responsible fbr processing 
payments from adding/modifying vendor files. 

Credit/Debit/Fuel Cards 

Of 21 transactions tested, 3 did not include the business or public purpose of the transaction. 

Management's Response: 

The management of the City of Alexandria concurs with the exceptions and is working to 
address the deficiencies identified. 

We were engaged by the City of Alexandria to perform this agreed-upon procedures 
engagement and conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established 
by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of 
Government Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or 
review engagement. the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, 
respectively, On those CiC areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such 
an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have 
come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the City of Alexandria and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon 
procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing perfortned on those C/C 
areas identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing. and not to provide an opinion on 
control or compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under 
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

Kolder, Slaven & Company, LLC 
Certitied Public Accountants 

Alexandria, Louisiana 
October 31, 2024 
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